NOTICE OF MEETING

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE B

Thursday, 20th April, 2017, 6.00 pm - Civic Centre, High Road,
Wood Green, N22 8LE

Members: Councillors Vincent Carroll (Chair), Toni Mallett and Ann Waters

Quorum: 3

1.

FILMING AT MEETINGS

Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending
the meeting using any communication method. Although we ask members of
the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to include the
public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting should be
aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or recorded by
others attending the meeting. Members of the public participating in the
meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral protests)
should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or reported on. By
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings.

The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.
(Late items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New
items will be considered at item 8 below).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is

considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest
becomes apparent, and

Haringey



(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
withdraw from the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28
days of the disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of
Conduct

SUMMARY OF PROCEDURE (PAGES 1 -2)

The Chair will explain the procedure that the Committee will follow for the
hearing considered under the Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling Act 2005. A
copy of the procedure is attached.

KAJAL NEWS, 8 COMMERCE ROAD, N22 8ED (PAGES 3 - 38)

ALEXANDRA PALACE EXTERNAL AREAS - PARK AND HARD
STANDING AREAS, ALEXANDRA PALACE WAY, N22 7AY (PAGES 39 -
328)

ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any new items of urgent business admitted under item 3 above.

Felicity Foley, Principal Committee Co-ordinator
Tel — 020 8489 2919

Fax — 020 8881 5218

Email: felicity.foley@haringey.gov.uk

Bernie Ryan
Assistant Director — Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ

Monday, 10 April 2017



Page 1 Agenda ltem 5

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARINGS
PROCEDURE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

1. The Chair introduces him/herself and invites other Members, Council officers, Police,
Applicant and Objectors to do the same.

2. The Chair invites Members to disclose
] any prior contacts (before the hearing) with the parties or representations received

by them; and separately
i) any declarations of interest.

3. The Chair explains the procedure to be followed by reference to this summary which will
be distributed in advance.

NON-ATTENDANCE BY PARTY OR PARTIES

4. If one or both of the parties fails to attend, the Chair decides whether to:
(1) grant an adjournment to another date, or
(ii) proceed in the absence of the non-attending party.

Normally, an absent party will be given one further opportunity to attend.

TOPIC HEADINGS

5. The Chair suggests the “topic headings” for the hearing. In the case of the majority of
applications for variation of hours, or other terms and conditions, the main topic is:

Whether the extensions of hours etc. applied for would conflict with the four
licensing objectives i.e.

() the prevention of crime and disorder,

(i) public safety,

(i) the prevention of public nuisance, and

(iv)  the protection of children from harm.

6- The Chair invites comments from the parties on any other topic headings to be discussed.

WITNESSES

7. The Chair asks whether there are any requests by a party to call a witness and decides any
such request.

8. Only if a witness is to be called, the Chair then asks if there is a request by an opposing party
to “cross-examine” the witness. The Chair then decides any such request.

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE

9. The Chair asks whether there are any requests by any party to
introduce late documentary evidence.

10. If so, the Chair will ask the other party if they object to the
admission of the late documents.

11. If the other party do object to the admission of documents which
have only been produced by the first party at the hearing, then the
documents shall not generally be admitted.

July 2014




Page 2

12. If the other party object to documents produced late but before the
hearing, the following criteria shall be taken into account when the
Chair decides whether or not to admit the late documents:

(1) What is the reason for the documents being late?

(ii) Will the other party be unfairly taken by surprise by the late documents?

(i) Will the party seeking to admit late documents be put at a major disadvantage if
admission of the documents is refused?

(iv) Is the late evidence really important?

(V) Would it be better and fairer to adjourn to a later date?

THE LICENSING OFFICER’S INTRODUCTION

13.  The Licensing Officer introduces the report explaining, for
example, the existing hours, the hours applied for and the
comments of the other Council Services or outside official bodies.
This should be as “neutral” as possible between the parties.

14.  The Licensing Officer can be questioned by Members and then by
the parties.

THE HEARING

15. This takes the form of a discussion led by the Chair. The Chair can
vary the order as appropriate but it should include:

(i) an introduction by the Objectors’ main representative

(i) an introduction by the Applicant or representative

(i) questions put by Members to the Objectors

(iv)  questions put by Members to the Applicant

(V) guestions put by the Objectors to the Applicant

(vi)  questions put by the Applicant to the Objectors

CLOSING ADRESSES

16.  The Chair asks each party how much time is needed for their
closing address, if they need to make one.

17.  Generally, the Objectors make their closing address before the
Applicant who has the right to the final closing address.

THE DECISION

18. Members retire with the Committee Clerk and legal representative
to consider their decision including the imposition of conditions.

19. The decision is put in writing and read out in public by the
Committee Clerk once Members have returned to the meeting.

July 2014




Page 3 Agenda ltem 6

Report for: Licensing Sub Committee 20™ April 2017

Item number:

Title: New Premises Application - KAJAL NEWS, 8 COMMERCE ROAD
LONDON N22 8ED.

Report

authorised by : Daliah Barrett-Licensing Team Leader — Regulatory Services.

Ward(s) affected: BOUNDS GREEN

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Not applicable

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 This report relates to an application for a new licence submitted by Mr Y Patel, the
application seeks the following:

Details of the application are as follows:

Supply of Alcohol
Monday to Sunday 0800 to 2300 hours

For consumption OFF the premises

Opening Hours

Monday to Friday 0530 to 2300 hours
Saturday to Sunday 0630 to 2300 hours
Monday to Sunday 1200 to 2300

For consumption ON the premises

Opening Hours
Monday to Sunday 1200 to 2300

1.2 The application form and plan is attached as Appendix 1.
1.3  Representation have been received from:

Other Parties
This is attached as Appendix 2

2 Recommendations

In considering the representations received and what is appropriate for the promaotion
of the licensing objectives, the steps the
Sub-Committee can take are:
= Grant the aspplication as requested
= Grant the application whilst imposing additional conditions and/or
altering in any way the proposed operating schedule.
Exclude any licensable activities to which the application relates
= Reject the whole or part of the application

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5

2.1 Members of the licensing sub committee are asked to note that they may not
modify the conditions or reject the whole or part of the application merely
becaus it considers it desirable to do so. It must be appropriate in order
to promote the licensing objectives.

3. Background

3.1 The premises has operated as a newsagent and now wishes to offer the sale of alcohol
at the premises.

3.2 During the consultation period representation were received from other parties.

3.3 Under the Act representations can be received from responsible authorities or
other persons. Representations must be relevant and, In the case of another
person, must not be frivolous or vexatious. There are representation from residents and
other businesses in the area raising concerns over anti social behaviour in the area. The
local SNT have confirmed that there are gangs hanging around the area and generally
drinking cough mixture so the chemist in Commerce Road will not serve them anymore.
The Police are monitoring any gang activity in the area. The Police have made
representation on this matter but that representation has been agreed by the applicant. A
copy of the Police representation can be found at Appendix 3.

4. Policy implications

4.1 The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of the State’s guidance and
the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. Where the
decision departs from either the Guidance or the Policy clear and cogent reasons must
be given. Members should be aware that if such a departure is made the risk of appeal /
challenge is increased.

4.2 Eqalities impact

At the time of writing this report there were no implications for equality and
diversity. Any decision taken by the Licensing Sub-Committee will be in
accordance with the four licensing objectives as prescribed by the Licensing Act
2003.

5. Other considerations

5.1 Human Rights
Whiie all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of particular relevance
to the application are:
o Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life.
o Article 1 of the First Protocol - Protection of Property
Article 6(1) — Right to a fair hearing.
o Article 10 - Freedom of Expression

o]

6 Use of Appendices

Appendix 1- Application form
Appendix 2 - Copy of Representation
Appendix 3 - Copy of Police representation

Background papers: Section 182 Guidance
Haringey Statement of Licensing policy

Haringey



Page 6

Appendix 1 - APPLICATION FORM



Page 7 (/d K\ 3’%?3@8

HARINGEY COUNCIL
LICENSING
RECEIVED

-2 MAR Application for a premises licence to be granted
2017 under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form piease read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

if you are completing this form by hand piease write legibly in block capitals. In all cases
ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if
necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described In Part 1 beiow {the premises) and liwe are making thls appilcation to you as
the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Kajal News
8 Commerce Road

Post town | London Post code N22 8ED

Telephone number at premises (if any)

|LNon-domestic rateabie value of premises | £E£££8000

Part 2 - Applicant Details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises ficence as

Please tick yes
a)  an individual or individuals * B please complete section (A)
b) aperson other than an individual *
i.  as a fimited company [0 please complete section (B)
ii. as a partnership [0 please complete section (B)
jii. as an unincorporated association or [l please complete section (B)
iv. other (for example a statutory corporation) [] please complete section (B)
€) arecognised club [l please complete section (B)
d) acharity [1 please complete section (B)



Page 8

e) the proprietor of an educational estabiishment please compiete section (B)

f)  ahealth service body please complete section (B)

U
O
Q) .aperson whois registered under Part 2 of the [0 please complete section (B)
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14} in respect of an
independent hospital
h)  the chief officer of police of a police force in ]
England and Wales

please complete section (B)

* If you are applying as a person described in {(a) or (b) please confirm:
Please tick yes

* |am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of =
the premises for licensable activities; or

¢ | am making the appiication pursuant to a
o statutory function or : ]
o a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative ]

{A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Ms [J Other Title (for

Mr Mrs [] Miss [] example, Rev)

Surname Flrst names

Patel Yagnesh

I am 18 years old or over &  Please tick yes
4 Morant Place

Current postal Commerce Road

address if different
from premises
address

Post Town | London Postcode N22 8HS

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

: Other Title (for
Mr O Ms [ Miss [] Ms [] example, Rev)
Surname First names
| am 18 years old or over [0 Please tick yes




Page 9

Current postal
address Iif different
from premises
address

Post Town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mall address
(optionai)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of appilcant in full. Where appropriate
please give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture
(other than a body corporate), please glve the name and address of each party
concerned.

Name

Address

Registered number {(where applicable)

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association efc.)

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optionai)

Part 3 Operating Schedule

. ' Day Month Year
9
When do you want the premises licence to start” [2]e]o[3]2]0] 1]7]

if you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do Day Month Year
you want it to end? LI TTTTTIT]




Page 10

Please give a general description of the premises (piease read guidance note1)
Convenience store

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any L 1
one time, please state the number expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Scheduies 1 and 2 to the
Licensing Act 2003)

Provislon of requlated entertainment Please tick yes

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A} O
b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) ]
¢) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C) ]
d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fili in box D) ]
e) five music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) Il
f)  recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) ]
g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) M|
h) qnythi_ng of a sim?iar description to that falling within (e}, (f) or (g) O
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)
Provision of entertainment faciiities:
i) making music (if ticking yes, fili in box {) [
Iy dancing (if ticking yes, fill in box J) [
) ept_ertginment of a similar description to that falling within (i) or {) 0
(if ticking yes, fill in box K)
Provislon of Iate night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box L) ]
Supply of aicohol (if ticking yes, fill in box M) X

In all cases complete boxes N, O and P




Page 11

A
Plays Wili the performance of a piay take place
Standard days and Indoors or outdoors or both - piease tick Indoors O

timings (piease read

(please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors O

Day | Start | Finish Both l:l

Mon Please give further detalls here {piease read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you Intend to use the premises
for the performance of plays at different times to those listed In
the column on the left, please list (piease read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun




Page 12

B

Fiims WIIl the exhibltion of films take place Indoors

Standard days and or outdoors or both — please tick (please read | Indoors |

timings (please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors |

Day | Start | Finish Bath [

Mon Please give further detaiis here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variatlons for the exhlbitlon of films (please
read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the exhlbition of fiims at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun




Page 13

C

Indoor sporting events | Please give further details (please read guidance note 3)
Standard days and
timings {please read
guidance note 6)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please

read guidance note 4)

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for Indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in
the column on the ieft, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Fri

Sat

Sun




Page 14

D

Boxing or wrestling Will the boxing or wrestling entertalnment

entertalnments ke place indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors O

Standard days and pleass tick (please read guidance note 2)

timings {please read o)

guidance note 6) Jo0s L

Day |(Start | Finish Both 'l

Mon Please give further detalls here {please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variatlons for boxing or wrestlin
entertalnment (please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you Intend to use the premises
for boxing or wrestiing entertainment at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

Sat note 5}

Sun




Page 15

E
Live music Will the performance of live music take place
Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — piease tick indaors I

timings (please read

(please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors |

Day | Start | Finish Both |

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of live music at different times to those
listed In the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

Sat note )

Sun




F

Page 16

Recorded music Will the pilaying of recorded music take place

Standard days and indoors or rs or both — please tick Indoors O

timings (please read (please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors |

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon Please glve further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded muslc
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you Intend to use the remises
for the playing of recorded music at different times to those
listed In the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

Sat note 5)

Sun

10




G

Page 17

Performances of
dance
Standard days and

Wiil the performance of dance take place
indoors or cutdoors or both — please tick Indoors O
{please read guidance note 2)

timings (please read Outdoors ]

guidance note 6)

Day | Start | Finish Both |

Mon Piease give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the remises
for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

11



Page 18

H

Anything of a simllar Please glve a description of the type of entertainment you will
description to that be providing

falling within (e), (f) or

()

Standard days and

timings (please read

guidance note 6)

Day | Start

Finish

Mon

WIli this entertalnment take piace indoors or | indoors

outdoors or both — please tick (please read
Outdoors

guidance note 2)

OO0

Both

Tue

Wed

Please glve further detalls here (please read guidance note 3)

Thur

Fri

State any seasgnal variations for entertalnment of a similar
description to that falling within {e), (f) or (a) (please read

guidance note 4)

Sat

Sun

Non standard timings. Where you Intend to use the premises

for the ent Inm of a similar description to that fallin
within (e or {g) at different times to those listed in th

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

12




Page 19

Provision of facilities
for making music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 6)

Please give a description of the facilities for making music you
will rovidin

Will the faciiities for making music be
Indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Ly O
(please read guidance note 2) Outdoors |
Day | Stat | Finish Both 1
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue
Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of facilities for
making music (please read guidance note 4)
Thur
Fri Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the remises
for provislon of faclilities for making music at different times to
those listed in the column on the left. please list (please read
Sat guidance note 5)
Sun

13




Page 20

J

Provision of facilities | Will the facilities for dancing be indoors or

for dancing outdoors or both — piease tick (see guidance | Indoors O

Standard days and note 2}

timings {please read Outdoors i

guidance note 6) Both ]
Please give a description of the facilities for dancing you will be
providing

Day | Start Finish

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for providing dancing facilities

(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you Intend to use the premises
for the provision of facilitles for dancing entertainment at

different times to those listed in the column on the left, please

Sat list (please read guidance note 5)

Sun

14



K

Page 21

Provision of facilities
for entertalnment of a
similar description to
that falling within i or j
Standard days and
timings {(please read

guidance note 6)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment facility
you will be providing

Day | Start | Finish | Will the entertainment facility be indoors or Indoors ]
outdoors or both — please tick (please read

Mon guidance note 2) Outdoors | []

Both ]

Tue Please glve further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Wed

Thur State any seasonal variations for the provision of facilities for
entertalnment of a similar description to that falling within i or i
(please read guidance note 4)

Fri

Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the remises
for the provision of facilities for entertainment of a similar
description to that failing within i or j at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance
note 5)

Sun

15




Page 22

L

Late night refreshment | Wil the provision of late night refreshment

Standard days and take place Indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors O

timings (please read please tick (please read guidance note 2)

guidance note 6) Outdoors 3

Day | Start | Finish Both J

Mon Please give further detalis here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seagonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment (please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the remises
for the provision of late night refreshment at different times to
those listed In the column on the left, please list (please read

Sat guidance note 5}

Sun

16




Page 23

M

Supply of alcohol Wili the supply of alcohol be for On the

Standard days and consumption (Please tick box)} (please read premises O

timings (please read guidance note 7)

guidance note 6) Off th.e )

premises

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon | 08.00 |23.00 | State anyseasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please
read guidance note 4)

Tue | 08:00 |23:00

Wed | 08:00 | 23:00

Thur | 08:00 |23:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the remises
for the supply of aicohol at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, piease list (please read guidance note 5)

Fri 08:00 | 23:00

Sat 08:00 | 23:00

Sun | 08:00 | 23:00

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as
premises supervisor

Name
Yagnesh Patel

Address

Commerce Road
London

Postcode

Personal Licence number (if known)

To be applied for

Issuing licensing authority (if known)

Haringey Council

17




Page 24

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertalnment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern In respect of
children (please read guidance note 8)

NONE EXCEPT FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOL

o

Hours premises are
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read

guidance note 6)

State any seasona variations (please read guidance note 4)

Day | Start Finish
Mon | 05:30 | 23:00
Tue | 05:30 |23:00
Wed | 05:30 |23:00
Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be
h open to the public at different times from those listed in the
Thur ) 05:30 | 23:00 | column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)
Fri 05:30 | 23:00
Sat 06:30 | 23:00 -
Sun  }06:30 | 23:00

18




Page 25

P Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) (please read guidance note 9)

TRAINING OF ALL STAFF ON THE PREMISES TO ENSURE THAT THEY UNDERSTAND
AND ADHERE TO THE LAW RELATING TO THE SALE OF ALCOHOL. REFRESHER
TRAINING WILL BE GIVEN ON A REGULAR BASIS AND TRAINING RECORDS WILL BE
KEPT AND MADE AVAILABLE TO POLICE OR COUNCIL OFFICIALS ON REQUEST

b) The preventlon of crime and disorder

CCTV INSTALLED THAT MEETS POLICE GUIDELINES, AND MAINTAINED SO FULLY
OPERATIONAL 24 HOURS DAILY. RECORDINGS TO BE KEPT FOR A MINIMUM OF 31
DAYS AND TO BE MADE AVAILABLE TO POLICE/COUNCIL OFF ICERS IF REQUIRED.
CCTV CAMERAS TO SHOW CLEAR HEAD AND SHOULDER IMAGES OF ALL
CUSTOMERS ENTERING THE PREMISES.

ALARM SYSTEM IN PLACE

SHUTTERS AT FRONT WINDOWS

c) Public safety

ALL STAFF TRAINED TO DEAL WITH ANY OUTBREAK OF FIRE AT THE PREMISES. FIRE
EXTINGUISHERS INSTALLED AND REGULARLY SERVICED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FIRE
AUTHORITY GUIDELINES

TO COMPLY WITH ANY REQUIREMENTS OF THE FIRE AUTHORITY

d) The prevention of public nuisance

ANYONE WHO [S DRUNK OR UNDER 18 OR APPEARS TO BE BUYING ALCOHOL FOR
SOMEONE WHO IS DRUNK OR UNDER 18 WILL BE REFUSED THE SALE OF ALCOHOL

@) The protection of children from harm

CHALLENGE 25 TO BE OPERATED AT ALL TIMES, AND ANYONE ATTEMPTING TO BUY
ALCOHOL WHO APPEARS TO BE UNDER THE AGE OF 25 WILL HAVE TO PROVIDE
PHOTO ID IN THE FORM OF AN INDUSTRY APPROVED PROOF OF AGE IDENTITY CARD,
PASSPORT OR PHOTO DRIVING LICENCE TO PROVE THAT THEY ARE 18 OR OVER.
SIGN TO BE DISPLAYED AT POINT OF SALE - 'NO PROOF OF AGE - NO SALE'. A
REFUSALS/INCIDENT BOOK, DETAILING ALL INCIDENTS WHERE ALCOHOL AND OTHER
AGE RELATED PRODUCTS ARE REFUSED, AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT INCIDENTS, IS
TO BE KEPT AND MADE AVAILABLE TO AUTHORISED OFFICERS ON REQUEST.

19



Page 26

Plazss tick yos

& | mave MARe 08 eNOICAAT SayTAN f e fas e}
* logwve emingoe e pée oF The grenisss =]
*  PmEvesenteogies of it spplicsion s e plas 1 reancnzicds JUttenites nog s
CIhEct wTiere 20plcazle =
P I n3ve eNTICs Sl N Zonse oM como et oy 1R s imshadsl | wist 1o o cramizae
supenviear I eppilcatia
*  londerzing 1l must nge BIvETISe my eoolicavon 1
* londesznd vaidldo ndteomoy win tng 2hove requiteTmanse Jppiation w i
FER Sl T L
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION 7O A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE. UNDER SECTION 152 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A
FALSE STATEMENT IN CR I CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION
Pari 4 = Signalures  (jilesae rasd gudance nate 109
Signature of appiicant or applicant’s solizitor er other duly autherised agest (S
fandinnca: snic 111 i signing cn bekalf of tao applicant please state in what capacity.
Siznproe S |
Sigs Wb )
oal 122057
r: ~apaci: AGEN
Fer jeint applicaticns siznatura of 2°° agplicent or 2 applicant's so'leiter or other
authorised agent. [z'z2:2 ress guicasce nate 120, If signing en behalf of the applican:
pisasc state in what capacity.
Sy
Cze
CArArty
|
| Contact nama (where not previcusly giver) and posts] addreas for sorresgondence
asscocisied with this apphication (olones res? omance ~oiz 23
| SICEMSING SERVICES AsENCY
| 1€ BENGTC STREET
Posttown -S3TE0RD = Postcode | S51é 35S
Telephone nurmber (it any) D120z fEeo0g

¥ you weuld prefor us to correspand with you by e-mall your e-mall addrcss]nnnartal}
ZanginRfrviEiENcenry E=inond rom




Page 27

Commerce Road

Beers and wines

Wine and Spirits Display —--

Beers and wines store

-
-

- ———— =

_______

= e ————— -

o

Rear Fire Exit / Security Door to car park

Security Roller Shutter

General merchandise

General merchandise

All centre floor units -
General merchandise

Cash Desk with confectionery to front

Wine and Spirits Display
Wine and Spirits Display
Cigarettes

Beers and wines store

Dry Goods store

Key

® CCTV Camera

@ General Pupose
Fire Extinguisher

Licensing Services
Agency

16 Bengeo Street

This scale shoud measure 5 cm when printed

Do NotRe-scale /resize

Date 24 February 2017

Site Address

Scale 1:100

8 Commerce Road

Hertford SG14 3ES

PRINT OUT AT A4

Drawing:
Ground Floor Plan

London N22 8ED




Page 28

Appendix 2 - REPRESENTATIONS FROM OTHER PARTIES



Page 29

Ha ringey
LONDON
LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM

To make a representation in respect of an application for a Premises Licence or Club
Premises Certificate please complete the following form. For representations to be
considered relevant they must reiate tc one or more of the four “Licensing
Objectives” (isted below).

Please note all representations will be made available for applicants to view. If you
make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you will be called
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing Committee.

Personal Details
FARTN IUN
Name: ' I O
Address: 3 1 MAR 2017
___-_'_"—-—"--—-—__
Postcode:

| Licence application you wish to make a representation on

You do not need to answer all of the questions in this section, but please give as
much information as you can:

Application Number: WK/377358
Name of Licensee: YAGNESH PATEL
Name of Premises (if applicable); KAJAL NEWS

Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect): 8 Commerce Road,
Wood Green, London

Postcode: N22 8ED

Reason/s for representation

Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relevant it must be one that is
about the likely effect of the application on the Eromotion of the four licensing objectives.
Any representations that are considered o be vexatious or frivolous will not be considerad
{please see Haringey Council's leaflet Variations, Representations and Appeals
for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates).

Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each Licensing
Objective it relates to.

IL



Page 30

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder;

1 am the owner of e‘n{rsho’p with a premisesTicehce to sell alco H“ﬁy’;ﬁc:p").
The appli s shop is three doors ﬂﬂﬁr;h my shop. The Harirgey Councli

(“Couricil”) is the landlord shops.

There should be clause/covenantifth icant’s [ease prohibit
effectivei g alcohol from anQ:I:y;:os'ﬁtﬁ;:lptph‘;E vicinity OM he
i s Council iease could havé been varied at a time whefi the commercial
roperty officer of the Il was away on mat ity1{ve“.‘
Two neighbourifig shops both sellingal/::; st the Co cﬂ‘ﬁ'cy In any

evant, it makes no sense that oth selling aicohol.

My sho een established in its preses » Since_January 2014, and therefore |

havethe goodwili of ali th nsumers icchoi.

The only way the applicant co e with my Wcohol heaper
than my shop. This will1ra urally incrgla_s’e,tba.avai ility an nstm'rplﬁ: of aicohoi
and at th e time increage,lncidEh s of alcohoi abuqaﬁ;: local consumers.

This is against all four Licensing objectives, namely, (1) prevention of crime and
disorder, (2) pubiic safety, (3) the prevention of public nulsance and (4) the protection
of children from harm

The provision of a CCTV camera does not resoive the probiem. Licensing authority
must strive to prevent crime and disorder. CCTV would oniy deal with detection of
crime, not prevention of them.

i shouid point out that there are plenty of alcohol related problems locally aiready.
The iocation has an infamous reputation of being a young yobs corner. More than
that it is recognised iocally as somewhere in which the notorlous gangs known as
‘Wood Green Boys' and ‘Tottenham Boys’ often congregate. i believe the locai police
are very weil aware of the problems caused by the locai gangs in and around
Commerce Road. There are many social housing units and many HMOs ciose by.
The growth of HMOs in particular in the Immediate area has noticeably increased the
incidence of nuisance in the area. An additionai shop selling cheap alcohol opening
7 days a week from 8 am to 11 pm will only increase the probiem.

| note that there are other neighbours who have already made similar representations
to object to the appiication.

Public Safety:

The granting of the premises licence wili cause Issues with pubiic safety. See
representations made for in Section 1 above

The Prevention. of Pubiic Nuisance

The granting of the premises licence wiil increase the public nuisance in the area.
See representation made in section 1 above

' . NN



Page 31

The Protection of Children from Harm

There are schools in the area, The granting of the premises licence wili not be able to
protect children from harm from those who abuse alcohol. The See representations
made in section 1 above.

The Octagon AP Academy is located on Commerce Road. Its website describes itseif
as supporting “up to 70 primary and secondary learners who have experienced
difficuities with their learning and behavlour in mainstream school”, The schoot is
made up of “up to 25% of «...learners [who] have a Statement of Special Educational
Needs/Education Health Care Plan". Vuinerable chiidren will be at particular risk of
harm from those who abuse alcohol,

I.Mr Riza Yavuz, hearby deciare that ail information | have submitted is true and
correct,

Signed: Date:

— —
]

Piease send compieted form to:

Haringey Council Licensing Team
Alexandra House,

Level 6,

10 Station Road,

Wood Green

London, N22 7TR



Page 32

7 . _ From, \
o . twould Aot
WK B See {Mo&«er ofﬂ-hceuc_t
w tis area. We have enough
Trowh\w_ frem a\cono\ \ulowa andk
c(ru3 Selling. ®ur busines ore_
Saflethd Wecause of \Y-

Ik{c"xf D
2 9 MAR_2017




Page 33

Anderson Chanel

From:

Sent: 30 March 2017 11:47

To: Licensing

Subject: Application fro Drinks Licence by Yagnesh Patel at 8 Commerce Road Wood Green N22

Dear Sirs

I am the Lessee at Tenant of Haringey Council.

| am writing to object to the granting of a drinks Licence in respect of the above application as there is
already 1 such Licence on the Parade. The Parade is small and there is no need for a further licence.
We already have gangs of youths hanging around and a further Licence will aggravate the situation and

cause further disruption to the businesses on the Parade.

Kindly acknowledge safe receipt.

Sent from Windows Mail



Page 34

29" March 2017
BOROUGH OF HARINGEY

It has been made to our attention that an application has been made by Kajal News to open an
off-licence. We strongly object to this application as there is no need for another store in this small
parade to be selling alcohol. This road has seen a number of problems with drugs and alcohol and
adding another store to be selling alcohol will only add to the problems. There is already a rubbish
problem with bottles of alcohol being left on the street which can easily be picked up by a small
child or injure pedestrians and this rubbish will only increase with Kajal News selling alcohol as-
well. The opening of this application will also put a strain on the aiready struggling NHS as we

have already seen an increase in alcohol related problems with some of our patients.

We hope you take into consideration our concerns.

Many Thanks



Page 35

Appendix 3 - REPRESENTATION FROM METROPOLITAN POLICE



Page 36

%54, | METROPOLITAN
7\* POLICE

Working together for a safer London

POLICE REPRESENTATION

Name and address of premises:
Kajal News, 8 Commerce Road, Wood Green, London, N22 8ED.
Type of Application: New Premises Licence.
I wish to make representation on the following:
» Prevention of crime and disorder
If this application were granted in full or part, | would recommend the following

alterations be made to the licence conditions. ! also suggest that additional conditions
be attached to the licence, as set out below, to further promote the licensing objectives.

Current Conditions Recommendation

1 A digital CCTV system to be
installed in the premises.

Cameras must be sited to
observe the entrance doors from
both inside and outside.

Cameras on the entrances must
capture full frame shots of the
heads and shoulders of all
people entering the premises i.e.
capable of identification.

Cameras must be sited to cover
all areas to which the public
have access including any
outside smoking areas.

Provide a linked record of the
date, time of any image.

Provide good quality images -
colour during opening times.

Have a monitor to review images

F K01/37



Page 37

and recorded quality.

Be regularly maintained to
ensure continuous quality of
image capture and retention.

Member of staff trained in
operating CCTV at venue during
times open to the public.

Digital images must be kept for
31 days. The equipment must
have a suitable export method,
e.g. CD/DVD writer so that
Police can make an evidential
copy of the data they require.
Copies must be available within
a reasonable time to Police on
request.

An incident log shall be kept
at the premises and
made available on
request to the Police,
which will record the
following:

(a) all crimes
reported to the venue

(b) all ejections
of patrons

(c) any
complaints received

(d) any incidents
of disorder

(e) seizures of
drugs or offensive
weapons

(f) any faults in

the CCTV

system or

searching

equipment or

scanning

equipment

(g) any refusal
of the sale of alcohol

(h) any visit by a
relevant authority or
emergency service.

F K01/37




Page 38

If these conditions were accepted in full | would withdraw my representation.

Officer: Mark Greaves Tel: 020 3276 0150
Licensing Officer Haringey Police
Mark.Greaves@Met.Police. UK

Date: 3rd April 2017

F K01/37



Page 39 Agenda ltem 7

Report for: Licensing Sub Committee 20" April 2017
Iltem number:
Title: Application for a New Premises Licence: Alexandra Palace -

External Areas- Park and Hard Standing Areas- Alexandra Palace
Way, London N22,

Report
authorised by; Daliah Barrett-Licensing Team Leader ~ Regulatory Services.

Ward(s) affected:

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Not applicable

1.

1.1

Describe the issue under consideration

Members are requested to determine an application for a New Premises
Licence in respect of Alexandra Park grounds, having regard to
representations received and the requirement to promote the four licensing
objectives. The application is for an indefinite premises licence to be
granted for a capacity of up to 49,999 to cover a variety of events but with
constraints on the types of events and how many per year.

During the consultation period letters of representation were received from the
Responsible Authorities, namely the Enforcement Response, Metropolitan Police and
The Licensing Authority. Representations were also received from other parties.

This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because relevant

representations have been made. A mediation meeting was arranged by

Alexandra Palace to meet with residents prior to the Licensing Sub Committee
hearing.

The chart below shows the level of capacity for each size event (small, medium
& large), the regularity this type of event may occur.

These events would be where music Is the prime purpose of the event:

EVENT | CAPACITY REGULARITY
TYPE

LARGE { 15,000 - 30,000 4 times per year
MEDIUM | 5,000 - 14,999 3 times per year
SMALL | 0-4,999 9 times per year

The chart below shows the level of capacity for each size event (small, medium
& large) the regularity.
These events would be where music is not the prime purpose of the events:

EVENT | CAPACITY REGULARITY
TYPE

LARGE {20,000 - 50,000 3 times per year
MEDIUM | 5,000 — 19,999 8 times per year
SMALL | 0-4,999 15 times per year

Haringey



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41

A premises licence is required in respect of any premises where it is intended to
conduct one or more of the four licensable activities, these being:

* The sale of alcohol

* The supply of alcohol (in respect of a club)

* Regulated entertainment

* The provision of late night refreshment

The application seeks the following times for the various licensable activities:
Regulated Entertainment: Plays, Films, Boxing or Wrestling

Entertainments, Live Music, Recorded Music, Performance of Dance,
Provision of Facilities for Making Music, Provision of Facilities for Dancing

Monday to Saturday 0900 to 2230
Sunday 1000 to 2200
Supply of Alcohol

Monday to Saturday 0900 to 2230
Sunday 1000 to 2200

For consumption ON and OFF the premises

Opening Hours - Please note the area in question is an open park land and the
roadway running through it is accessible 24 hours a day 7 days a week.

The application has been properly made and all procedures correctly followed.
The application has been attached as Appendix A. At A1 is the noise management
plan carried by Vanguardia on behalf of Alexandra Palace.

1.2 Alexandra Palace itself already holds a Premises Licence and that licence does not
form any part of the matter under consideration on this application. The park
grounds are made up of 196 acres of park land and is surrounded mainly by
residential properties.

There is a private road that runs through it which is operated and maintained by the
Alexandra Palace Trust. The road is open for use by the public and is a designated
bus route for the W3 bus.

1.3  Representation has been received from:

Enforcement Response - B1

Licensing Authority -B2

Metropolitan Police -B3

Other Parties - C

Other Parties — against- C1

Other Parties -in support- C1

These are attached as Appendices B and C

2 Recommendations
The following options are open to the Panel:
(i} to grant the application in full and on the terms and conditions contained within
the application to include any applicabie mandatory conditions;

(il) to grant the application as above, modified to such an extent as considered
necessary to satisfy any relevant representations and promote the licensing

Haringey



Page 42

objectives; or
(iii) to reject the application in whole or in pan, if it is appropriate in promoting
the licensing objectives.

2. Licensing Policy and Government Advice

2.1 The Council has adopted a licensing policy and this is available from the Licensing
Section, and at the hearing. Relevant Sections of the policy are brought to the
attention of Members within the Licensing Officers report at section 4.0.

2.2 The Home Secretary has issued Guidance under Section 182 of the Licensing Act
2003. This Is available on the Government's website, www.homeoffice.gov.uk. It
was last revised in March 2015, Relevant Sections of this advice are brought to
Members attention within the Licensing Officers report.

3. Background

3.1 Alexandra Palace has hosted a variety of events in its outside space over a number of
years, this includes the Capital Radio Jazz Festival, annual fireworks event and
events such as the Red Bull Soap Box Event as well as other community based events
such as Foodies Festival and the Summer Festival events.

In the past Alexandra Palace have applied for individual licences to cover for any
licensable activity that was being undertaken at the events.

3.2 Under the Act representations can be received from Responsible Authorities or
other persons. Representations must be relevant and, in the case of other
persons, must not be frivolous or vexatious.

3.3 Noise management consideration

3.4 The majority of the representations received from ‘other parties’ voice concerns over the
likelihood of noise nuisance from external events.
The noise management report is advising of the probable areas of the park that
events could take place, the list and a map of the areas in question can be found at 2.2
and 2.3 of the the Vanguardia report. The report advises that the option of utilising the
15db above background as currently utilised at Finsbury Park may not be best suited
for Alexandra Palace and the option of setting a 75db level across the park would be the
most viable option in terms of enabling the applicants to be able to offer viable music
congcerts on site. The Enforcement Response officer has provided an informative briefing
note and recommendation at Appendix B1.

3.5 Noise Council code of practice on environmental noise at concerts The CIEH
website http://www.cieh.org/policy/noise council environmental noise.html offers the
following note about the Code of Practice:
“Large music events involving high powered amplification give pleasure to thousands of
people each year. However, the noise from these events can cause disturbance to
those living in the vicinity. The purpose of this code is to provide guidance on how such
disturbance or annoyance can be minimised.

Various guidelines and criteria are described in the code, covering a range of events
from a single concert to a full season. Compliance with the guidelines and the other
criteria given will enable successful concerts to be held whilst keeping to a minimum the
disturbance caused by the noise.

First published in 1995, the code does not take account of the Licensing Act 2003 and

Haringey



Page 43

should be used with caution as it is a code of practice and not statutory guidance.

There is a question about any “distinction between events which have music as their
primary purpose and those which do not have music as their primary purpose. All
extemal events which will create noise levels over and above background levels should
be considered together. It is the impact in terms of noise nuisance which is Important
not the nature of the event.” A copy of the Code of Practice is attached at Appendix D.

Where events have noise which is licensable or not then the Enforcement Response
team will investigate complaints and apply the nuisance criteria to any action which they
may take,

3.6 One of the representations submitted presented an additional noise management report
which was carried out in September 2011 called a “Research into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise from Concerts this was sponsored by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs [DEFRA]. It was a social study of attitudes to
music noise of those residing in the vicinity and those attending such events.

The Enforcement Response Officer has provided an explanatory briefing note of
The report at Appendix E.

3.7 Concerns raised in Representations from Other Parties: Appendix B

The letters of representation against the application highlight the following:

The frequency of events

proposed noise levels.

The disruption to the area caused by events.

The behaviour of crowd as they ingress and egress the events.
Potential for road ciosures and traffic diversions.

The hours for licensable activities in particular with the showing of films.
Alcohol availability at events.

Letters in support of the application have welcomed: Appendix C
 The opportunity to lift the profile of the area
» The revenue it will bring to the area
» Businesses were in support of the application.

3.8 The prevention of public nuisance could include low level nuisance, perhaps
affecting a few people living locally. Licence conditions should not duplicate other
legislation.
Necessary and appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive
periods and may address disturbance as customers enter or ieave the premises, but it
is essential that conditions are focused on measures within the direct control of the
licence holder.

Other Legislation

Environmental Health Officers have extensive powers under the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 to control a noise nuisance, including a power of immediate
closure.

4. Policy Implications

4.1 The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of the State’s guidance and
the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. Where the
decision departs from either the Guidance or the Policy clear and cogent reasons must
be given. Members should be aware that if such a departure is made the risk of appeal /

Page 4 of 6 aringny

LONDON



Page 44

challenge is increased.

4.2 The Licensing Authority considers that restrictions may be made to the proposed
hours of use where, after receiving relevant representations, the council
considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives to do so.
The council will take into account the existing pattem of licensed premises in an
area when considering what is appropriate to promote the objectives.
Applications which are significantly out of character for a locality wili need to
demonstrate that granting the hours sought will not impact on the licensing
objectives, given the potential for neighbouring premises to be adversely impacted.
In considering this application Members will be aware of the makeup of the area and the
location of the venue and give consideration to the potential for noise nuisance to
nearby residents. This is not limited to music noise but also includes people noise from
patrons leaving the venue at various times throughout an evening/night, that prolongs
any noise nuisance for residents.

4.3 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003:
As stated in the guidance “Each application on its own merits”
Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy;

¢ In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden
of proof, that is “the balance of probability.”

* in all cases Members should consider whether or not primary legislation
is the appropriate method of regulation and should only consider licence
conditions when the circumstances in their view are not already
adequately covered elsewhere,

» The Government has advised that conditions must be tailored to the
individual type, location and characteristics of the premises and events
concerned. Conditions cannot seek to manage the behaviour of
customers once they are beyond the direct management of the licence
holder and their staff and standardised conditions should be avoided
where they cannot be shown to be appropriate. (1.16/1.17)

4.4 The Council’s Licensing Policy generally expects applicants to address
the licensing objectives and discuss how to do this with the relevant
responsible authorities.

The Licensing Authority expects applicants to have sought advice and to be

able to explain how they will address problems, especially where a negative impact is
likely on local residents or businesses. The Licensing Policy recognises that staggered
hours can make a positive contribution to alcohol related issues but that consideration
will be given to imposing stricter conditions in respect of noise control where premises
are close to residents.

4.5 The obvious areas for Members to consider, if they believe there is a problem
and it is proporticnate to consider conditions are:
» Can internal works, actions or equipment reduce the noise leakage
» Does the problem justify curtailing the activities that are being requested. If
* Members are minded to do this they must ensure conditions are clear and
readily enforceable. For example “Classical Music Only” is not capable of legal
definition and is unenforceable.

Haringey



Page 45

» Does the problem justify limiting the hours or place of particular activities.
For example “no music in specific ares of the venue at any time and no music
past 22:30hrs” although the premises can stay open until 01:00hrs™

4.6 The Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions to prevent nuisance, in
Particular Members may wish to consider the following: (this list is not exhaustive):

*» hours of apening {this needs to be balanced against potential disorder caused by
artificially early closing times)

* Whether certain parts should be restricted in their use

* Whether or not certain activities should have to close at an early hour,
for example live music '
Conditions controlling noise or vibration (for example, noise limiters).
Prominent clear and legible notices at all exits requesting the pubiic to
respect the needs of local residents and leave the premises and area

quietly.
5.0 Equalities impact

At the time of writing this report there were no implications for equality and
diversity. Any decision taken by the Licensing Sub-Committee will be in
accordance with the four licensing objectives as prescribed by the Licensing Act
2003,

6. Otbher considerations

6.1 Human Rights
While all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of particular relevance
to the application are:
o Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life.
Article 1 of the First Protocol - Protection of Property
Article 6(1) — Right to a fair hearing.
Article 10 - Freedom of Expression

Qo

7 Use of Appendices

Appendix A Application form and supporting document
Appendix A1 - Copy of Noise Report from Vanguardia

Appendix B- Representations received.

Appendix B1- Enforcement Response

Appendix B2 - Licensing Authority

Appendix B3 - Metropolitan Police

Appendix C - Other Parties

Appendix C1- Other Parties - Against application

Appendix C2 Other Parties -In support of appiication

Appendix D - Code of Pragtice on Environmental Noise at Concerts
Appendix E ~ Briefing on Research into Attitudes to Environmental Noise from Concerts

Background papers: Section 182 Guidance
Haringey Statement of Licensing Policy

Haringay



Page 46

Appendix A — APPLICATION FORM



Page 47

LICENSING ACT 2003
Seciion 17

Application for a premises licence to be

granted under the LicenT[n%Ar.t_znﬂa |
i CIL Haringey
| Reference number
27 FEB 2017
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING tMI

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

Ii you are completing this form by hand please wnite lagibly in block capitals. In afl cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if nacessary
You maywish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records

*'We Alexandra Palace Trading Limkted

apply for a premises license under section 17

the Licansing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) and tiwe
are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with
section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 - Premises detalis
Alexandra Palace

Alexandra Palace Way

Postown [LOMON T Tpostone [rmarar_]
———
Telephone number at premises(if any) I 0208 365 2121 I

Non-domestic rateable value of premisas £100

Part 2 - Applicant detaiis
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as

Please tick O yas
a)  anindividual or individuals* [l pleass complete section {A)
b) apersonotherthan an individual*
. as a limited company [J please complete section (B)
ii. asa partnership please complete section (B}
Ii. as an unincorporated association; or please compiete section {B)
lv. other{for example a statutory corparation) A please complete section (B)

2 1 nam

{1} Insert name and address of relevant kcensing authority and its reference number (cplional)
& _Insert namefs)of epplicant _




Page 48

c)  arscognisadclub
d) acharity
e) the proprietor of an educational establishment

f}  a health service body

g} apersonwho is registered under Part 2 of the
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) In respect of an
independent hosplital

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in
England and Wales

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b} please confirm:

« 1am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business

[J please complete section (B)
[l piease compiete section {B}
O please complete section (B)

[l please complete section (8)
"] please complete section (B)

[J please complete section {B)

which invoives the use of the premises for licensable actvities; or

s | am making the application pursuant to
- a statutory function: or

- a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

(A} INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fik in as applicable)

Me [ Mrs [ Miss [] Ms ]

Please tick yes
[J
0
0
Other title

{for oxampla, Rev)

Surnama First names

Piease tick O yes Day Month  Year
Iam 18 years old or over 0 Da‘L-m

Current postal address if different from premises address

Post town

Postcods

Daytime contac! telephone number

E-mail address
{opllanal)




Page 49

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

Mr [] Mrs [ Miss [} Ms ] Other title

{for example, Rav)

Surname . First names

Flensetick O yos Day  Month Year

lam 18 yeafs old or over 3| ‘Dale of birth

Current postal address if different from premises address

Posttown Poslcode

Dayiime contac( {elephone number

E-mail address
{optionat)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate piease
give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a
body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Alexandm Palace Tmcit{j Lim llhea(

Name

Address -

A emomo{m Palme \/\)o\\/

Z,Or\oton
N1 FAT

Registered number (where applicabls)

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated associalion efc. }

Charitable Eruvsh overseelm o heri !‘%-e__ ev\\%vﬁanghmen}'
Le .

Telephone number (ifany) 208 3465 .

E-mail address (optional)




Page 50

Part 3 - Operating Schedule
Day Month  Year

When do you want the premises licences to start? O )V|[0¢|2 0 |

=4

Day Month  Year
If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited

period, when do you want it to end?

Please give a general description of the Premises (piesse read guidanca note 1)

people each year.

50,000 per day

existing premises license in place for the Alexandra Palace.

bus route (W3).

Alexandra Park has a rich history of staging events and was home to a horse racing
track which until 1870 hosted some very large race meetings and as London's only race
track. The Park has also hosted events such as the Capltal Radio Jazz festival and
consistently since its creation has hosted one of London premier fireworks displays.
Since 2009 the events business at Alexandra Palace has grown with the venue
becoming one of London's premier entertainment venues, walcoming over ons million

In recent years the park has hosted events such as the Red Bull Soap Box Race
altended by 20,000 visitors and the annual Fireworks display which is attended by

The Park is made up of 195 acres of public park tand and operated and maintained by
Alexandra Palace charitable trust. The site is home to 9 separate tenants including a
Garden Centre, Children's Nursery and a Boating Leke. The Park is also home to
Alexandra Palace which currently holds a premises license for Its events. It is Important
to note that the license application for Alexandra Park is a separate license to the

The Park has a private road running through it which is operated and maintained by
Alexandra Palace Charitable Trust The Road is opean for public use and Is a designated




Page 51

If 5,000 or more peopie are expecled o attend the premises at
any ane lime, please state the number expecied to atiend

Th s premisas license will allow for a variaty for events o take
place with the park with maximum capacily of 50,000
permitted up {o 3 timss a year

The following table (a) shows the maximum amount of evants
that will be staged that reiate to events where music is
pnmary pumpose of entertatnment

Table a)

"EVENT TYPE CAPACITY REGULARITY
LARGE 15,000 - 30,060 4 times per vear
MEDIUM 5,000 - 14,999 3 times per vear
SMALL 0-~4599 9 times per vear

The following table (b) shows the maximum amount of events
that wiil be staged that relate to events where music is not the
primary purpose of entertalnmant

Table b)
EVENT TYPE CAPACITY REGULARITY
LARGE 20,000 - 50,000 d times per year
MEDIUM 5,000 - 19,999 8 times per year
SMALL 0-4.099 15 limes per year




Page 52

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Scheduls 1 and 2 lo the Licensing Act 2003)

Provislon of regulated entertainment

a)  plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films (if tick ng yes, fili in box B)

c) Indoor sporting events (If ticking yes, fill In box C)

d)  boxing or wrestling entertainment {If tcking yes. fli in box D)
e)  hve music ( f ticking yes, fillin box E)

f) racorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g) periormances of dance {if tick ng yes, fill in box G)

h)  anything of a simdar description to that falling within (&), (f} or (g)
(if ticking yes, fillin box H)

Provision of entertalnment facilities for:

) making music (if ticking yss, fill in box 1)

)} dancing {if ticking yes, fili in box J)

k)  eniertainment of a simliar descripton to that falling within (1) or (j)
(I ticking yes, fill in box K)

Provision of late night refreshment {if ticking yes, fitl in box L)

Supply of alcohot {If ticking yes, fiil in box M)

in all cases complete boxes N, O and P



Page 53

A
lays Will the performance of a play take place indoors or outdoors or both
ard days and timings [ - Mease tick [7] (psasoread guidance noto 2)
. indoors [ Outdoons m Both [
Day] Start | Finish
.00 230 Please give further detalls here (please read guidancs note 3)
%e 00 2230
HNed 109.00 22.30 State any seasonal vartations for perfarming piays {pleate tead guidance nole 4)
Thwi09.00  R3.30
hﬁrl 00 2230
f [09.00 22.30
un [10.00 22.00
B .
Films Wil the exhibition of fims take place indoors or outdoors or both
Standard days and lim ~ please tick D{phumumnumzl

Indoors ]  Outdoors g' Both [

All flms shown will have the coect egs T in place and o fidkel

hoiders will nead to be able to show |D in order to acoess the fiim
screaning as a condition of entry

J[ ' =

Flims will aim to start at sunset so the 23,00 #s needed for films in high
summer

109.00

| Non-standsrd timings. Where you iniand 1o Uss the premisss for e extabinon

of fiims at different imes from thoae listed In the column on the teft, pleaseiist
(please rend guidoncs nots 5)

P00

N/A all films will be shown within the times shown in the teft column

10.00

Ri.00




Page 54

Indoor sporting [Please glve further detsils here (please read guidance note f
levents
Standard days and timings
{please read guidancanoie 8) VA this is for outdoor events only.
Day] Start Finish
Mon
%‘m State any - easonal v.rations for indoor sporting events
{pleasa read guidancenocle 4)
Wed
%hur Non-standard tmings. W here you ntend o use the premi-es for Indoor
sporting events at different times from those iisted in the column an the left,
please ils| (please read guidanca not= 5)
ﬂFn
Sat
Sun
Boxing or wrestiing |Will the boxing or wrestling entert inment 'ake piace indoors or outdoors or
entertainments both - plaase tick D tplease read gud.nce note 2)
Standard days and timings
(plsase read guidanca nota & Indoors [  Outdoors JZ/ goth [
Start Finish
09.00 22.30 Please give further detaiis here (please read guidance nats 3)
Tue 109.00 22.30
ed [09.00 22,30 State any seasonal varialions for boxing or wrestling entertainment
(pleass read guidance note 4}
[Thurjsoo [230
Fri 109.00 22.30 Non-standard limings. W here you intend to use the premises for boxng or
wrestiing enlerfainment at different times from those listed in the column an the
left, piease ils! (pleass read guidancs nols 5)
Sat 109.00 22.30
Sun 000 fzoo




Page 55

E
Live music TWill the pe_tformanca of live music {ake place ndoors or outdoors or both
ll jard days and limings |~ please tick [ ] tplease read guidance note 2)
plsase read guidance nols 6)
Indoors Cutdoors E/ Both
Day| Start Finish O L
n 109.00 22.30
~|}=ull defails regarding how live music wiil operate within the park can be
ound In the operating schedule
Tue j09.00 22.30
Waed [09.00 22.30 There will be no seasonal variations
Thur [09.00 22.30
fF 900 230 There will be a limit {o the amount of times live music can be staged
within Alexandra Park. This has been shown within the aperating
schedule. The license will ailow for 4 large music events up {o 30k, 3
Sal [09.00 230 medium sized music events up to 15k and 9 smaller muslc events up o
5k. A full breakdown of this is shown In the operating schedule
Sun [L0.00 22.00

Recorded music

Will the playing of recorded music take piace ndoors or outdoors or both
- please tick (ploase read guikianca note 2)

Indoors []  Ouldoors ’Z( Both [

Tue [09.00 230

k\'ed 09.00  [z.30

Thur09.00 22.30

Fi 900 230 |The recording of live music may take place in connecton with alve
event or as a stand alone aspec! of entertatnment

Sat [09.00  p230

Sun [1000  Rz.00




Page 56

Performances of Wil the performance of dance take placs indoars or outdoor: or both
dance - piease tick [© | (plesse road guidance note 2)
mdard ;l:'y: and limings
88 read guidance nots 0) Indoors Outdoors JZ]/ Beih
Day{ Stert Finish O D
Mon [09.00 22.30 Please give further details here (piease read guidance note 3)
Tue [09.00 22,30
Wed{09.00 22.30 State any ssasonal variations for the performance of dance
{please read guidance nole 4)
[Thur [09.00 230
[P 09.00 22.30 Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the pramises for the
performance of dance entertainment at different tme: from those fisted n the
column on the left, please list (plaase read guidance note 3)
Sat [09.00 22.30
Sun [10.00 22.00
Anything of a sImilar |Piease give a description of the type of entertainment you will be prov.ding
description to that
falling within (e}, (f)
or (g)
Standard days and timings
tpleasa read guidsnce note 6)
Start Finigh | Wil this entertainment take place Indoors or ouldoors ar both
Mon - please tick (plense raad guidance nate 2)
Indoors [[] Outdoors [} Both [}
Tue - Please give further delalls here (please read guidance note 3)
Wed
Thur State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar description fo that
fafling within {e}, {f) or {g) (please read guidance note 4)
Fri
Sat Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for lhe
entertalnment of similar description to that falling within (e), {f) or (g) 2t different
times from lhose listed In the coiumn on the left, pisase list
{ploag read guidance
Sun fot8 )




Page 57

Provision of Please give a description of the facilities for making mu:ic you will be providing
facilities for No fixed facilitles for making music have been pianned to date

making music

Standard days and timings
{please read guidance note )

[Day] Start Finish

Wil the facilities for mak.ng music be indoors or outdoors or both

- please tick (plzase read guidsnca note 2}
[ ease lnd;?r:; O Outdoors E’ Both |

IMon 00 22.30

Lrue 9.00 22.30

Piease give further delails here (plaase read guidanc - nota 3]

Wad (09.00 22,30

State any seasonal vanations for the provision of faciities for making music
{plvase raad guidance nola 4)

Thur [09.00 22,30

i [09.00 22.30

AlNon-slandard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for pravision of

facilities for making music at different times from thase listed in the column on
the iefl, please list (please read guidance rote 5)

Sat [09.00 22.30

Sun }10..00 22.00

J

Provision of facifities

for dancing

Standard days and timings

{please read guidance note 8)

Day| Start | Finish

Wil the facilities for dancing be indoors or outdeors or both
- please tick {please read gu dance nol- 2)

Mon 0900  [22.30

Indoors []  Outdoors z]/ Both []

Please give further details here {plesse read guidance note 3)

Tue §09.00 22.30

Wed 09.00 22.30

State any seasonal variations for providing danc ng faciiities
{pleasa read guidancanole 4)

Thur|09.00 2.30

Fri  [09.00 22.30

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the pramises for the provisian

of facilities for dancing entertalnment al different tmes from those iisted in the
column of the left, please iist (please read gudance note 5

Sat [09.00 22,30

Sun [10.00 22,00




K

Page 58

for entartainment of
a similar description
to that faliing within

iord

Slandard days and #imings
{plaase read guidanca note 8)

Provision of facillties | Piease give a description of the type of enlerlainment facility you wii be

providing
N/A

Wili the ent ent facillty be indoars ar outdoors or both
- piaase tick {please read guidance nole 2)

Day[ Start | Finish

Indoors [[] Outdoors {] Both [

Mon

|Please give further details here (pleasaread guidanca nota 3)

s

ed

Stale any seasonal varialions for the provision of facilities for entertanment of a
Isimilar description to that falling within 1 or J (pleasa read guidance note 4,

Fhur

.

Non-standard timings. Where you inlend to use the prem se: for the provizion
of faciillies for entertainment of a similar description {o that falling within i or J

at different times from thase listed in the column on the left, please list

Sat

{pleasn read guidance nole 5)

Sun




Page 59

L
Late night Wili the provisian o late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or
refreshment both - piease tick [ (plesse read guidance note 2)
tandard days and timings
S (o s nos 0) Indoors []  Outdoors M Both []
.Start_ | Finish
Mon Please give further details here (pieaseread gudancasots 3)
L N/A
Tue
Wed Stale any seasonal variations for the provision of Iate night refreshment
{pleasa read guidanca note 4)
Thur
iﬁi Non-standard imings. Where you intend to use the premises for the provis.
of late night refreshment at different times from thosa iisted in the column o
the lefl, please iisi (please read guidanca nota 5)
S_at
Sun
Supply of alcohol Will the sale of alcohoi be for consumption
- please tick box D {pleass read guidance nota 7)
Slandardddamnd llmisr,tgs
(ploaseread g canote
On the premises Off the premises Both
Day|_ Start_] Finish O 5 Ll =
Mon [09.00 22.30 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol
LI:or fuk details relating to the supply of alcohol please refar to the
Tos b9.00 R perating scheduled attached to this document
ﬁNed 09.00 22 .30
Thur 09.00 22.30 Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the supply of
alcohol at different times from those itsted in the coiumn on the left, please his
(please tead guidance note 8)
Fi jo.00 230
Sat [09.00 22.30
Sun [10.00 22.00




Page 60

State the nama and details of the Individual whom you wish to specify on the license as premi-e: supervi-or

Persona) Licence:

Issued by: City of Westminlister
Valld from October 2005

——.N—

Pieasa highlight any adult ent=rlalnment or serv'ces, activities, other enlertainment or matters anc llaryto
the use of the premises thal may give rise to concern in raspect of chidren (pleaaread guidance note 8)

No aduli entertainment will take placa as part of this license

0O

Hours premises are
pen to the publlc

Standard days and tmings
|(please re-d guidance nota 6)

State any seasonal variations (please read guid nce note 4)

Alexandra Park is a public park open to the public at all times with no
clear way lo restrict access at any bmes, With Alexandra Paiace Way, a
highway used by both the general public and London Transport running

Day| Star Fini-h

through the Park, the noled premises will remain open to access al all
times. Therefore the requirements of this license refer to the activity that
may take piace raiher than when the park will be open. Hours stated
within this license relate to licensable activity within an agraed

Tue

licensable area shown within tha ESMP.

ad

Each avent will have a full event management plan which will show
whether the site wilt have restricled or unrestricted access o the

licensable aclivily. This avent management plan will be specific o each

Thur

Fn

Sat

Sun

Non-standard tmings. Whare you intend to use the premises fo be open lo the
public at different times from those i sted In the coiumn on the left, please list
(please read guidanca nota 5)




Page 61

P Describe the steps you intend to take lo promole the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing abjeclives (b, c, d, e) (please road guidance note 9)

Pleasc see attached Operating schedule for more details on sect on Pa -Pd

b) The preveniion of crime and disorder

Please see atiached Operating schedule for more details on section Pa -Pd

c¢) FPublic safety

Please scc attached Opcrating scheduie for more details on section Pa -Pd

d} The prevention of public nuisance

Please see uttached Operating schedule for more details on section Pa -Pd

€) The protection of children from harm

Please sec attached Operating schedule for more details on section Pa -Pd




Page 62

CHECKLIST:

]

NEKDDDSKQ

* | have made or enclosed payment of the fee
¢ { have enclosed the pian of the premises

= | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible
authorities and others where applicable

* [ have enclosed the consentform completed by the individuat | wish io
be premises supervisor, if applicable

» |understand that | must now advertise my appiicat on

* |understand thal if | do not comply with the above requirements my
application wilt be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD

SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT
IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH TH!IS APPLICATION

Part 4 - Signatures (pleass read gudancanot 10)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (Piesse read guidancanots 11}
if signing on behalf of the applicapt piease state In what capacity.

Signature i
pate 24 [21F
Capacily [)trectOr oF évent O‘; raldons

Far joint appiications signature of 2nd applicant, 2nd applicant's salicitor or other authorised agent.
{Piease raad guidance nola 12}

if signing on behaif of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Slgnature

Date

Capacity

I‘(;:ntacl name (where not previously given) and postal address for cormespaondence associated
h this application (piease read guidance nete 13)

Alaxandra Palace
Alexandra Palace Way

Post town London Postcode N22 7AY

Telephone number (if any} 0208 365 2121
If you wouid prefer us to comespond with you by e-mall your e-malt address (optional)




Page 63

Notes for Guldance

1.

10.

11

12.

13,
14,

Doscribe the premises. For example the type of premises, lts generai situalion and fayout and any other
information which could be relevant 1o the licenzing objectives. Where your application inciudes off-
supplies of alcohol and you ‘ntend io provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies you must
include a descriplion of where the place wii be and iis proximity to the premises.

Where lak'ng place in a buliding or ather structure pleasa tick as appropriate. indoors may include a tant.
Far example the type of actvity to be authorised, if not Iready stated, and give relevant further details,
for example (but nol exclusvely) whether or not music will be amplified or unampl ed.

For example {but not exclusively), whera the actvity will ocour on additional days during the summer

months.

For example (but not exc'usively), whera you wish the aclivity o go on longer on a particular day e.g.

Christmas Eva.

Please give imings in 24 hour clock {e.g 16:00) and only give details for the days of the week when you
ntend the prem:ses to be used for Ihe activity.

If you wish paople to be able to consume aicohol on the prem -as please lick ‘on the premises’, if vou
wish peaple to be able to purchase alcohof to consume away from the premises please tick ‘off the
preml:es'. If you wish peaple 1o be abia to do both please tick bothy'.

Piease give information about anything intended to occur at the prem ses or ancillary to the use of the
premises which may give rise to concern in respect of childran, regardless of whelher you intend
children to have acces: to the premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudity or seml-nudity, /ims for

restricted age groups, the presence of gaming machines.
Please I'st here steps you will take to promole all four licensing objeclives together,
The appilcation form must be signed

An applicant's agent (for exampie solicitor) may sign the form on the r behalf provided that they have
actual authority to do so.

Where there is more than cne applicant. both appiicants or their respecive aganits must sign the
application form.

This Is the address which we shall use to carrespond with you about this application.

The Infermalion you have pravided will be held by the Councl on computerised and manual files. The
d:'a may Iso be disclosed to ather depariment: wihin the Cauncil or other organisations, but only in
order to ensure compliance with refevant legisiation or lo datect and prevent fraud or a crime.



Page 64

vehicle gate east
o V. |
efo N ondon k23 Ty
s Sl RPN m _“ T: 444 {0 208 365 2121
f HELDS patrct
R ]

\\\ COVERED UNDER ALEXANDRA PALACE PREMISES LICENSE b/ o g f reoeon e ALEXANDRA PARK
& ™ PROPOSED SITE FOR
/A NOT COVERED BY LICENSE APPLICATION J __ LICENSABLE ACTIVITY
/ 24.02-17| 1:6000 @ A4

i z.—x chpghned:
s AP,17.15/01




Page 65

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 General information

Included in this Operating Schedule is general information and event management detail relating to
the application for a Premises License to be granted to Alexandra Palace Trading Limited. The
Operating Schedule may include issues that are covered under legislation other than the Licensing
Act 2003. These have been included to demonstrate responsible management of the Park as a
whole. These are not issues that should be recorded as licence conditions as they are a duplication
of other legislation and the licensing framework is quite specific in warning against imposing licence
conditions that repeat what is enacted in other legislation.

It is intended that a variety of events would be held under this Premises License throughout each
year. Each event will have individual requirements and will vary in size. For this reason, each event
will be required to produce an Event Safety Management Plan {ESMP) which will contain specific
information to each event. The ESMP will remain a work in progress document that may only be
subject to changes which are not major variations to the granted Premise License and with the
consent of the Licensing Authority up to 7 days before the commencement of each event or within a
timeframe to be specified by the Licensing Authority. Any changes will not adversely impact on
promoting the Licensing Objectives or the draft of suggested License Conditions that APTL have
provided in Section 32 of this Operating Schedule for the consideration of the Licensing Authority.



Page 66

1.3 Abbreviations

APPCT Alexandra Park and Palace Charitable Trust

APTL Alexandra Palace Trading Limited

ccTv Close Circuit Television

DBS Disclosure and Barring Service

DPS Designated Premises Supervisor

ECR Event Control Room

ECRM Event Control Room Manager

EHO Environmental Health Officer

ELT Event Liaison Team

ESG Event Safety Guide - A guide to health, safety & welfare at
music and similar events

ESMP Event Safety Management Plan

FOH Front of House

LAS London Ambulance Service

LBH Londan Borough of Haringey

LBF London Fire Brigade

LPG Liquid Petroleum Gas

MIpP Major Incident Plan

NMP Noise Management Plan

0s Operating Schedule

PET Polyethylene Terephtalate

PLH Premises Licence Holder

PNC Police National Computer

PSIA Private Security Industry Association

TESS The Event Safety Shop

TMP Traffic Management Plan

TRO Traffic Regulation Order

SAG Safety Advisory Group



Page 67

2. GENERAL INFORMATION

2.1 Background

This license application relates to the parkland of Alexandra Park and does not cover the areas of the
site that are covered by the current Premises License for Alexandra Palace. However, Alexandra Park
and Palace Charitable Trust (APPCT) through its trading subsidiary, Alexandra Palace Trading Limited,
has a great deal of experience delivering a wide variety of events from exhibitions and sporting
events to concerts and large outdoor events. Throughout these events, APTL has a proven track
record of complying with the Licensing Objectives to ensure compliance.

Alexandra Park has a rich history of staging events and was home to a horse racing track, which until
1970 hosted some very large race meetings and as London’s only race track. The Park has also
hosted events such as the Capital Radio Jazz festival and consistently since its creation has hosted
one of London premier fireworks displays. Since 2009 the events business at Alexandra Palace has
developed strongly and become one of London’s premier entertainment venues, welcoming over
one million people each year. Although the Park has been used in part for events under specific
licenses e.g. The Red Bull Soap Box Derby and annual Fireworks Display, it is an area that has not
been utilised to its full potential,

Operationally APTL have delivered its events programme with little or no impact on the Park or local
residents. Each event has been delivered within its own bespoke operational framework for
delivering events within the Park has been a barrier to the development of events in the Park and is
operationally inefficient. The reason that APTL is applying for a Premises License is to allow events to
take place within the Park within an agreed framework.

APTL will work with preferred and experienced contractors to deliver each event, covering aspects
such as crowd management, noise monitoring and management, traffic management, medical
provision, staging and demonstrable structures, trading and waste removal. Each of these aspects
will be required to have its own risk assessment and method statement and will form part of the
Event Safety Management Plan for each event.

The impact of any event on local residents will be mitigated to a fair and reasonable level with
considerations and policies in place to manage issues such as frequency of events, noise, crowd and
transport impact. APTL commits to ensuring each event has a dedicated phone number & email
address for residents to provide feedback pre, post and during each event which will be
communicated to the residents through a variety of mediums.

2.2 Description of Premises

Alexandra Park consists of 196 acres of undulating and flat parkland with some tarmacked areas. The
Park has 12 entrances and a private road running through It. It is serviced by a bus route and an over
ground train station. As previously mentioned the Park has a long history of holding large scale
public events; from the annual fireworks display attended by 50,000 to events such as the Red Bull
Soap Box Derby attended by 15,000 people. In its distant history, the Park itself was home to the
Alexandra Palace House Race Course.



Page 68

2.3 Site Plan of Alexandra Park

The plan below shows the site where the license is sought. The area within red shows the is area
covered by the existing Alexandra Palace Premises License




Page 69

3. OVERVIEW OF MANAGEMENT OF ALEXANDRA PARK

3.1 Strategic Management Team

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

The Chief Executive of Alexandra Park and Palace Charitable Trust has overall responsibility for the
work of the Trust and its trading company

Deputy Chief Executive

The DCEOQ is responsible for the operational and commercial management of Alexandra Park and
Palace.

Director of Event Operations

The Director of Event Operations is responsible for activities relating to event planning and delivery

3.2 Operational Management Team
Park Management

Alexandra Park is managed by The Alexandra Park Manager on a day to day basis on behalf of
Alexandra Palace and Park Charitable Trust. This role takes responsibility for the management,
cultivation and safety of activities within the Park. A dedicated grounds team operated under
contract is responsible for the upkeep of the park. Although a key stakeholder the Parks Manager
and the grounds team are not responsible for the delivery of the licensing objectives

Event Day Management

Each event will have a nominated event manager who will take respensibility of the operational
planning, coordination and delivery of each event. At times when the lead event manager is not on
site a nominated duty manager will take on the role as the iead site manager.

When either party is operating in this role they will be responsible for all tactical and operational
decisions across the site. (Classified internally as a Silver role)

The team responsible for this will be based within Alexandra Paiace. During an event this role is likely
to be based in a remote position within the park or sitting as the lead manager within the Event
Liaison Team {ELT).



Page 70

Event Liaison Team

The Event Liaison Team (ELT) is the key team responsible for ensuring operational decisions are
carried out as required by the Event Manager (Venue 1). This team is detailed later within the
licensing objectives.

3.3. Safety Advisory Group

Throughout the Operating Schedule, reference is made to the Safety Advisory Group. This group
would normally comprise of representatives from London Borough of Haringey Licensing, London
Borough of Haringey Environmental Health Services, London Borough of Haringey Health & Safety,
London Borough of Haringey Trading Standards and Emergency Planning, Metropolitan Police
Services, London Fire Brigade and London Ambulance Service. Detailed and regular pre-event
meetings will be held with the London Borough of Haringey and other statutory agencies through
the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) to ensure that all bodies are satisfied with the planning
arrangements.

3.4 Contractors

For all events that take place within Alexandra Park competent contractors will be used. Unless
approved by the Safety Advisory Group the traffic management, crowd management and medical
provision will be delivered by the suppliers already contracted to Alexandra Palace. These teams
have gone through robust checks and are regularly reviewed to ensure safe delivery, competence
and good customer experience. All contractors have suitable experience of delivery within the site
and are trained in Alexandra Palace emergency procedures.

Additional contractors for an event will be suitably vetted by APTL to ensure experience, adequate
liability insurance and risk assessments.

3.5 Catering Management

For all events when alcohol is served a designated premises supervisor (DPS) will be the main point
of contact for correspondence with licensing authority regarding any matters relating to the sale of
Alcohol. Whenever alcohol is being served the bar operation will always ensure a suitable number of
staff who hold a personal license.

The details of the catering operation will be included within the ESMP and will cover the following.
s Adequate supervision of alcohol sales
¢ Adoption of the Challenge 25 policy, including clear signage.

» That all refusals are noted and logged and made available to view on request by the
appropriate persons

* That all staff serving alcohol with receive suitable training and that all training records will be
kept for reference



Page 71

4.0 THE LICENSE APPLICATION

4.1 Premises Capacity

The maximum capacity sought for this license is 50,000 limited to a fixed amount of times per anum.
As previously mentioned the Park has hosted several large events in the past up to this capacity and
is well equipped to manage events of varying sizes. Due to the history of larger capacity crowds
attending the venue ingress and egress plans have been tried and tested successfully and APTL
commit to ensuring that access to the premises will continue to be controlled and all areas
monitored to ensure that safe crowd densities are not exceeded. On all ticketed events a suitable
and sufficient means of counting visitors into the Premises will be put in place to ensure the
maximum permitted capacity is not exceeded. The event specific ESMP will contain how the
intended capacity will be reached and capacity for each event will be agreed via the SAG prior to the
event being publicly announced. A specific risk assessment including an ingress and egress plan will
be produced along with a detailed stewarding and security schedule.

4.2 Event Type, Capacity and Regularity

APTL commissioned The Event Safety Shop (TESS), one of the leading event safety consultants in the
events in industry, to produce a site survey. The findings of the report identified safe capacities
within each area of the park and also the types of events that would be suitable in each space.

On further examination of the findings of the report and relation to the subsequent report provided
by Vanguardia Acoustics to look at ways of limiting noise impact outside of the Park to mitigate
impact of each event on local residents, Park users and relevant stakeholders. APTL would like to
apply for a Premise License that encompasses two event types. The first type would be where the
main Licensing Activity was live or recorded music and other subsequent Licensing Activities i.e.
dancing is the prime purpose of the event. The second type would be where music is not the prime
purpose of the activity.

4.2.1 Event Type 1.

The chart below shows the level of capacity for each size event {small, medium & large), the
regularity this type event may occur. These events would be where music is the prime purpose of
the event and the levels required to deliver those events;

EVENT TYPE CAPACITY REGULARITY

LARGE 15,000 - 30,000 4 times per year
MEDIUM 5,000 - 14,999 3 times per year
SMALL 0-4,999 9 times per year




Page 72

4.2.2 Event Type 2.

The chart below shows the level of capacity for each size event (small, medium & large) the
regularity. The events would be where music is not the prime purpose and the levels required to
deliver these events;

EVENT TYPE CAPACITY REGULARITY
LARGE 20,000 - 50,000 3 times per year
MEDIUM 5,000~19,999 8 times per year
SMALL 0-4,999 15 times per year

APTL will commit to operating no events after 22:30 Monday to Saturday and 22:00 on a Sunday, the
only exception to this is when showing a film where the license requirement is extended to 23:30.

On all events covered under this license where amplified live or recorded music is the primary
source of entertainment an acoustic consultant will produce an event specific Noise Management
Plan which will be presented to the SAG for their agreement and an onsite representative will ensure
compliance with noise levels at each event. Please see Section 19.

APTL will also have a staffed noise complaint line. If complaints are received they will be passed on
to the acoustic consultant to deal with in real time. Details of each complaint will be taken down
onto an agreed format log sheet. When the complaint has been resolved, a copy shall will be
provided to the Licensing Authority.

It should be noted that ‘times’ in the tables above refers to number of event open days and not
individual number of events.



Page 73

4.3 Planned Licensable activity

As with the current operation within Alexandra Palace the intention is to be able to host a wide
range of activities within Alexandra Park, catering to new audiences. The table below gives an
overview of what the license is looking to incorporate and the house licensable activity could take
place

Licensable Activity Days Hours
Provision of Regulated Entertainment
A | Plays Mon - Sat 09.00-22.30
Sun 10.00-22.00
B | Films Mon - Sat 09.00-23.30
Sun 10.00-22.30
C | Indoor Sporting Events nfa nfa
D | Boxing or Wrestling Mon - Sat 09.00-22.30
Sun 10.00-22.00
E Live Music Mon - Sat 09.00-22.30
Sun 10.00-22.00
F Recorded Music Mon - Sat 09.00-22.30
Sun 10.00-22.00
G | Performance of Dance Mon - Sat 09.00-22.30
Sun 10.00-22.00
H | Anything of similar description to A, B, C, D, | Mon - Sat 09.00-22.30
E,F,G
Sun 10.00-22.00
I Making Music Mon - Sat 09.00-22.30
Sun 10.00-22.00
] Dancing Mon - 5at 09.00-22.30
Sun 10.00-22.00
K | Similar to making music (i} or Dancing (j) Mon - Sat 09.00-22.30
Sun 10.00-22.00




Page 74

5.0 LICENSING OBIJECTIVES

Operational procedures and policies will be produced and implemented to support the four licensing
objectives which are as follows:

A. The prevention of crime and disorder;
B, Public safety;

C. The prevention of public nuisance;

D. The protection of children against harm

These procedures will form the Event Safety Management Plan specific to each event and will
provide the detail of how the Premises in accordance with the granted License will operate. This
ESMP document will be scalable relating to the size and impact of an event.

Alexandra Palace Trading Limited is aware that the information in this draft Operating Schedule will
be available within the public domain. Therefore, due to security and safety issues some of the
information set out below Is given in summary form only by way of an overview of the measures
that will be taken. Further information will be given to the Responsible Authority Contacts as
necessary.

10



Page 75

6.0 PREVENTION OF CRIME & DISORDER

6.1 Crowd Management

For each event APTL will use the incumbent crowd management company to undertake all on site
crowd management. They will need to meet strict criteria and have experience of working at similar
events. The Crowd Management Plan (CMP) will work under the direct control of APTL who will work
closely with the relevant members of the SAG to ensure this licensing objective is met and that all
aspects of on-site crime and disorder is dealt with accordingly.

Each event will have its own Crowd Management Plan forming part of the general ESMP. The CMP
will identify any potential risk relating to crime and disorder and look at ways to mitigate these risks.
This will cover areas such as on site security and safety, entry and search protocol, perimeter
security, restricted items, CCTV and tackling anti-social behaviour as required.

The Crowd Management Plan will identify security numbers and positions and give clear guidance to
all security and stewarding personal as to their roles and responsibilities on the event day

Any ejections will take place by licensed security personnel and in agreement with the Licensing
Authority and Metropolitan Police.

6.2 Prevention of Theft

Each event will be risk assessed before being launched to identify its risk level with regard to
potential high levels of theft on site. The appointed security company will be responsible for
mitigating any on site theft and will react accordingly. When felt appropriate by APTL or the SAG a
covert security team will be in place to identify any potential thefts and anyone invclved in any
illegal activity.

6.3 Misuse of Drugs and Alcohol

All events will have a zero-tolerance policy to illegal substances and legal highs and anyone found to
be entering the premises or using either of these on site wiill be dealt with accordingly in co-
operation with the Metropolitan Police.

6.4 Egress

APTL and their appointed security provider will work closely with the Metropolitan Police and local
transport agencies to ensure appropriate levels of management are applied to accommodate the
safe passage of visitors away from Alexandra Park after each event.

For all events attended by over 10,000 and finishing after 20:00hrs a security team will be positioned
in specific areas of the Park to assist with the egress of visitors.

The security provider will support the ELT in ensuring Challenge 21 is enforced at all bars in
accordance with the events alcohol management policy as each alcohol outlet will contain at least
one SIA accredited security officer.

11



Page 76

6.5 Cash and Management Policy

Each event will have its own unique cash management policy. ATM’s will be available when deemed
necessary in refation to the demands of the event.

6.6 Residents and Stakeholders

Prior to the commencement of, and post agreement with the SAG, all events will advertise a phone
number and an email address will be made available for local residents and Park users to use to
contact APTL with any concerns they have, This service will be available on all event days. Log sheets
will be kept of all calls and any issues will be dealt with immediately.

12



Page 77

7.0 PUBLIC SAFETY

7.1 Event Safety Management Plan

For each event an Event Safety Management Plan (ESMP) will be compiled. This document will be
scalable according to the size , impact and any risk associated with the event. The ESMP will cover all
aspects of the event planning and delivery with particular emphasis on how the event will be
delivered in a safe manor. Examples of areas this will cover are sown below.

* Security policies

e Emergency procedures

s Maedical Management Plan

* Ensuring safe site infrastructure

* Noise management plan

¢ Production details

¢ Full information of artists and performers

¢ Build and Breakdown Schedule

7.1 Risk Assessment

A risk assessment will be undertaken for each event to identify areas where public safety could be
compromised. This risk assessment will seek to mitigate these risks by elimination or management of
the risk

The risk assessments will cover but not be limited to all activities, structures and crowd dynamics
across the event.

These risks will be covered and discussed in detail during each planning meeting and SAG meeting.

A detailed Fire Risk Assessment will be undertaken for all activity covered within this license
application. This will identify fire risk and make recommendations for mitigating fire risks and will
form part of the ESMP.

13



Page 78

7.2 Crowd Management Plan

The crowd management plan {noted previously under crime and disorder) will also identify areas of
potential risk to public from high density areas and other crowd related issues. This will ensure all
areas are looked at and that the event site is laid out in a way as to minimise any crowd related
issues. The crowd management plan will cover the following areas

S Ingress

- Gate/ticket management

- Search and confiscation procedures
- Site circulation

- Proactive and Reactive Response to on site incidents
- Securing access/perimeter

- Securing alcohol management policy
- Back stage management

- Stage barrier management

- Cash management

S Presence at bars

- Management of egress

- Evacuation and emergency planning procedures

7.3 Pyrotechnics/Special Effects

Any special effects, pyrotechnics, lasers or fire related activity used at any event will require its own
dedicated risk assessment to identify any risk and that the risk is mitigated to ensure the activity is
carried out safely.

7.4 Food Safety

APTL will liaise throughout the planning process with Haringey Environmental Health for planned
activities relating to food handling and hygiene, As part of the event specific ESMP APTL will provide
the Licensing Authority with a full list of all food and non-food traders {including crew, artist and
guest catering), detailing their names, addresses, type of operation and proposed locations within
the event site. APTL will ensure that no other food traders (including crew, artist and guest catering)
are admitted to the licensed site. No trader vehicles approved at the event will be parked on a slope,
unless the vehicles have been adequately chocked. APTL will ensure that any concession found to
be contravening any conditions of this 0S, the ESMP or the Premises Licence will cease trading.

14



Page 79

7.5 Event Control Room

For all large events attended by over 20,000 people an event control room will be in operation with
a dedicated Event Liaison Team. For all other smaller events the security contro! room will be in
place and staffed accordingly

7.6 Sanitary Provision

Each event will have an assessment to determine how many toilets are required. The Purple Guide
(Event Safety Guide) will be used as guidance to help form decisions regarding numbers. Other
factors like event type, demographic and historical evidence will be used as a consideration.
Dedicated Toilets will be provided at all entry gates for staff. Dedicated and exclusive toilets will be
made available for all catering areas; they will be positioned in areas out of bounds to non-
accredited personnel. Dedicated disabled access toilets will be in place across the event site.

7.7 Capacity

A risk assessment will take place prior to each event to understand the safe capacity for the event.
The maximum capacity sought for this Premise License is $0,000. All events will have an ESMP which
will show how the intended capacity will be reached. The capacity for each event will be agreed by
the SAG prior to the event being announced. The tables below shows the capacities and regularity
of events applied for.

Table 1 (4.7.1): Events where music is the prime purpose of the activity

Table 2 (4.7.2): events where music is not the prime purpose of activity

7.7.1 Events where music is the prime content

EVENT TYPE CAPACITY REGULARITY

LARGE 15,000 - 30,000 4 times per year
MEDIUM 5,000 - 14,999 3 times per year
SMALL 0-4,999 9 times per year

7.7.2 Events where music is not the prime content

EVENT TYPE CAPACITY REGULARITY
LARGE 20,000 - 50,000 3 times per year
MEDIUM 5,000-19,999 8 times per year
SMALL 0-4,999 1S times per year

15




Page 80

7.8 Medical Provision Plan

The Medical Provisions Plan will form part of the ESMP. This will include an event specific medical
risk assessment that will identify risk and make recommendations as to the level of medical
responders on site, the type of medical responders and whether any ambulances or other vehicles
are required. For larger events that are deemed to carry a higher risk a field triage will be available.
For all events the main Alexandra Palace Medical Centre based within the building will be available
for use throughout the event.

Alexandra Palace will consult with both the purple guide and local medical agencies to agree an
appropriate medical numbers for each event. This will be based on event type, demographic and
capacity.

16



Page 81

8.0 THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE

The management of public nuisance will be managed through pre-event planning arrangements with
the SAG. The agreed areas that relate to the prevention of public nuisance will be covered in the
event management plan

8.1 Noise

A noise management report has been undertaken and sets out the following noise limitations for
two types of events covered within this license;

8.1.1 Events where music is the prime purpose of entertainment

MAXIMUM SOUND LEVELS REGULARITY
Laeg, 15 min 750B 4

Laeg, 15 min 65dB 2

Laeg, 15 min S50B 10

8.1.2 Events where music is not the prime purpose of entertainment

MAXIMUM SOUND LEVELS REGULARITY
Laeq, 15 min 65dB 3
I-Aeq, 15 min SSdB 23

No events will operate after 22.30 Monday ~ Saturday and 22.00 on a Sunday

On ali events covered under this license where amplified music is the primary source of
entertainment a noise monitoring company wili be used to ensure compliance with noise levels.

Alexandra Paiace will also have a staffed noise complaint line to receive any compiaints from iocal
residents and pass them on to the noise management team.

17



Page 82

8.2 Off-site Crowd Management

The appointed crowd management company will work with the venue and the SAG to ensure the
safe passage of public off site. The planning and details of how this is activated will depend
significantly on the size and type of the event

For ail events attended by over 10,000 peopie a team of security and stewards will be in position
along Bedford Road to ensure crowds move away from the site with minimal impact to iocal
residents. Where required and if there is a main exit on the Musweil Hill side of the site additionai
security wiil be in position at Buckingham Lodge to ensure any public disorder is deait with
immediately.

At all events with over 10,000 attendees security will also be based at Dukes Avenue Entrance

For large events attended by over 15,000 discussion will take place with Haringey Council Highways
team and TFL to discuss road closures which should be in place to heip with the safe ingress and
dispersai of crowds after an event.

8.3 Transport Management Plan

All events wiil include a transport management plan as part of the ESMP. This will demonstrate how
visitors will commute to the area and highlight any concerns with overcrowding on local transport
networks. The plan wili aiso clearly demonstrate how visitors can easily connect with local transport
hubs post event with oniy reasonable impact on the surrounding areas.

For ail events a proactive approach will be made through marketing channels to encourage visitors
to use pubilic transport and not private motorised transport.

8.4 Offsite Site Litter

A team of cieaners wil be in place to collect and dispose of any related litter in and around exits and
walkways from the park on event days. This will also invoive ensuring areas around the entrance to
Alexandra Palace Train Station are kept free of litter as far as is reasonabie.

8.5 Informing Residents

For ail events attended by over 15,000 peopie a day a letter drop will take place in the surrounding
area. This will give suitable natification of the event, the event timings and a heipdesk number to cail
on the day. This helpdesk number will also be shown on the Alexandra Palace website,

Within this ietter information regarding any planned road closures or bus diversions, if appropriate,
will also be inciuded.

18



Page 83

9.0 THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM

9.1 Risk Assessment

For ail events a risk assessment wili take place to identify any risks specific to children. The findings
of this will inform the event management approach reiating to children and vuinerabie aduits on
site.

9.2 Missing and Found Policy

For all events a lost and found child policy will be in place. All key staff will be made aware of how to
escalate either of these scenarios. This will form part of the ESMP that will be discussed with the
SAG.

6.3 Alcohol Policy Relating to Minors

All bars wili operate under Challenge 21 on ali bars. This wili be signed across all bars and form a key
part of bar staff and security briefing. All refusals will be recorded at each bar in a refusai book.

Any minor seen with alcohol during an event wiil have the aicohoi confiscated by a licensed member
of security and may be ejected from the event

6.4 Sanitary Provision

Toilets suitable for children will be available at any events where minors are likely to attend. In
addition to this there wili be a provision for a mother and baby changing room.

6.5 Age Restrictions

Age restricted films indicating nudity or semi-nudity will not be shown in the presence of children.
This will be clearly stated at point of sale

Within the risk assessment a fair assessment wiil be made on the appropriate age policy for an
event. For ail events where music is the primary licensable activity anyone under the age of 14 must
be accompanied by an adult over the age of 21, this wili be stated on all event related literature and
in the Terms and Conditions of Entry as printed on ail tickets and as signed on all entrances where
applicable.

6.6 Staffing

At each event, all relevant staff will be DBS accredited and proportionate amounts of female staff
will be employed with both the medical and security/stewarding teams.

18



Page 84

10.0 Draft License Conditions for the consideration of the
Licensing Authority

The following are suggested conditions which, if granted by the Licensing Authority, APTL is
proposing be attached to the Premises Licence. These draft conditions have been developed using
APTL's experience in producing events and in consultation with relevant stakeholders and local
residents. As the applicant of this Premise License APTL and accepts that the Licensing Committee
will impose final conditions.

1. The final confirmed ESMP for each specific event will be available to the Licensing Authority and
responsible authorities a minimum of 1 week before the commencement of each event. Ongoing
changes to the ESMP shall be discussed and agreed with the Licensing Authority and other
Responsible Authorities via regular Safety Advisory Group meetings

1a. APTL shall fully comply with the contents of the ESMP for each specific event which shall convert
to a condition of the licence on receipt of the approval in writing from the Licensing Authority.

2. The Licensing Authority shall determine if any olterations to the Event Safety Management Plan
require an application pursuant to the Licensing Act 2003: the decision of the Licensing Authority in
this regard is final.

3. APTL shall ensure that appropriate personnel within the management structure of each event,
including contractors and sub-contractors, shail be aware of the conditions applied to the Licence.

4. The nominated Gold Commander from APTL’s Executive Team or a nominated deputy shall be
available at each event at all times during the hours when the premises are open to the public.

5. It is the responsibility of APTL to as far as practicable ensure that any promater, performer or other
person connected with any event taking place in Alexandra Park does not breach, or permit or
contribute to any breach of any term, condition or restriction of this Premise Licence before, during or
after any event in as far as the conditions of the Licence refer thereto. APTL shall have a primary and
continuing obligation and responsibility to ensure the safety of all persons on the premises, both in
normal and emergency situations and toke all necessary precautions to fulfil that obligation. Note:
the granting of the Licence does not absolve APTL from any obligations under any other enactments
and, in particular, the Health and Safety at Work, etc. Act 1974,

6. Authorised Officers of the Licensing Authority, Environmental Health, Metropolitan Police, Trading
Standards, the Security Industry Authority and London Fire Brigade and, any other authority deemed
appropriate by the Licensing Authority in advance of each event, shall at all times have free access to
the premises for the duration of the licence period for the purpose ensuring compliance with the
conditions of this licence and shall have access to all necessary records and documentation.,

7. Structures and Barriers - APTL shall ensure that all temporary demountable structures including
stages, marquees, barriers, grandstands, towers and any other structure listed in the industry guide
conform to The Institution of Structural Engineers "Temporary Demountable Structures - Guidance on
Design, Procurement and Use" - Second Edition 1999 (ISBN 1 874266 45 X) or to any guidance that
supersedes this.

8. Medical Provision - for each specific event APTL shail provide medical provision to a minimum of
that determined by a risk score as per the Event Safety Guide or any standard that supersedes it.

20



Page 85

9. Noise - An event specific Noise Management Plan shall be drawn up and agreed with the Licensing
Authority. The pian shall identify how noise arising from the holding of each event shall be effectively
controlled so as to minimise the risk of public nuisance.

10. Security & Stewarding- APTL shall identify the roles and responsibilities of security, stewards,
their managers and supervisors to be undertaken at each event,

11. Roles identified as requiring licensing under the Private Security Industry Act 2001 shall only be
undertaken by persons appropriately licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

12. Security and stewarding staffing levels shall be determined by way of risk assessment conducted
by APTL and shall be to the satisfaction of the Metropolitan Police and the Licensing Authority.

13. Food Safety - APTL shall ensure that food traders that are already registered under the Food
Hygiene {England) Regulations 2006 shall be allowed to provide food and drink at any event held
under this Premise License.

14. For the Exhibition of Films;

The admission of children under the age of 18 to film exhibitions permitted under the terms of this
licence shall be restricted in accordance with any recommendations mode by the following;

» the British Board of Film Classification {BBFC, } where the film has been classified by that
Board, or the Licensing Authority where no classification certificate has been granted by the
BBFC, or, where the Licensing Authority has notified APTL that section 20 (3) (b) (74 (3)(b) for
clubs) of the Licensing Act 2003 applies to the film

21



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87

Appendix A1 — VANGUARDIA NOISE REPORT



VC-102212-EN-RP-01 o Friat i
!.__ : ROO : : ,-' .’. ¥

Ilnl!l- .____ : MAY 2016 ki f-'.:l.. _.I__".I._'. _I... .: :

VANGUARDIA

I v Eirenne



Page 89

VANGUARDIA

DOCUMENT CONTROL
DOCUMENT TITLE ALEXANDRA PALACE PARK REVISION ROO
DOCUMENT NUMBER VC-102212-EN-RP-0101 ISSUE DATE MAY 2016
PROJECT NUMBER 102212 AUTHOR WARREN KING
STATUS DRAFT CHECKED -
ISSUED TO CLIENT PASSED -

REVISION HISTORY

REVISION NOTES DATE ISSUED




Page 90

CONTENTS

CONTENTS

1

INTRODUCTION
CONSULTANTS EXPERIENCE

. PROPOSED EVENT SITES

PROPOSED EVENTS

. ENTERTAINMENT NOISE CRITERIA

VANGUARDIA

FNINS

6
7

S

NOISE COUNCIL'S CODE OF PRACTICE ON ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE CONTROL AT CONCERTS

{1995)

. BACKGROUND NOISE SURVEY
. PREDICTED NOISE LEVELS

PREDICTED NOISE LEVELS
LIMITATIONS OF NOISE MODEL

. NOISE ASSESSMENT

INITIAL PROPOSED EVENTS
SUMMARY

APPENDIX A
GLOSSARY OF TERMS

APPENDIX B
NOISE CONTOUR PLOTS

9

13
16
17
18
19
21
22
24
24

25
25



1.1

1.2.

13.

14.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7,

Page 91

VANGUARDIA

1.INTRODUCTION

Vanguardia Consulting has been commissioned by Alexandra Palace Trading Ltd to provide a noise
assessment of the noise impact of concerts and events in and around Alexandrs Palace Park,

The purpose of this document is to provide co-ordinated information based on existing guidance and

expefience on the follewing:

Establish and agree an appropriate approach for the assessment of the noise impact of
different events in the outdoor spaces around Alexandra Palace Park.

Provide an assessment of the noise Impact of different types of events at nearby noise
Sensitive properties with regard to established guldance used to assess music nofse from

outdoor events to assist in applying noise limits to events around the park.

Provide initial advice for Proposed events on the South East slope of the park in front of
Alexandra Palace and The Grove,
It is intended that this document Is considered g ‘live’ document which may evolve accordingly as a resuit
of on-going lisison between Alexandra Palace, Haringey Council and local residents, and that this
assessment covers only additional events in the outdoor spaces around Alexandra Palace. It is not
Intended to apply to existing events and nolse limits applied to events such as the firework display,
cinema event and Red Bull Soapbox which would continue to operate in the same way they have done in

previous years,

A giossary of acoustic terms is shown jn Appendix A,

CONSULTANTS EXPERIENCE

Vanguardia Consulting is an independent acoustic consultancy specialising in the field of sound, noise
and acoustics related to entertainment venues, The team of cansultants have many years’ experience
dealing with some of the largest and most innovative seund and acoustic projects in the UK, including
Wembley Stadium, the Millennium Dome, The Millennium Stadium, Wembley Arena and Earls Court.

The consultants have Successiully provided sound Mmanagement advice, including noise control, at over
1000 concerts during the past 25 years. These concerts have ranged from relatively small scale events at
green fleld sites to major events staged at national stadia providing entertalnment for tens of thousands

of people,

The company director also sat on fhe UK Nolse Council Working Party which prepared the Code of
Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts {1995). They have also managed Government
research projects related to sound and nolse aspects of the entertainment business.



1.8

Page 92

VANGUARDIA

As well as the provision of sound and acoustic design/management for entertainment venues, the
company deals with the whole range of acoustic, noise and vibration Issues and our staff have presented
expert testimony at planning and licensing hearings, magistrates and high courts, Judicial Reviews and
House of Commons and House of Lords Select Committees.



2.1

2.2,

Page 93

VANGUARDIA

2. PROPOSED EVENT SITES

Alexandra Palace have expressed a desire to hold events at a number of potential external spaces
around Alexandra Palace including Alexandra Park which is situated to the South East of the Alexandra
Palace venue. The proposed events range from small scale corporate, media, brand and food festival
type events to larger scale cinema and music events, Music May not be the primary source for some

events.
The following areas have been identified as being suitable for holding different types of events,

1. Onthe South-East slope in Alexandra Palace Park with the stage orlentated towards Alexandra

Palace.

2. On the South-East slope In Alexandra Palace Park located further towards the east with the stage

orientated towards Alexandra Palace,
3. Thegolf club with the stage orientated towards the North-West
4. AtThe Grove to the West of Alexandra Palace with the stage orientated towards the North East.
5. At The Grove to the West of Alexandra Palace with the 5tage orientated towards the South West.
6. Atthe South of Alexandra Palace Park with the stage orientated towards the North West.
7. Atthe South East of Alexandra Palace Park with the stage orientated towards the North West.

8. Atthe South East of Alexandra Palace Park adjacent to the cricket ground with the stage orientated
towards the South West.

9. Inthe area on the South West corner of Alexandra Palace with the stage orientated towards the
South East,

10. in the area on the South West corner of Alexandra Palace with the stage orientated towards the
South,

1. In the area on the North East corner of Alexandra Palace with the stage orientated towards the East,
12. In the area on the North East corner of Alexandra Palace with the stage orientated towards the West.
13. On the football field to the North of the boating lake with the stage orlentated towards the East,

14.On the football field to the North of the boating lake with the stage orientated towards the Sauth
West.



Page 94

VANGUARDIA

23. A plan showing the proposed event areas and sound system orientations is shown in the following figure
1

Figure 1 Proposed event areas

SRS A Ly S e S g = = 131 w1 L
.« e Mml i"', T] i,',-.-_rr-- ’_uN HA PARK RO

4 00,.;-

X
O

AY

4{1,‘

\~ et
A,
slgz £
& *
o Path / b g
o
hY

f e Ly
- N
,r' )
i

# o
\\)I

P
’o'
Pi

&

Alexandra

Palace
(Exhibition Y
Cantia). .
‘ /’49 . v ) ¥
4 _# ey ] !
. “Alexandra , , Cricket G
A==~ :Palace
b J(Exhlbmon‘b

4 Ceontre)™ »
'”4"' '\‘é‘ *

Alexandra Pai

(3

A
-, ’
- Alexandra >~
Pau;!:_f}-;f)(:,
f’

#,
o~
[
N
L)

W1 VIEW ROAD
41

ZOIH VIEW HOAD (S
T :

e R ANAN .. f

24. ltis Intended that the venue is to be as fiexible as possible in terms of event areas and stage locations in
order to cater for a variety of events and client requirements,

PROPOSED EVENTS

25. The following events have been initially proposed for the external areas:



2.6,

27

Page 95

VANGUARDIA

Lacations 1/ 2/ 3 (South East Slope} ~ A 2 day arts and music festival including spoken
waord, cabaret and artists simllar to Elbow, Massive Attack and Belle and Sebastian

performing on a main stage.
Lacations 1/2 / 3 (South East Slope) - A standalone low key Jazz or similar concert.

Location 1/ 2 / 3 {South East Slope) - A community festival to include performances from

local bands and artists,

Location4/5 (Grove) — Theatre, comedy and low level / acoustic performances.

The other potential event areas would be used for events ranging from small scale corporate media,
brand and food festival type events where music may not be the primary source of entertainment.

It is proposed that each event area would operate under a separate entertainment licence. Alternatively,
specific areas couid be grouped together under separate licences depending on the noise impact at
different noise sensitive areas during different events, for example under a licence for the North of
Alexandra Palace and one for the South of Alexandra Palace. An alternative approach could be to allow a
specified number of major event days where music is the primary source of entertalnment and a further
number of days with a lower limit for events where music is not the primary source of entertainment, for

example comedy festivals,



3.1

3.2.

3.3.

3.4,

Page 96

VANGUARDIA

3. ENTERTAINMENT NOISE CRITERIA

NOISE COUNCIL'S CODE OF PRACTICE ON ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE
CONTROL AT CONCERTS (1995)

The established guidance for noise from outdoor music events is contained in the Noise Council's Code
of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (1995). The recommended noise limits contained
within the Cade of Practice for events held between the hours of 09:00 and 23:00 hours are summarised

in the following Table 1.

Table 1 Noisc Limi

Concert days per calendar

year, per venue Venue Category Guldeline

The MNL should not exceed 75 dB(A} over a

1103 Urban Stadia or Arenas 15 minute periad

The MNL should not exceed 65 dB(A} over a

1t03 Other Urban and Rural Venues 15 minute period

The MNL should not exceed the background
4t012 All Venues noise level by more than 15 dB{A} over a 15
minute period

Based on the Initial proposals, taking the guldance from table 1 above, the suggested criteria is that the
Music Noise Level (MNL)} should not exceed the background noise level by more than 15 dB(A) over a
fifteen minute period. However, additional factors should be taken into account in the determination of

noise limits as discussed below.,

Since its publication in 1995, there have been a number of recommended modifications to the Code and
as a result, the Code of Practice has been under review for some time and is currently with the Chartered
Institute of Environmental Health. These modifications are being considered as a result of changes In the
live entertainment industry, demand for outdoor events over the past 20 years and the change to the
licensing regime with the implementation of the Licensing Act 2003.

One of the main criticisms of the Pop Code is that the range in the number of events per year with the
same LAeq nolse criterion is too large and that the difference between 75dBA for up to three event days
per year and a music nolise level not exceeding the background noise level by more than 15 dB(A) over a
15-minute period may be too large for the corresponding increase in the number of event days each year.
For example, 3 events per year has a similar Impact on the community than 4 events but 12 events have a

different impact on the community.



3.5,

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

Page 97

VANGUARDIA

It is recognised that although it provides useful guidance, the existing Code of Practice may not be
applicable to every event type and genre, particularly where music may not be the primary source of
entertainment or be continuous over the duration of the event. Therefore, the assessment of a rock
concert should not be considered in the same way as for example, a theatrical performance or cinema

screening.

In addition, although the Code recognises the nolse Impact on the community in the step down in
permitted noise levels as the number of event days Increase, it does not provide categories based on the
duration of an event. For example, a three-day festival lasting for twelve hours each day should not be
considered In the same way as an event of two hours over more days. In our experience, the Code is
generally applied to concerts and music festivais with high powered amplification lasting for between

eight and twelve hours on each day.

The Code of Practice is deslgned to provide guidance for noise at outdoor concerts and balance the
potential disturbance in the local community against the enjoyable experience of the audience,
Numerous venues within the United Kingdom have Operated and continue to aperate successfully with
offsite noise limits in excess of the limits provided for each type of venue and over more concert days
than those provided in the guidance of the Code of Practice. Furthermore, our experience suggests that
local communities are more tolerant of high profile avents and those which benefit charities such as Live
8, Help for Heroes, ARK Gala Dinner and local communities {Muse Telgnmouth, Devan).

The following table 2 provides examples of venues in the United Kingdom which operate outside of the
guidance of the Code of Practice and have done for & number of years. These examples are restrictad to
concerts and festivals, the majority of which last for approximately eleven hours on each show day.

Table 2 Ny teria at UK venue
Number of
Venve Concert Days Licence Condition ‘Additional Information
per Year
London
75dBLA2q.5min measured Im from the fagade of any naise
Hyde Park 8in 2014 sensitive premises
Low frequency limit
75dBLAeq,15min measured 1m from the fagade of any nolse removed from pravious
Victora Park 4in 2014 sensitive premises events
40 events with 75dBLAeg.5mIn measured im from the facade of any noise

sensitive premises

Trafalgar Square | amplified muslc

Additional Low

Clapham Varies between 60-71dBLAeqg,15min depending on monitaring

Common 4 approx location. Based on backaround noise level Frequency Limit
Central Park, 75dBLAeq,15min measured im from the facade of any noise

East Ham 4 in 2007 sensitive premises




3.9

3.10.

Page 98

Varles between 62-72dBLAeqg,15min depencding on monitoring

VANGUARDIA

Additional Low

Kennington Park Unkown location Frequency Limit
Streatham Varies between 61-72dBLAeq,15min depending on monitoring Additional Low
Common Unknown location Frequency Limit
Varies between §8-70dBLAeq.15min depending on monitoring Additional Low
Brockwell Park Unknown location Frequency Limit
Low frequency
Varies between 64-69dBLAeqg.15min depending on monitaring assessed but no limit
Regents Park Unknown location set
Crystal Palace 75dBLAeq,5min measured 1m from the facade of any nolse
Park No longer used sensitive premises
Other UK Venues
Not to cause a nuisance. A limit of 75dBLAeq,15min measured
1m from the fagade of any noise sensitive premises has been
Platt Fields 2 Iin 2012 adopted for events
75dBLAeqg,15min measured m from the facade of any nolse
Bestival 3 sensitve premises until 0000hrs
Isle of Wight 756dBLAeq,15min measured Im from the fagade of any noise
Festival 3 sensitive premises until 0000hrs
Limit increased from
V Festival 70dBLAeq,15min measured 1m from the fagade of any nolse 65dBLAeq,15min from
Telford 2 sensitive premises previous events
Heatan Park, B0dBLAeq,15min measured 1m from the fagade of any noise
Manchester 2in 2014 sensitive premises
Limit increased from
68dBLAeq,15min (7OdBLAeq,15min for last 2 acts each day) 65dBLAeqg,15min from
Reading Festival 3 measured 1m from the fagade of any noise sensitive premises previous events
31n 2014 Low frequency limit
Milton Keynes 75dBLAeq,15min measured 1m from the fagade of any noise removed from previous
National Bowl sensitive property events
Limit increased from
Godiva Festival, 70dBLAeq,15min {68dBLAeg.15min on Sunday) measured 1m 65/60dBLAeq,15min
Coventry 3 from the facade of any noise sensitive premises from previous events
Mercedes Benz
World,
Weybridge 3 70dBLAeq,1Smin_at the nearest noise sensitive premises
South Park, 75dBLAeq,15min, measured 1m from the fagade of any notse
Oxfard 1 sensitive premises
70dBLAeq.Imin measured 1m from the fagade of any nolse
Warwick Castle Approx 3 sensitive premises

In some of these examples, the Code of Practice guidance for ‘Other Urban and Rural Venues' for noise

levels Is exceeded by up to 10dB and the number of event days are more than twice those

recommended.

It is understood that the Licensing Authority, Haringey Council Include a condition in the premises licence

for outdoor events which requires that music from events ‘should not cause a nuisance’ at any noise

sensitive property. In the absence of any specific noise limits, external events are managed to varying

offsite noise limits ranging from a target noise level of 5dB above the backgrotind noise level and music




3n

Page 99

VANGUARDIA

entertainment noise level + existing ambient noise level {Luna Cinema) to 65dBLaeq15mn (Red Bull
Soapbox) at specific noise rmonitaring locations. These events are subject to an agreed noise

management plan.

Noise predictions are shown in section 5 of this report,



Page 100

ALEXANDRA PALACE PARK VC-102212-EN-RP-01 VANGUARDIA
VENUE NOISE ASSESSMENT . NI

NOISE ASSESSMENT MAY 2016

4. BACKGROUND NOISE SURVEY

4.1.  An attended background noise survey was carried out on the evening of Saturday 23 April 2016
between 1900hrs and 2300hrs in accordance with the guidance contained in the Code of Practice on
Environmental Noise Control at Concerts {1985).

4.2. Continuous noise measurements were recorded at locations representative of the nearest noise sensitive
properties to the venue and the noise prediction locations as follows:

— MP1 = Alexandra Park Road
— MP2 — Vallance Road

MP3 — Dukes Avenue
— MP4 - Springfield Avenue
—  MP5 — Redston Road
— MP6 -~ North View Road

—  MP7 — Newland Road

4.3. The noise monitoring locations are shown in the following figure 2:

Figure 2 Background nolse maniioning locations




Page 101

VANGUARDIA

4.4. The noise Monitoring equipment used for the survey is shown in the following table 3,

Table 3 Detadls of noise monite A e ouipie pt
Equipment Type Manufacturer Serlal Number Calibration Due
Sound Level Meter 831- 4097
Pre-Amplfier Larson Davis 36956 2B" December 2017
Microphone 157669
Sound Level Meter 831- 4096
Pre-Amplifier Larson Davis 36955 28" December 2017
Microphone 154253
Sound Level Meter Sound Expert - 3316
Pre-Amplifier Larson Davis 27649 27" May 2017
Microphone LW139016
Sound Level Meter Sound Expert - 3318
Pre-Amplifier Larson Davis 27651 ™ April 2018
Microphone 158250
Sound Level Meter Sound Expert - 3813
Pre-Amplifier Larson Davis 27653 18" March 2018
Microphone 135909
Sound Level Meter Sound Expert - 3815
Pre-Amplifier Larson Davis 28033 17" November 2017
Microphone 155504
Sound Level Meter 2250 - 2611539
Pre-Amplifier B&K 12940 30" March 2017
Microphone 2625092
Callbrator Larson Davis Cal-200 /3482 8™ April 2017
4.5. The meters were calibrated before and after the survey and no significant drift in calibration was
observed,
4.6. The meteorological conditions during the Survey are provided in the following table 4,
Table 4 Meteorol al conchtion
Tirme Average Temperature | Dominan Wind Direction Average Wind Speed Precipitation
He NESW Ms™ mm
19:00 - 20:00 8.1 West 0 0
20:00 - 21:00 6.9 West 0 0
21:00 - 22:00 57 West 0 0
22:00-23:00 55 West 0 0
4.7.  The following table 5 shows a summary of the amblent and background noise measurements at each
location.
Table 5 summary of backaround ne AITE QS UTE M
MP1 MP2 MP3 MP4 MPS MPE MP7
Time ey s Lesso  |'L G| Larso _-'ﬁl—[LEm_L‘m ﬁ—L"‘”
dB (4)
19:00 52.2 43.2 52.9 42.5 59.2 479 46.8 38.8 50.8 43.2 48.7 404 51.0 434
19:15 53.2 41.9 53.7 42.2 60.3 46.3 49.6 40.3 52.0 43.7 495 40.3 52.3 43.8
19:30 51.7 41.7 517 417 59.4 45.1 49,2 39.0 49.7 42.0 48.9 395 52.0 43.2




Page 102

VANGUARDIA

19:45 54.7 4.5 56.0 423 €0.8 45.4 514 40.5 51.0 42.8 515 40.0 53.1 43.7

20:00 491 38.8 49.9 39.4 59.3 42.6 447 375 44.3 393 448 37.0 48.6 40.5

20:15 521 38.5 51.0 391 58.5 427 475 376 46.8 40.0 47.0 371 49.9 406

20:30 50.2 39.2 §2.9 39.3 56.8 43.7 50.4 39.0 486 396 49.2 38.1 528 423

20045 49.6 39.3 52.0 1.4 5§7.2 43.9 49.8 375 50.2 40.1 50.9 389 55.6 43.4

21:00 49.0 38.0 49.0 385 60.2 4.3 48.8 35.0 48.8 383 49.4 36.5 53.1 4.9

2115 43.6 36.8 47.7 374 60.4 361 39.3 343 42.4 37.8 43.0 360 52.5 40.9

21:30 44.9 36.1 44.0 36.7 544 348 45.0 344 453 38.2 4841 36.0 50.7 40.5

2145 463 37.0 432 374 533 36.5 455 351 45.6 33.0 458 36.6 527 425

22:00 51.4 379 439 383 532 357 431 359 44.2 39.5 45.0 38.1 510 9.7

2215 427 374 423 38.7 537 36.1 47.0 36.5 46.7 39.9 47.0 38.0 50.4 4.7

22:30 413 36.5 16 38.9 530 353 44.3 354 433 38.6 45.1 374 50.0 9.3

22.45 535 386 43.9 39.0 54.3 352 514 374 47.2 40.0 474 38.1 54.3 H1.9




Page 103

VANGUARDIA

5. PREDICTED NOISE LEVELS

prediction of sound levels,

Dukes Avenue
Springfield Avenue
North View Road
Alexandra Park Road
Station Road
Newland Road
Vallance Road

Redston Road

5.2. Noise predictions have been carried out at a height of 1.5m for each scenario based on the information
supplied by Alexandra Palace for each proposed event area.

53. The following assumptions have been made in predicting noise ievels at the receptor locations:

Noise predictions have been made based on the Intended coverage of the sound system
and data from similar previous events to achieve g nominal entertainment noise leve! for
music performances of S5dB{A) at the mixing desk position, at either 30m from the
proposed sound source for small to medium sized events and 40m for larger scale events,
The offsite noise predictions should then be adjusted to suit the type of event proposed for
each area. For reference, the following table 6 shows the typical entertainment noise levels

expected at the mixing desk Pposition for different types of events

Table 6 ! ] i
Typical Noise
Event Type Levels in Audlence
Area
Large Scale Music Event / Concert 98-100 dB,LAeq,T
Small Scale Music Event / Concert 95-98 dB,LAeq,T
Classical Music Concerts 90-95 dB,LAeq,T
Cinema Events 90-95 dB,LAeq,T
L Live Sports Events 85-90 dB, LAeq,T
Small Scale Events with Incidental Music 80dB, LAeq,T




5.4.

5.5.

Page 104

Markets 70 dB,LAeq,T
Ice Skating 70 dB,LAeq,T
Exhibitions 70 dB,LAeq,T
Sporting Activity Events {eg Triathlon) 65-70dB,LAeq,T

VANGUARDIA

The sound systems have been modelled as ‘line array’ systems which is the most common
type of system used for most events. The horizontal dispersion data Is taken from a JBL
Vertec 4889 line array sound system at a trim height of 8m for small and medium scale

events and 10m for larger scale events

Ground attenuation effects as per ISO 9613

Moderate downwind propagation as per ISO 9613

For reference, the Noise Council's Code of Practice on Enviranmental Noise Control at Concerts {1995)

states that ‘Research shows that the music noise level in the audience by the mixer position at pop
concerts is typically 100dB(A}, and that levels below 95dB(A) will be unlikely to provide satisfactory

entertainment for the audience".

PREDICTED NOISE LEVELS

The following table 7 shows a summary of the predicted noise levels at the model receptor points at the

nearest noise sensitive locations for each modelled scenario. Additional modei receptors have heen

added to the model where there are nolse sensitive properties closer to the stage than those used at

representative locations. In addition to this data noise contours have been plotted to assess the nolse

impact at all nearby community receptors. The noise contour plots are provided in Appendix B:



Page 105

VANGUARDIA

Table 7 Pracgiicted noise ts for cact [ e t on
Soenario e )

gl.oouion 1 b 2 25 3 3b 4 5 ] T 8 3 30 T 12 3 k. ]
Hixing Desk S 15 "5 5 | S| 5 1 5 = T I O O 0 O O

Dukces Avenue 57 52 51 49 46 44 T3 [3] 64 52 49 59 [5] 55 53 49 58

Avenue 5] &8 ] 83 81 5% [ 56 fal [:<] 1 6 | N 30 42 51 53

MNorth View Road £9 62 67 BS B3 &0 S2 3] 73 5 65 39 3] 44 54

Adenandra Park Road 58 ] 58 56 &1 59 58 45 57 3] 52 3 32 1] 84 72 66

SadonFoad 55 3 57 59 3 53 41 55 B0_ | 52 [ B 58 a7 3 48

Nawland Road &1 83 62 3] 62 57 q7 59 |68 £2 ] 53 57 43 6 53

[ Vallanoe Road 52 1 [ ST 67 =] 2l 48 50 9 53 47 45 89 T4 T2 T4

Ave 127 - - - - - - - 70 - - - - - - - - -

Vallance Rosd (2 - - - - - ~ - - - - - = - - - &1 77

AP Pak Rd (2] = - - - = - - * - - - = - - - ] 83

Redsion Road - -1 % | & [ & [ & - - 8B | 2 | &7 - - - - - -

Noith View Boad (2 - = - - - - - - 94 85 = = - - =

" Additional model receptor points T

— Miner Sound
Diztan Syste
Description ool o i
From Height

1 %Emdmhﬂhmdapdaupukumhmmuedmu&Manm 40 0

b) SaﬁrﬁmsbpohwoPdelk-ihhumu'—- dtow ards Alenandra Palace 30 8

2 M—EmdnpohﬂkuﬁaP-huPukhnmdhﬂmtmadshmwlhthn-gouhmdm-dsﬂhurﬂahlm. 40 ]

21b) Mr{mdmhﬂhumﬂapdmpukbuudlummmmmvﬁ\hmmun-dm-dsm.Pdmo. k 1] e

3 Tlnqolchbvﬂrlhosupt i 3 ds the Morth-West 40 0

3b) The golf olb with the stage orlentated towards the Moth-West 0 8

c 4 The Grove tow ards North East 30 8

H] Thwe Grove tow ards Scuth Wen 30 8

6 Alevancha Palaor Park tow.ards North West 40 0

7 Alexandra Palwoe Park tow ards North West 40 0

8 Alesandia Palace Pask tow ards Socth West 40 0

g South West Cornar of AP Towards South East 30 B

0 South West Cormer of AP Towards South 0 a8

" Morth Eest Corrrer of AP towards East 30 8

14 Notth East Corrmr of AP tow artls West 20 -]

13 Foo!b.lFbHBndemtnwudlEm 30 8

. FoolbiFHdBo_rathdonw.d:SuwhHm k] B8

LIMITATIONS OF NOISE MODEL

5.6. Whilstthe noise prediction modei provides a relatively accurate indication of the noise impact at noise
sensitive properties, it can in no way guarantee the actual operational noise levels of an event as
meteorological conditions such as temperature inversions and wind direction may have a significant {up
to 15dB) effect on noise levels at noise sensitive properties during an event, the effects of which cannot

be readily predicted.



6.1

6.2,

6.3.

6.4.

Page 106

VANGUARDIA

6. NOISE ASSESSMENT

The guidance from the Code of Practice advises that for all venues used for 4-12 events per calendar
year, the music noise level (MNL) should not exceed the background noise level by more than 15dB(A)
over a fifteen-minute period at the nearest noise sensitive premises is recommended for events finishing
no later than 2300hrs. A background nolse survey has been carried out in accordance with the guidance
provided In the Noise Council's Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (1995) ta
establish the existing background noise levels and noise limits that should be adopted at the nearest
noise sensitive properties.

For each of the background noise measurement positions the LAF90, 15-minute data have been
arithmetically averaged over the whole of the survey duration (19:00 - 23:00) and rounded to O decimal
places. The resulting averaged noise levels are provided In the following Table 8 along with the noise
limit for events if based on an entertainment noise level of 15 dB above the background noise level at
each receptor location. In addition, the LAeq measurements have been logarithmically averaged over the
duration of the survey and provided in the table below.

Tahle 8 Summary of background / ambient noise levels & off-site' noise limits {background nolise
level + 15dB)
Location Average LAeq Average LAFS0 Restilting Off-Site Limit
MP1 Alexandra Park Road 51 39 54
MP2 | Vallance Road 51 40 55
MP3 | Dukes Avenue 58 M 56
MP4 | Springfieid Avenue 48 37 52
MPS | Redston Road 48 40 55
MP6__| North View Road 48 38 53
MP? | Newland Road 52 42 57

In the case of the noise measurements taken at Dukes Avenue, the average LAeq is already more than

15dB above the average background noise level even without entertainment noise.

The following table 9 provides an assessment of the predicted entertainment noise levels for each event
location if a noise limit of LA90 {background noise levei) + 15dB was to be adopted for all events. In
addition, the maximum entertainment level achievable and event type is provided for each proposed
location.



Page 107

VANGUARDIA

Table 9 Comparison of predicted and off-site no se mits (Larso + 150B)
Modes L " Predicted nms wvet i ol antevtasmant ncims lrve!of By
i " ! & 3 ™ Pl [ B 2 w W
LWt Aok Palace Fexd 84 [ [} 3 £ [T > ] = 5 7]
. A3tz Polaes Bdxi 2 F7) = B z o z 5 - ™ wi
LWz Vol e Food [} ar (14 -] [ L L 51 5t Ta T2 ™
- L ollan s Boad e () . ) ot o 3 = o . W 7
WFL  [Tukds brenm -] at a8 L4 73 [T 32 it 5 F] an
LR (tpainaliekd Arinus 52 [ a1 5 &8 i | '] [T 1] iy 3
LS IFadiion Fead 58 L 4 [ - [ 5 &7 T - 5
IS Jrhth Vi Foad &3 [ 83 [i] 1 i ] LW A4
B $aith vise Foad 2. & B 8 2 8 . ] B 5 o
L [thaland Fosd [ [ [~} il A (2] [ 5
Lhse num o stancs Eatasin fobdtad ivils ond noisg 1“4 © © 17 5 = X 2 w ™ o
Hivmil
L asionmmn st sl 3emadd rcise ikl " LN -] k] [ L 54 = ] ™ 85
[Small 14038 |3 XN [Semall 3¢90 Sp-ating Senoll 3¢k Lok 1.95¢k-
Vioble seitd 1rpe st cih ikt rosnd i Kl P i E.dﬂ::;w :_.Iaﬁm
Jinec kb A ol incrientat nema [ s rdend o i B4 Jrating |Ice sk ting
trwszic L T Y kAN 20 ek #
6.5. Table 9 demonstrates that if a noise limit of background +{5dB were to be adopted for events, only smali
scaie events or events with low ievel background music significantly below 95dBA would be viable at the
majority of locations apart from scenario 4 at the Grove with the stage orientated towards the South West
where classical concert and cinema type events would be viabie,
6.6. The following table 10 provides an assessment of entertainment noise levels and the viability of holding
events if a noise limit based on the guidance from the Code of Practice for 1 - 3 event days per calendar
year of 65dBLaeq.smn Was adopted.
Table 10 Ppredicled and off-ste noise jimit (GSABLa,.
3 WmMMmW-M&HdM
i/ et [ 2 ™ 3 ) 4 s | » [ v ] 7]
L1 {akieandea Palacs Baad [ [T [ L] ) [ [T [ i 52 3 k) 66
- bl Polace Pood 124 [ . - . D 2 3 5 5 . . . . = T
LF2  jvallance Fosd [ 52 &0 1 &7 [T] & 5 7 53 &7 a5 k7] i
- YR+ Fiod 24 &5 o - : - S . - B 3 o = 5 bed
LIPS [Dukes deenue .7} 37 31 4% 48 as b ) Ay 2] AX L] 53 [ 1] Ay 54
LIPd  (Seinalbk) Avanos ] ] [T [T Bl 1] [+ % Tl a3 o n i J
LWPE  [Padsicn Fosd 86 . &5 (] 83 1 - - LF! [ £} a7 - -
LIPS han vily Boad (] & 59 87 - % [E] i3 [ H ) ‘Th (2] o i
- Fhath Yowr: Pugd 2a ] . 5 . 3 . D . [ 5 = = -
LIP™  [Ihsdon:d Bopt 44 £1 a 62 54 [ 4 ar 13 4 Lo 5% 3 3
Rtaadmrrs P 04 kbt Foaciited Hvels 0. niise lime ~ d 4 2 2 : - L > £ - v J
L15aMrnen #0461 sinment nois ¢ el L] L:] (] 3 ar o0 n L] b ) L)
e Sl
i fhegt Small [Sm L . $ 1)
Viokds svend 1,5+ \.:b«:‘:‘ ‘\..‘,:.Jn,::l’ "“'; u"’:"“" ““:c :’Z?' ?;:c‘:l L2 gpod i"::‘
Py [t s 1/ [ FIWLLT 3
e [neaa lencan ceneal  lincidend T CHELCE]
1S b

6.7.

Table 11 provides an assessment of entertainment noise levels if a noise limit of 75dBLasg15min Was

adopted for events in external areas in line with other London venues such as Victoria Park and Hyde

Park and those provided in Table 2 of this report.




Page 108

VANGUARDIA

Table 11 Comparison of predicted and off-site noise limits (75dBLaccism
[ Location Nolss Limk Procicted noles level (Based on notsinal entertainmsent nois level of 9B
[TEBLAeg. 1brminy [l 1 2 ) ) b 4 [ 7 [ [ [ 1 12 12 [
1 P {Aaondes Palace Road Kl 38 33 58 55 &1 3% 58 45 s 51
1 - Ao it Palyi4 Fosd e 75 . - . . . o . . B B N . ™
i L% Jvalance Foxd ki3 32 G L &0 37 47 &5 61 43 50 53 37 4
] - vl e Fiad o0 78 - - - : - - e - : 9
LR [Dukes Avenue ki -] 57 ‘52 51 19 8 &4 i 61 (2] 49
1P [opumitniy s [ ) [ [ 63 61 89 [ 36 7 &1 43
1 LIFY fRedsten Posd bi ] - - &5 [ (2] .61 - - 3] &7 - - . - 5
1 LIPS Jhhth Vi Foad TS 89 §7 [¥] 67 .| &% 43 &0 31 [.H T3 & £
] - Phaaih View Foad 20 h - - - - - Tr . - - k] 15 - . - -
A LFT [Teeland Biad 7 1 4] (] 42 [} [-H} © 37 47 49 A9 &
-jl.Lv.'ulm Al arencd THwan Pradeited lvsls and s ¢ it ~ i/ e ~ A & 2 = O & b = o ot A J U
i1 s i st 2rmb ool e bl 1 ¥l 1 <] ¥H " e L2 e % ) 2 b ] bl 0 90 or
sl fomA B s [smat [Seot [sma fsmar [ ket sondl  fsm [sma Jsean |,
Viskh oot g sesk  freste hieske icate fiete Jicas licas [ ;';:":t" f‘:f:'"“‘ Livs spenficoke  focals  acas ficats E::v:'tﬂ Live 4gcat
MUK Mudic et b s ek MK Imuik wlls Sivema :Iutmv /4 MK o) i€ L1 ot [~ - vl
concel  feondan licoded [oncat [roncet proncet fooncen [riedea W oot froncet Jeencad [ioncen  [HIHE2

6.8. The application of a noise limit based on the background nolse level + 15dB or 65dBLagq.1smin restricts the
type of event and area that would be viabie, allowing for a mixing desk levei of around 90dBA which
would be suitable for cinema or classical music type events. A limit of 75dBLaeq.ismin would provide more
flexibility in the type of event and location that would be feasible, allowing for a mixing desk level of
around 100dBA required for popular music acts..

6.9. A possible approach in agreeing noise limits for events would be to assess each event on a case by case
basis and appiy entertainment noise limits based on the event type and whether music Is the primary
source of entertainment, duration and finishing time. For each proposed event, an event summary
provided by the event promoter to include but not limited to the number of days, start and finish times,
noise predictions assessing the noise impact, any noise mitigation measures that will be adopted for the
event and an event specific noise management plan. This approach would enable all parties to make
informed decislons about the viability of the event based on events already held during that calendar
year. For example, If 2 event days with a noise limit of 75dBLasqsmn had been agreed during that calendar
year, a further number of event days may be agreed at a lower level such as 15dB above the background
noise level, Alternatively, different areas could operate under different external licences to allow for a
noise limit of 75dBLaeq1smn for up to three events per calendar year. This would not apply to events
already held at the venue.

INITIAL PROPOSED EVENTS

6.10. It is initially proposed that a 2 day arts and music festival, a standalone jazz or similar concert and
community event are to be held on the south east slope and comedy / theatre performances and low
level acoustic performances in the Grave area. The following Table 12 provides a summary of the
maximum permissible entertalnment noise levels depending on the noise limit that could be adopted for
the South East slope and The Grove.



Page 109

VANGUARDIA
Table 12 “umimary of viable evenis
Scenarlo
Location 1 b 2 2b 3 3b 4 5
79 79 79 8t 83 85 78 90
Maximum Nolse Small
Levet for scale Small scaile Small scale Small scale | Small scale Live Small scale Classical
Background + event with avent with avent with event with event with soort avent with Concert /
15d8 incidental incidental incidental incidental incidental &5 < incidental Ginema
A music music .| music music music
music
ot 92 91 93 93 95 87 99
Maximum Noise
Her = Classical | Classical Classical Classical | Classical | Small Live sport fcma,a:
65dBLAeq,15min Concert/ | Concert/ Concert / Concert / Concert / music event rausic
Cinama Cinama Cinema Cinema Cinsma concert concert
1ot 102 1™ 103 103 108 97 109
Maximum Noise Small Small all
Levei for scale Small scale Small scale Small scale { Small scale scn;ﬁc’ Small scale sser:.Ie
75dBLAeq.1Smin | e music concert | music concert g‘niig n gunségn music :::i:n music
concart concert concert
Sound
. Mixer System
Description Distance Trim
from Stage  Height
1. South-East slope in Alexandra Palace Park with the stage orientated towards Alexandra Palace 40 10
1{b). South-East slope in Alexandra Palace Park with the stage orientated towards Alexandra Paface 30 8
2, South-East slope in Alexandra Palace Park focatad further towards the east with the stage onlentated towards
Alexandra Palace. 40 10
2{b]. South-East slope in Alexandra Palace Park located further tawards the east with the stage orientated
towards Alexandra Palace. 30 8
3. The golf ciub with the stage orientated towards the North-West 40 10
3{b). The golf club with the stage orientated towards the North-West 30
4. The Grove lowards Narth East 30
5. The Grove towards South West 30 8
SUMMARY

6.11. The noise assessment indicates the following:

South-East slope In Alexandra Palace Park: With an entertainment nolse level of 15dB
above background, only small events with incidental music would be viable. if an
entertalnment noise limit of 65dBLacg1mn Was to be adopted for events, classical / jazz
concerts and cinema events would be viable. If a limit of 75dBLagqsmn Was to be adopted for
events as at Victoria Park and Hyde Park, fuli scale music concerts would be viable.

South-East slope in Alexandra Palace Park {located further East): With an entertainment
noise level of 15d8 above background, only smail events with incidental music would be



Page 110

VANGUARDIA

viable. If an entertainment noise limit of 65dBLacqsmn Was to be adopted for events, classical
/ jazz concerts and cinema events would be viable. If a limit of 75dBLaeq15mn Was 10 be
adopted for events full scale music concerts would be viable. A 2dB improvement in
entertainment naise levels may be achieved at this lacation if the mixing desk was located
at 30m from the stage and the sound system flown at a height of 8m instead of 10m.

The Golf Club with the stage orientated towards the East: With an entertainment noise
limit of 15dB above background, smail scale events with incidental music or live sports
events would be viable. If an entertainment nolse limit of 65dBLaeq smn Was to be a;:iopted
for events, classical / jazz concerts and small scale music events would be viable. If a limit of
75dBLaeq,smn Was to be adopted for events full scale music concerts would be viable. A 2dB
improvement in entertainment noise levels may be achieved at this location if the mixing
desk was located at 30m from the stage and the sound system flown at a height of 8m

instead of 10m.

The Grove with the stage orientated towards the North-East: With an entertainment noise
timit of 15dB above background, only small scale events with incidental music would be
viable. If an entertainment noise limit of 65dBLaeqg1smm Was to be adopted for events, live
sports events with commentary would be viable. If a limit of 75dBLagq1smn Was to be adopted

for events small scale music concerts would be viable.

The Grove with the stage orientated towards the South-West: With an entertainment noise
limit of 15dB above background, classical / jazz concerts and cinema screenings would be
viable. If an entertainment noise limit of 85dBLaeq 15mn OF 75dBLaen.1smin Was to be adopted for

events, small scale music concerts wouid be viable.

6.12. Nolse measurements recorded at the Luna Cinema event fndicate that noise levels were around 50dBA

6.13.

at Redston Road and not audible at Dukes Avenue and Vallance Road. Whilst the reference noise
measurements from the mixing desk are not availabie, based on our experience of this type of event,
they would fikely to be around 90dBA. These measurements are significantly lower (more than 10dB) than
those predicted, most likely as a result of meteorological conditions and sound system design and setup.
This suggests that events with noise ievels up to around 95dBA may be viable and still achieve a noise
limit of 15dB above the background noise level. In addition, the resuits also demonstrate that the noise
impact from events held in external areas will vary depending on where the event is heid. For example,
properties to the North of Alexandra Palace are uniikely to be affected by events held on the South slope.

Therefore, in addition to the application of noise limits based on the number of events, further
consideration may also be given to permitting different event areas to operate under separate external
licences, allowing for a specified number of event days in each area, for example 3 event days at
75dBLaeq,5min 0N the South-East slope and a further 3 event days at 75dBLacgismin in The Grove.



7.1

7.2,

7.3.

7.4.

Page 111

VANGUARDIA

7. APPENDIX A

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Nolse is defined as unwanted sound. The range of audible sound is from 0dB to 140dB, which is taken to
be the threshold of pain. The sound pressure detected by the human ear covers an extremely wide range,
The decibel (dB) is used to condense this range into a manageable scale by taking the logarithm of the
ratio of the sound pressure and a reference sound pressure,

The frequency response of the ear is usually taken to be about 18Hz {hnumber of asciilations per second} to
18,000Hz. The ear does not respond equally to different frequencies at the same level. Itis more sensitive
In the mid-frequency range than at the lower and higher frequencles, and because of this, the low and high
frequency component of a sound are reduced in importance by applying a weighting (filtering) circuit to
the noise measuring instrument, The welghting which is most used and which correlates best with the
subjective response to noise Is the dB{A} weighting. This is an internationally accepted standard for noise

measurements.

The ear can just distinguish a difference in loudness between two noise sources when there is a 3dB(A)
difference between them. Also when two sound sources of the same noise level are combined the
resultant level is 3dB(A) higher than the single source. When two sounds differ by 10dB{A) one is said to
be twice as loud as the other.

The subjective response to a noise is dependent not only upon the sound pressure level and its frequency,
butaiso its intermittency. Various indices have been

developed to try and correlate annoyances with the E
noise level and its fluctuations. The parameter used
for this measure is Equivalent Continuous Sound ] -
Pressure Level {Lag). The A-weighted sound |
pressure level of a steady sound that has, over a
given period, the same energy as the fluctuating 4 F t
sound under investigation. It is in effect the energy '
average level over the specified measurement S
period (T} and is the most widely used indicator for

environmental nolse. A few examples of noise of i

various levels are given right:



Page 112

ALEXANDRA PALACE PARK VC-102212-EN-RP-01 VANGUARDIA
VENUE NCISE ASSESSMENT L AL Ul
NOISE ASSESSMENT : . MAY 2016

8. APPENDIX B

NOISE CONTOUR PLOTS

Scenario 1: South-East slope in Alexandra Palace Park with stage orieniated towards Alexandra Palace

111

3
i
§

8.
39
|

Scenario 1(b): South-East slope In Alexandra Palace Park with the stage orientated towards Alexandra
Palace (Mixing desk at 30m from stage and sound system flown at 2m)

o,

AL T e ——
”’:_"?-!iill.fﬂ_n E’_mmr!m;

-




Page 113

VANGUARDIA

Scenario 2: South-East slope in Alexandra Palace Park located further towards the East with stage

orientated towards Alexandra Palace

b
[

:
:

Scenario 2{b): South-East slope in Alexandra Palace Park located further towards the East with stage
orientated towards Alexandra Palace {Mixing desk at 30m from stage and sound system flown at 8m)

g u
i

il

i

T w%
3 -

o = L LA LL 1



Page 114

ALEXANDRA PALACE PARK VC-102212-EN-RP-01 VANGUARDIA
VENUE NOISE ASSESSMENT WEITIREN]
NOISE ASSESSMENT MAY 2016

Scenario 3: The Golf Club with the stage orientated towards the North-West

L

: amifiitey g ';;;fﬂxk
Lo AN
V7 R

3
A%l

papev.. ) CER L SRR - 41
q,l |
wr ) X 2 "
‘@.

= |

Lrhe e %5

; 7 o =
R A R s ; i §

Scenario 3(b): The Goif Club with the stage onentated towards the North-West (Mixing desk at 30m from

stage and sound system flown at 8m)

e b a e
Dat
Lol
D)
Paa=tl
e
I <o
»43-45
36552
394-78 |
) ars-te
282425
»25-5)

nay

r _’.‘.-_nf\\ml LR AL 4 ]




Page 115

VC-302242-EN-RP-01 VANGUARDI ‘l.\

LU B N NN A O]

MAY 2016

A

Scenario 4: The Grove with stage orientated towards the North-East




Page 116

ALEXANDRA PALACE PARK VC-102212-EN-RP-O1
VENUE NOISE ASSESSMENT )
NOISE ASSESSMENT | MAY 2016

VANGUARDI

[ R N LN |

2

Scenario 6: Alexandra Palsce Park with Stage orientated towards the North-West

A

-
mm—————e

&
e,
L B
3
1
)
i
‘
1
|
]

s aan
Dar §
Ll
2 b
P T
W »50-£8
b2t il
25
| 348210
27573
>73-0¢
»05-08 4
LT




Page 117

VANGUARDIA

Scenario 8: Alexandra Palace Park with stage orientated towards South West

=8| P gB e

Scenaric 9: South-West corner of Alexandra Palace with stage orientated towards the South East

s e

TV




Page 118

VANGUARDIA

Scenaro 10: South-West comer of Alexandra Palace with st ge orieniated towards the South

Scenario 11: North-Eas! corner of Alexandra Pal:ce with ge orientated towards the East

G - LI r
0 :“—.-E*f- '-. i

|




Page 119

. : VC-‘i(.)2212-EN;RP-O1 : - VA N GUARDIA
ESSMENT . - ' s s

LA RN N
NOISE ASSESSMENT MAY 2016

',,'

Scenario 12: North-East corner of Alexandra Palace with stage orientated towards the West

Scenario 13: On the football fields adjacent to the

v e, <

boating lake with the stage arientated towards the East




Page 120
VANGUARDIA

ALEXANDRA PALACE PARK VC-112212-EN-RP-O1
Frivneeqn g

VENUE NCISE ASSESSMENT

NOQISE ASSESSMENT MAY 2016

Scenario 14: On the football fields adjacent to the boating lake with the stage orientated towards the

South-West

. .
-~ fc e
RS a1




Page 121

Registered in Englang 05666276

VANGUARDIA LIMITED:-

LONDON OFFICE
Southbank Technopark
90 London Rean
London SE1 6LN

HEAD OFFICE
21 Station Road West, Oxted
Suirey RH8 9EE

NORTH WEST OFFICE
3A Toft Raad, Knutsford
Cheshire WAIS CPE
Tel 440} 1843 718630

officedivanguardia.co.uk
vanguardla.co.uk

- Page 34



Page 122

APPENDIX B- REPRESENTATIONS FROM RESPONSIBLE
AUTHORITIES



Page 123

APPENDIX B1 - ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE



Page 124 ﬁﬁﬁ“iﬂ i
lONDONg 3 }!

Licensing Consultation

To: Licensing Officer

From: Enforcement Response Officer (Noise)

Name of Officer preparing representation: Derek Pearce
Our Reference: WK376854

Date: 22 March 2017
Premises: Alexandra Palace, Alexandra Palace Way, Wood Green, London, N22 7AY

Type of application: New

| would like to confirm that | have considered the above proposal with regard to the
prevention of public nuisance on behalf of the Enforcement Response {Noise) Team &
would like to make representations to the Application;

Section 8 of the operating schedule addresses the prevention of public nuisance and
states that no events will operate after 22:30 Monday - Saturday and after 22:00 on a
Sunday.

On all events covered under this license where amplified music is the primary source of
entertainment a noise monitoring company will be used to ensure compliance with noise
levels. Alexandra Palace will also have a staffed noise complaint line to receive any
complaints from local residents and pass them on to the noise management team.

Sound levels are proposed in the operating schedule as follows:

Section 8.1.1 Events where music is the prime purpose of entertainment

MAXIMUM SOUND REGULARITY
LEVELS

Laeq, 15 min 75dB

Laeq, 15 min 65dB

Laeg, 15 mn 55dB 10

8.1.2 Events where music is not the prime purpose of entertainment

MAXIMUM SOUND REGULARITY
LEVELS

Laeg, 15 mn 65dB 3

Laeq, 15 mn 55dB 23

It is our experience that it is important to set maximum sound levels for outside events.
The Music Noise Level (MNL) should not exceed the identified levels appropriate to the
type of event when measured at one metre from the fagade of any noise sensitive
premises for events held between the hours 09:00 and 22:30.

NS70 Rev: November 2016



Page 125

The operating schedule also suggests Draft License Conditions.
In paragraph 9 under the “Noige"” heading

An event specific Noise Management Plan (NMP) shall be drawn Up and agreed with the
Licensing Authority. The plan shall identify how noise arising from the holding of each
event shall be effectively controlled so as to minimise the risk of public nuisance.

In order for the sub committee to make an informed decision | have set out below a
discussion on the likelihood of impact on residents with reference to events which have

been held at Finsbury Park
What impact may noise from events have on the local community?

Ampilified music noise levels at music festival events wiil be set by the Council as
conditions in the Premises Licence.

Promoters will be required to engage an independent noise consultant to provide advice
during the planning of events and to actively manage noise levels throughout event days.

The Council have noise team officers working to ensure compliance with licence
conditions.

Noise will be audible to residents living nearby but noise levels will be monitored.

Residents affected by noise will be able to contact the helpline that will be in operation on
event days to register their concems with the festival team:.

How is noise from concerts at Finsbury Park managed?

Noise conditions for the Finsbury Park Premises Licences are based around guidance in
the Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (the Code of Practice)
which recognises that music from such events can cause disturbance to those living in
the vicinity but gives guidance on how such disturbance or annoyance can be minimised.

The Code suggests that additional limits are imposed for events which continue past
23:00 but all amplified music at Alexandra Park [outside] events is planned to finish by

22:30 (22:00 on a Sunday).

For 1 - 3 concert days per calendar year the code recommends that the Music Noise
Level (MNL) should not exceed 75dB(A) (LA 15min) over a 15 minute period.

For 4 ~ 12 concert days per calendar year the code recommends that the Music Noise
Levei (MNL) should not exceed the background by more than 15dB(A) over a 15 minute
period. (LA« 15min).

The Code recognises that assessment of noise in dB(A) is convenient but can
underestimate the intrusiveness of low frequency noise and this is often less of a problem
near to an open air event than further away. Complaints may occur some distance from
an event simply because people can hear it and consequently there is a perception that

NS70 Rev: February 2017 2



Page 126

the guidelines are not being met. Topographical and climatic conditions can be such that
the MNL is lower at locations nearer to the venue.

What will the Premises Licence require the promoter to do about noise?

Conditions on Premises licences wili require that noise levels are monitored to provide an
assessment of the exposure of residential properties surrounding the Park.

Where noise limits are based on background noise levels it is not possible to apply a
noise limit to every property around the Park but areas selected may be based on
providing a representative background noise level for those properties in the vicinity.

If the noise limits are being achieved close to the venue, they would most likely be iower
at distances further from the venue. This does not mean that those living further away wili
not be disturbed. If a noise complaint is received, the appointed acoustic consultant and
the Council licensing / noise enforcement officer is able to assess whether the Premises
licence conditions are being met.

What are the noise limits at other outdoor spaces in London?

The noise limits currently set in the Finsbury Park licenses are significantly lower than
other London venues.
o Victoria Park has a noise limit of 75dB LAe, 15min and
e Hyde Park has a limit of 75dB LA, 5min for a similar number of events annually
» Clapham Common has a noise limit of 75dB LA, 15mins

The guidance recognises that the MNL at the mixer desk is typically 100dB(A) and that
less than 95dB(A) is unlikely to provide satisfactory entertainment for the audience.
Sound levels are taken at the height of a hand held sound ievel meter (or the height of a
typical tripod e.g. 1.5m high.

The Alexandra Park application “Operating schedule” states the following:

On all events covered under this license where amplified live or recorded music is the
primary source of entertainment an acoustic consuitant wil produce an event specific
Noise Management Plan (NMP) which will be presented to the SAG for their agreement
and an onsite representative will ensure compliance with noise levels at each event. see
Section 19.

APTL will also have a staffed noise complaint line. If complaints are received they will be
passed on to the acoustic consultant to deal with in real time. Details of each complaint
wili be taken down onto an agreed format log sheet. When the complaint has been
resolved, a copy will be provided to the Licensing Authority.

We would ask the sub-committee to note that:

Noise which relates to irregular bursts of sound and impulsive noise is more likely to
cause noise nuisance because of its sudden nature, imtensity and fluctuations in noise
levels. Noise assessments which consider average ambient noise levels {LAeq) should be
treated with caution as ambient noise levels do not accurately depict how a recipient
hears or experiences noise as it occurs or the sudden alarming effect of loud impulsive
noise. Noise from a single event may amount to a statutory nuisance.

NS70 Rev: February 2017 - 3



Page 127

High levels of ambient noise will mask a proportion of music noise which is likely to
reduce the level of annoyance. Complaints are likely to increase where music noise is
clearly audible within noise sensitive premises above existing ambient noise levels.

Relevant factors: According to the Code of Practice the number of events is a relevant
factor to consider. Each circumstance has its own factors which may be taken into
account,

practice may be a factor taken into account when assessing nuisance. The test of
nuisance considers a number of factors: location, time of occurrence, duration,
frequency, convention, importance, value to the community and difficulty in avoiding
external effects upon receptors.

The following is abstracted frbm the application:

The following table (a) shows the maximum amaunt of events
that will be staged that relate to evenis where music is
pPnimary purpose of entertainment

Table a)

EVENT TYP PACITY REGULARITY

LA 15.000 - 30,000 4 times per ve

MEOTUM 000 - 14,999 J times per ve

MAL 0-4,980 9 times per vear

The following table {b) shows the maximum amaunt of events
that will be staged thal relate to evants where music is not the
primary purpose of enfertainment

Table b)
EVENT TYP P
LA 0.0
MEDIUM a0

MALL 0

NS70 Rev: February 2017 4



Page 128

E
Ve music [ Wi the pierformance of Ive music take place ndoors of oidoors or b
tandard cays and timings | please tick [ (pleaseread puidancencte2)
(plense read guktancancts 8| Indoors ) Oudoors ¢E( Both ]

Day[ Stant ] Finish
Mon 109.00 22.30

Fuli delalis regarding how live music will operate within the park can be
ound in the operating schedule

Tue [09.00 22.30

Wed 109.00 22.30 There will be no seasonal variations

Thurm.oo 2.30

Fri 1900 2230 " 1There wil be @ imil o the amount of Imes Tive music can be staged
within Alexandra Park. This has been shown within the operating
schedule. The license will aliow for 4 large music avants up to 30k, 3
Sat [09.00 22 30 medium slzed music svents up o 15k and 9 smalier music events upto
k. A full breakdown of this is shown In the operaling schedule

Sun [10.00 32.00

In May 2016 Vanguardia were commissioned by Alexandra Palace to produce a report
titles “Alexandra Palace Park noise assessment”

In section 3 the report discusses possible noise criteria with reference to the Code of
Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts {the Code of Practice or the Pop
Code).

They highlight in paragraph 3.4 that a criticism of the Pop Code is that the range in the
number of events per year with the same LAeq noise criterion is too large and that the
difference between 75dBA for up to three event days per year and a music noise level not
exceeding the background noise level by more than 15 dB(A) over a 15-minute period
may be too large for the corresponding increase in the number of event days each year.
For example, 3 events per year has a similar impact on the community than 4 events but
12 events have a different impact on the community.

In paragraph 3.8 a number of events are highlighted which depart from the Pop Code
criteria.

In paragraph 4 the report states that an attended background noise survey was carried
out on the evening of Saturday 23~ April 2016 between 19:00hrs and 23:00hrs in
accordance with the guidance contained in the Code of Practice on Environmental Noise
Control at Concerts.

The report then predicts noise levels at locations around the park but states that whilst
the noise prediction model provides a relatively accurate indication of the noise impact at
noise sensitive properties, it can in no way guarantee the actual operational noise levels
of an event as meteorological conditions such as temperature inversions and wind

NS70 Rev: February 2017 5



Page 129

direction may have a significant {up to 15dB) effect on noise levels at noise sensitive
properties during an event, the effects of which cannot be readily predicted.

Table 7 oise levels {or o . then eptor | 0
Scenario

Leocation LabegT o zui 31 3T 471 = 8 [ 7 B aTumi‘n 12 "t_—"_
Mixing Desk 95 35 195 | 35 T 5575 95 95 95 | 35 35 35 35 | 3 s 95
Dukes Avornme 57 52 ] a3 [3 aq 73 61 64 52 43 I N 43|
Speinglield Dttwse ) 68 &4 63 ] 53 65 3 e | PE63 & 5l A3 |oa CI|
North View Road &9 13 63 &7 &5 63 60 52 &1 73 T 63 | 66 | 39 | 5 aq_ |
LenanduaPui Road | S8 | 81 | 55— - T N 0 O 2 0 O S S O I O 75
Swonfosd |5 | % T s — &3 % | s3 at 1755 1760 [ 52 | ea | 35 T R Y
Neweland Fiosd &l B1 3 B2 &4 52 i 4 53 G - T U T 9% S&
Vallance Road 2 1 59 ) EF B7 | 6% 61 46 %0 | =9 53 1 47 a5 (B 74 TEEE,
Springhield A 172 R - e | g i 70 | oo M fre ] | |
Vallance Road 12) | I | [ {5 81
AP Pat Rd10r | - | | - T4
Redstor Raad” T I 65 | o4 & | 6 Bl=|en 62 i by 5 [ =
Noeth View Roed 12T - = milge= ] - s | @85 - e P L

Paragraph 6.9 offers a possible solution

“A possible approach in agreeing noise limits for events would be to assess each event
On a case by case basis and apply entertainment noise limits based on the event type

that calendar year. For example, if 2 event days with a noise limit of 756dBLAeq,15min had
been agreed during that calendar year, a further number of event days may be agreed at
a lower lavel such as 15dB above the background noise level. Altematively, different
areas could operate under different external licences to allow for a noise limit of
75dBLAeq,15min for up to three events per calendar year. This would not apply to events
already held at the venue.” '

| consider that this approach should be given consideration by the Licensing sub-
committee

NS70 Rev: February 2017 . 6




Page 130

For reference the following applies to Finsbury Park events

Appendix 1- monitoring points and background levels

Approved locations representative of the noise sensitive premises likely to experience the
greatest increase in noise levels as a result of events held in Finsbury Park

Location

Background Noise
Level
[Hourly LA90]
19:00-23:00hrs

Notes

Noise Limit
(dB(A) LAs,, 15min)

Seven Sisters Road,
N4

[LB Hackney]

63 dB(A)

Taken approx. mid-
way along park
length.

Very busy main road-
traffic predominates.

78 dB(A)

Adolphus Road, N4

[LB Hackney)

51 dB(A)

Taken mid-way
between Gloucester
Drive & Alexandra
Grove.

Runs parallel to
Seven Sisters Road-
minimal traffic-
shielded by medium
rise flats.

66 dB(A)

Woodstock Road,
N4

47 dB(A)

Taken at North bend.
Separated from park
by busy railway line-
rear bedrooms face
Park.

62 dB(A)

Stapleton Hall
Road, N4

41 dB(A)

Taken 30m East of
junction with
Quernmore Road.
Residential- minimal
traffic-located on a
hill overlocking North
side of Park.

56 dB(A)

Lothair Road South,
N4

46 dB(A)

Taken 30m East of
junction with Alroy
Road. Parallel to
Endymion Road.

61 dB(A)

Rowley Gardens,
N4

[LB Hackney)

49 dB(A)

Taken centre of
“guadrangle”.

On East side of Park
& in middle of high
rise flats.

64 dB(A)

NS70 Rev: February 2017




Page 131

Sound levels at the monitoring points should not exceed the above background by more
than 15dB when measured as a 15 minute LA,

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Noise is defined as unwanted sound. The range of audible sound is from 0dB to 140dB,
which is taken to be the threshold of pain. The sound pressure detected by the human
ear covers an extremely wide range.

The decibel (dB) is used to condense this range into a manageable scale by taking the
logarithm of the ratio of the sound pressure and a reference sound pressure.

The unit of frequency is Hz. 1 Hz is one pressure fluctuation in one second. The frequency
response of the ear is usually taken to be about 16Hz (number of oscillations per second)
to 18,000Hz. The ear does not respond equally to different frequencies at the same level.
It is more sensitive in the mid-frequency range than at the lower and higher frequencies,
and because of this, the low and high frequency component of a sound are reduced in
importance by applying a weighting (filtering) circuit to the noise measuring instrument.
The weighting which is most used and which correlates best with the subjective response
1o noise is the dB(A) weighting. This electronic filter matches the variation in the frequency
Sensitivity of the meter to that of the human ear. This is an internationally accepted
standard for noise measurements.

The ear can just distinguish a difference in loudness between two noise sources when
there is a 3dB(A) difference between them. Also when two sound sources of the same
noise level are combined the resultant level is 3dB(A) higher than the single source. When
two sounds differ by 10dB(A)} one is said to be twice as loud as the other.

Examples of various noise levels are given below:

Sound Level dB(A)

O - 10 Threshold of hearing

10 - 20 Radio Studio

20 - 30 Bedroom at night

30 - 40 Municipal Library

40 - 50 Living room in an urban area

50 - 60 Typical Commercial Office

60 - 70 Loud conversation

70 - 80 Average traffic on a busy street cormner
80 - 90 Inside a city bus / underground train
100 - 110 Typical alarm clock (1 yard away)
110 - 120 car horn (1 yard away)

120 — 130 Pneumatic drill (1 yard away)

130 - 140 Threshold of pain

NS70 Rev: February 2017 8



Page 132

The subjective response to a noise is dependent not only upon the sound pressure level
and its frequency, but also its intermittency.

LAeq: Equivalent Continuous Sound Pressure (ambient) Level The A-weighted sound
pressure level of a steady sound that has, over a given period, the same energy as the
fluctuating sound under investigation. It can be considered to be the average energy level
over the specified measurement period (t) and is a widely used indicator for environmental
noise.

LAN: the A-weighted sound level exceeded for % of the measurement period. LA90 is

used to define the background noise level, i.e. the noise that would remain once all local
noise sources were removed.

NS70 Rev: February 2017 9



Page 133

APPENDIX B2 - LICENSING AUTHORITY



Page 134

Recommended Conditions for Alexandra Palace external Premises Licence.

THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER

il

2.

Planning meetings will be held in advance of the events with the Local Authority and other
agencies to ensure that they are satisfied with the arrangements.

A suitable entry policy will be adopted which will include procedures for the searching of
persons and their belongings on entry.

The Licensee will require the contractor to be responsible for the bars to operate a strict
Challenge 21 policy and all bar staff will be trained to adhere to this policy.

Notification and Finish Time

The promoter should notify MPS of a proposed event no later than three calendar months
prior to the proposed date and provide an Event Management Plan.

The finish time PER EVENT must be agreed by the SAG at least one calendar month prior
to the event. This must take into account other events or travel issues that may have an
impact.

Ingress and Egress

A comprehensive and satisfactory traffic management plan (TMP), including full details of
ingress and egress management. This must be agreed by MPS, LBH (and other impacted
local traffic authorities), TFL (as traffic authority and for Underground and Buses) and
National Rail. Without the agreement of all parties to the TMP one month before the event,
the event cannot take place.

When required by the Met Police the event must be supported by a traffic management
order (TMO) which will provide the lawful authority for all road closures and traffic
diversions. This must have been approved by the relevant traffic authority/ies.

10. Implementation, management and enforcement of the TMP and TMO must be by

adequately trained stewards. Sufficient and appropriately briefed and trained staff must be
deployed to manage queues at all transport hubs significantly affected by each event.

The locations and timings of these deployments to be agreed with the SAG.

11. Sufficient barriers must be provided in order to facilitate a safe queuing environment and

deliver patrons to the stations at a rate that the stations can deal with.

Major incident and contingencies

12.The EMP should incorporate major incident plans and procedures. These plans should

address crowd safety issues, RVP's, access by emergency vehicles and arrangements for
casualty evacuation.

13. The EMP should also include protocols for transference of control of the event to the MPS

Silver commander in the event of a major incident or any incident beyond the capacity of
the stewards to deal with.



Page 135

PUBLIC SAFETY

14. Specific risk assessments will be produced to ensure that all elements of risk are addresses
as far as reasonably practicable and suitable and sufficient control measures adopted.

15.An agreed and appropriate level of emergency first aid and ambulance provision will be on
site throughout the event. This will include mobile FA patrols, the levels of which will be
determined by a medical risk assessment and HSG195.

16. A detailed fire risk assessment will be produced and suitable levels of portable fire fighting
equipment will be provided on site.

17.Prior approval will be obtained for the use of any special effects and relevant health and
safety information will be provided prior to the event.

18.The applicant will liaise with the London Borough of Haringey Environmental Health
Department prior to the events to ensure that the appropriate information is made available
in relation to food handling and hygiene.

19.A multi-agency Event Control Room managed by the applicant will be operational
throughout events.

General matters
20. Unless otherwise agreed with the Council, the total number of people to be accommodated
for the purposes of this Licence, in any event site at any one time shall not be more than
49,999 (this figure must also include security, staff, catering concession staff, performers
and employees).

21.The tickets manifest must be shown to the Licensing Officer and a copy kept by LBH.

22.There will be no changes to finalise agreed EMP 1 month before the proposed event,
23. Permission for any deviation from this agreed EMP must be approved by the Licensing
Authority before the license holder makes any alterations after this time.

24.The events shall be conducted in compliance with the Purple Guide Book for Safety at
Outdoor Concerts.

25. Good quality CCTV Coverage must be provided to cover the concert site and all main
public entrances to and from the concert site.

26. The provision and erection of an integrated system of prominent temporary signage,
directing patrons to and from the event site.

27.The locations of public toilets should be the subject of prominent directional signage.

28.The provision of adequate Temporary Lighting to be shown on layout map. Emergency
lights to be turned on 1 hour before sunset.

29. The provision of adequate receptacles at each entrance to the Park for the storage and
removal of seized alcohol.

30.The provision and location of any ticket sales booth for the Concerts must be agreed as
part of the EMP.

31.Upon request, authorised Enforcement Officers of the Responsible Authorities on duty in
that capacity of Licensing Authority, Environmental Health Team, Metropolitan Police
Service and London Fire Brigade, must be provided with security passes for full and free
access at all times to each and every part of the licensed area.



Page 136

32.The Licensee shall ensure that no person below the relevant age shall be permitted to view
or participate in any performance subjected to age-related restrictions. Such steps will be
set out and agreed as part of the EMP.

33.The Licensee shall reasonably request the performer to refrain from mingling with the
audience, especially if there is a risk of an over-zealous audience. Any interaction with the
audience must be pre- planned and agreed with the Licensing Authority. If the performer
wishes to come down from the stage to interact with the audience, this should not be for
more than 15 minutes for the entire performance unless otherwise stipulated by the
Licensing Officer. If necessary, the performer must be escorted by sufficient security
personnel. The Licensee shall also pre-select/limit the number of audience who wish to go
on stage to present perform with the performer. No performer will climb any structure of the
stage.

34. The Licensee shall reasonably request that performers do not sing or play any vulgar,
obscene or banned songs or carry out indecent acts or make any vulgar gestures, actions
or remarks during the performance. He shall also ensure that the attire of the performers do
not offend the general public, e.g., attire which expose the groin, private parts, buttock or
female breast(s).

35. The Licensee shall reasonably request that the songs / acts performed do not offend or
denigrate any race or religion, demean, humiliate or insult the dignity of any section of the
community.

36. The required number of designated disabled car park spaces shall be provided and shown
on the layout plan. Induction loops should be provided at customer service points. A
platform for disabled viewing must be provided to accommodate the numbers of wheelchair
users and people with disabilities attending the events {(including their carers where
appropriate). The platform should have easy level access to and from the concert site.
Dedicated toilet provision shall also be located adjacent to the viewing platform. There
should be an adequate number of SIA/Stewards designated to assist in the smooth
operation of all facilities in this regard.

37.The timings of events to be agreed to ensure that there is no conflict with nearby schools
and concert goers.

38. Any music in the hospitality areas will be played at background levels after the main
showdown times.

Communication conditions

39.A plan of the area that must be leafleted by the promoter no less that 14 days before the
event is due to begin, this must be agreed with the licensing authority, Parks Service and
Councils Highway Authority This leaflet will have the information relating to any traffic
management order, complaints line information, times of rehearsals, travel information,
Waste/Litter Management Plan, vehicular access/parking restrictions, pedestrian access
restrictions, preferred access routes etc.

40.A community hotline as outlined in the Enforcement Response representation must be
provided and staffed by the promoter/or agency. This line must be in operation from 09:00
to midnight on the day of each concert. The facility is for local residents/businesses to call
in with any complaints or concems relating to issues surrounding the concerts. The
community hotline number is to be published in the leaflet circulated by the promoter.



Page 137

41. A contact number for residents for complaints during the build up and break down periods is
also to be provided.

42. Complaints or concemns that cannot be dealt with by the promoter should be referred onto
the appropriate Agency or the Licensing Officer onsite. A log of all calls must be kept and
should be inclusive of name, address, telephone number, details of complaint, action taken,
and any resolutions/outcomes.

43.A copy of the log of calls and associated information must be sent by e-mail to the
Licensing Officer licensing@haringey.gov.uk following each concert. Figures on ejections
from the event due to drugs or excessive alcohol use and or anti-social behaviour must be
recorded. A medical breakdown will also need to recorded and given to the Licensing
Authority on request.

44.A communication system must be provided to ensure the effective operation of the site
under both normal and emergency evacuation conditions. The Licensee must provide an
adequate incident control centre and a rendezvous point for the Police and other
emergency services.

45. There shall be a welfare point (or equivalent area) for the reporting and management of lost
children. The welfare point will be staffed by trained (and appropriately certified by the
Criminal Records Bureau) members of staff who will be in radio contact with the head
steward and the safety co-ordinator.

Waste considerations
46. The Waste/Litter Management Plan contained in the Final Event Management Plan must be
complied with in full. The pedestrian routes into the park must be looked after by litter teams
during and after the Concerts. These areas must be litter free by 6am on the morning after
each Concert.

47 .A sufficient number of easily identifiable, readily accessible receptacles for refuse must be
provided, including provisions for concessions. Arrangements must be made for regular
collection. Public areas must be kept clear of refuse and other combustible waste prior to
and, so far as is reasonably practicabie, during the licensed event.

48.An information point or points to be made available around the site for customers to report
concems, lost phones, bags etc. Staff to be able to assist customers in contacting relevant
companies to block phones or to put a stop on lost cards etc.

Alcohol considerations

49.The details in the final EMP relating to the Bars at the Events shall be complied with. The
drinks can only be dispensed in plastic/paper cups or plastic bottles. No glass or cans are
permitted with the exception of designated hospitality areas to which the public do not have
access. SIA security staff must ensure that people in the hospitality area do not come into
the main arena with glasses or bottles. Appropriate SIA and stewarding must be in place at
all times to ensure that no underage person is sold or is consuming alcohol on the concert
site. All bars must close by 22:00 on the night of each event.

50. The name and contact telephone number of the Designated Premises Supervisor shall be
displayed in a prominent position on the premises, so that it is clearly visible. Each bar
should have a named individual managing the bar and this person must be Personal
license holder.

51.Bars will not be permitted to run price promotions, happy hours or other promotions
designed to encourage excessive drinking.



Page 138

52. If mobile drink servers are to be placed in the crowd {MDS), they will need to be
accompanied by SIA approved officers throughout the event. We would prefer this service
was not offered and customers made to attend the bars to purchase alcohol.

SIA and Stewards
53. The provision of an agreed number of SIA and stewards at agreed locations outside the
environs of the Park as part of the EMP, to ensure guidance is being given and directing
conceit patrons to the concert site both before and after the concerts.

54. All staff should be able to describe the provisions for disabled people’s access.

55. The Licence Holder shall employ sufficient numbers of stewards/marshals as required by
the size of the event as agreed in the EMP to ensure that patrons leave the premises safely
SIA stewards and general stewards must be proactive in preventing public urination in and
around the park and must be fully briefed in this regard.

56.SIA and general Stewards must be proactive and manage large queues forming at sanitary
accommodation areas. They must assist in the diversion of spectators from these over-
crowded areas to altemative sanitary accommodation.

57.Any queue which forms outside the premises shall be stewarded at all times to ensure that
minimal disturbance is caused.

58.The Licensee shall encourage patrons not to congregate outside the premises after the
event has finished.

59. Promotional literature and tickets will contain information regarding public transport options
and public conveniences and shall request persons to leave the area in an orderly manner.

60. Publicity and signage shall be produced to provide access information in advance of the
event.

Sanitation
61. The contact details of the supervisor for the sanitary facilities to be provided to the
Licensing Officer.

62. There will be a provision of adequate portable toilet facilities outside the concert site, each
block of toilets to be suitably located to serve the event goers both on ingress as well as
egress from the event.

Egress

63. Unless otherwise agreed, the Licensee must ensure an Egress Management Plan is presented to
and agreed by the Haringey Safety Advisory Group, or their authorised representative, no later than
28 days prior to the event. Please note: The Egress Management Plan may require the closure of
surrounding roads with the approval of the relevant authorities.

64. The robust management of this plan may require assistance from the MPS and appropriate
costs associated with this will be met by the promoter. Provision of policing requirements
should be jointly risk-assessed for each event.

65. For the avoidance of doubt the footprint of the concert will be viewed to include the areas
within the traffic management order. Other transport hubs away from Alexandra Palace
itself may require additional stewarding from the promoter. Costs are to be met by the
promoter.



Page 139

66. The provision of an agreed number of SIA and stewards at agreed locations outside the
event site to ensure event goers do not exit the park into residential streets other than via
those exits detailed in the Egress Management Plan.

Health and Safety
67. Adequate rigid barriers or fences designed to adequately resist right-angle and parallel

loads commensurate with probable crowd pressure must be provided around any stage and
other location where it is necessary to limit crowd pressure in the interests of safety.

68. Details of all marquees, tented structures and temporary structures should be provided
including emergency exits and signage, fire warning and fire fighting equipment.

69. All fabric, including curtains and drapes used on stage for tents and marquees, or plastic
and weather sheeting, shall be inherently or durably flame retardant to the relevant British
Standards. Certificates of Compliance must be available upon request

70. Full structural design details and calculations of any stages and structures, as approved by
building control, to be erected within the licensed area, must be submitted to the licensing
Authority at least 28 days beforehand. A certificate from a competent person or engineer
that a completed structure has been erected in accordance with the structural drawings and
design specification must be available for inspection prior to a relevant structure being used
during the licensed event.

71.Any moving flown equipment must contain a device or method whereby failure in the lifting
system would not allow the load to fall. All hung scenery and equipment must be provided
with a minimum of two securely fixed independent suspensions such that in the event of
failure of one suspension the load will be safely sustained

72.The Event Organiser, contractor and any staff employed thereof shall comply with the
Conditions of this Licence.

73.All functions relating to the setting up, the execution and dismantling of the event, the
licensed area and all equipment are camied out in accordance with the Health and Safety at
Work etc. Act 1974 and all related regulations, Codes of Practice and Guidance Notes. The
Promoter must afford all assistance for the necessary inspections relating to Health and
Safety both prior to and during the licensed event. All documentation required by the Healith
and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 relating to contractors and employees must be available
for inspection by authorised officers at all times during the licensed event.

74.There shall be a welfare point (or equivalent area) for the reporting and management of lost
children. The welfare point will be staffed by trained (and appropriately certified by the
Criminal Records Bureau) members of staff who will be in radio contact with the head
steward and the safety co-ordinator.

75. Notification of any teams to be used related to the protection of merchandise must be
shared with the Licensing Authority. Such teams do not have powers to deal with street
trading or counterfeit merchandising matters outside of the licensed area.

76.The build up and break down time lines and changes to routes through the Park to be
shared with the Licensing Team and Park Service to enable the relevant dates etc to be
passed through to the public as part of the EMP.



" Page 140

77.The Licensing Authority reserves the right where it is considered that one or more of the
above conditions have not been met to its satisfaction the consent for the event will not be
given

THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE

78.The Licensee will contract a competent acoustic consultant who, in liaison with the
Licensing Authority will produce a Noise Management Plan specific to the event. The
acoustic consultant representative will be on site throughout the event to ensure that noise
levels are met.

Dealing with complaints
79. A complaints book or electronic record will be held on the premises to record details of any

complaints received from neighbours through the dedicated noise line and the action taken.
The information is to include, where disclosed, the complainant's name, location, date time
and subsequent remedial action undertaken. This record must be made available at all
times during the event for inspection by council officers of the initial record. Records must
be submitted to the Licensing team with a final log to be submitted within a further 7 days.

Prevention of nuisance from light
80. Security lights/tower will be positioned to minimise light intrusion to nearby residential

premises.

Stage areas
81.The Licensing Authority should be consulted regarding the siting of all stages in the

premises and agree on their location for all productions.

82.The Premises Licence holder / appointed noise consultant shall be aware of the guidance
contained in the Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts or any
subsequent equivalent Guidance and make use of its recommendations where appropriate
to the circumstances of this application.

83. Information provided to residents and businesses 2 weeks prior to the event must include a
synopsis of information about the event including dates and times based upon the Premises
Licence application, information on how it is intended residents will be protected from
excessive noise and details of a dedicated and live complaints telephone line. The
Licensing team will provide a list of roads within a reasonable distance from the Park
specifying the required distribution list. A draft of the letter to residents and businesses must
be provided to the Haringey Licensing team no later than & weeks prior to the event.

84.0n the day before and on days during the event sound checks and rehearsals shall not
exceed 90 minutes duration within an agreed 3 hour window. Times of sound checks and
rehearsal will be agreed by the Licensing Authority with a final log to be submitted within a
further 7 days. Sound checks and rehearsals are not permitted on any other day.

85. Monitoring of the locations representative of the noise sensitive premises must be
undertaken by the appointed noise consultant on behalf of the Premises Licence holder
throughout the times where there is regulated entertainment of any kind and readings /
noise levels must be stored for subsequent reporting or disclosure to appointed Licensing
Authority representatives as they are obtained and upon request at any time. A minimum of
two persons must be available outside the park to monitor noise levels and to provide a
response to complainants.

86.Any reasonable request of the Licensing officer representative will be complied with by the
Premises Licence holder in regard to sound levels.



d Page 141

General
87.A Noise Management Plan which is regulariy updated in the run up to the event and is a
“Live” document will be made available to the Licensing Authority and their representatives.

THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN
88.Steps to address the protection of children will be identified in pre-event documentation.

89.The Designated Premises Supervisor will ensure that all bar staff are trained and fully
aware and compliant of age verification procedures and requirements for alcohol sales, for

example, Challenge 21.

90.Age restricted films indicating nudity or semi-nudity will not be shown in the presence of
children.

91.Alcohol may only be sold to individuals over the age of 18 with valid proof of identification
with one of the following:

A valid passport

A photo driving license issued in a European Union Country
A proof of age standard card system

A citizen card, supported by the Home Office



Page 142

APPENDIX B3 - METROPOLITAN POLICE



Page 143

THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER

A suitable entry policy will be adopted which will include procedures for the
searching of persons and their belongings on entry.

The Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) to have the right to check and, if
necessary and appropriate, to veto any artists who are scheduled to perform
at an event. This will be discussed in advance with the organisers and, where
security and sensitivity allows, the MPS will give reasons for their decision. An
initial list of proposed performers should be provided by the organisers to the
licensing authority and the MPS no later than 3 months before the event
starts, with the final list of performers is to be provided no later than 3 weeks
before the event starts.

Where replacements are necessary due to illness or other unforeseen
circumstances, details of any replacement performers are to be provided to
the MPS as soon as reasonably practicable and prior to any marketing
communications.

A communication system must be provided to ensure the effective operation
of the site under both normal and emergency evacuation conditions. The
Licensee must provide an adequate incident control centre and a rendezvous
point for the Police and other emergency services

Ejection or refusal of entry will be carried out by licensed security staff.

The Licensee will require the contractor to be responsible for the bars to
operate a strict Challenge 21 policy and all bar staff will be trained to adhere
to this policy.

Police Role

The MPS will not perform ‘stewarding’ roles nor undertake the responsibilities
of the event organiser or other agencies, as these are not police core duties,

unless there is a formal request from the event organiser or other agency for

Special Police Services (SPS), which the MPS agree to provide.

Notification and Finish Time

The MPS to be provided with information including details of nature of event
and any external promoter and artists no later than three calendar months
prior to the proposed date and provide an Event Management Plan.

The finish time PER EVENT must be agreed by the LSAG at least one
calendar month prior to the event. This must take into account other events or
travel issues that may have an impact.



Page 144

Ingress and Egress

A comprehensive and satisfactory traffic management plan (TMP), including
full details of ingress and egress management. This must be agreed by MPS,
LBH (and other impacted local traffic authorities), TFL (as traffic authority and
for Underground and Buses) and rail. Without the agreement of all parties to
the TMP one month before the event, the event cannot take place.

The TMP (if required by RAs) must be supported by a traffic management
order (TMO) which will provide the lawful authority for all road closures and
traffic diversions. This must have been approved by the relevant traffic
authorityfies.

Implementation, management and enforcement of the TMP and TMO must
be by adequately trained stewards. An event TMO will require these to be
CSAS accredited.

Sufficient and appropriately briefed and trained staff must be deployed to
manage queues at all transport hubs significantly affected by each event. The
locations and timings of these deployments to be agreed with the LSAG.

Sufficient barriers must be provided in order to facilitate a safe queuing
environment and deliver patrons to the stations at a rate that the stations can
deal with.

The full cost of the TMP, including the TMO, staffing and barrier costs to be
met by the organiser/promoter. Any request for the TMP to be supported by
police officers, over and above the deployment determined by the MPS as
required to discharge the core policing duties associated with each event,
must be by way of a request for Special Police Services (SPS) pursuant to
Section 25 of the Police Act 1996. The MPS reserves full discretion to refuse
any request for SPS, and the TMP must not assume police support.

All drinks should be decanted into plastic glasses or provided in PET bottles.

Crime, disorder and public nuisance

The MPS requires the promoter to work in partnership and make all
reasonable efforts to reduce crime and disorder. The MPS seeks the following
conditions:

Where required by Police patrons entering the event should be subject to an
effective search as a condition of entry; this may include the use of metal
detecting wands and ‘metal detecting screening arches’ at ingress points. The
level of search that patrons should be subjected too should be agreed with the
SAG after an intelligence assessment.

The organiser to provide pre, during and post event crime prevention
messaging through all available channels including social media and on-site



Page 145

screens, this messaging to be agreed with the MPS and be given sufficient
prominence on site and on major ingress and egress routes:

* There must be satisfactory stewarding and SIA accredited staff to deal with all
reasonable eventualities, to be correctly briefed so they can engage with
patrons in order to help prevent crime within the event footprint;

CCTV requirements

Where The MPS deem necessary, CCTV should be provided and the ability to
provide recordings of footage in a removable format on site within a reasonable
time. This footage should be made available upon request of the MPS; as a guide
the minimum requirements for CCTV are as follows:

Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and
shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of

a) lIdentification.

b) Provide a linked record of the date, time, and place of any image.

¢} Provide good quality colour images during opening times.

d) Have a monitor to review images and recorded quality.

€) Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture
and retention.

f) Staff trained in operating CCTV.

g) Digital images must be kept for 31 days. The equipment must have a
Suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that Police can make an
evidential copy of the data they require. Copies must be available within a
reasonable time to Police on request.

Where the MPS Gold commander for the event considers it necessary to deploy
officers overtly or covertly within the event space then the promoter will facilitate
this.

Major incident and contingencies

The EMP should incorporate major incident plans and procedures. These plans
should address crowd safety issues, RVP's, access by emergency vehicles and
arrangements for casualty evacuation.

The EMP should also include protocols for transference of control of the event to
the MPS Silver commander in the event of a major incident or any incident
beyond the capacity of the stewards to deal with.



Page 146

The protection of children from harm

The MPS expects the promoter to operate a robust Challenge 21 policy with
regards to the sale of alcohol on site. There should be sufficient provision by
appropriately trained and accredited staff to deal with any U18's requiring
assistance.

The Licensee shall ensure that no person below the relevant age shall be
permitted to view or participate in any performance subjected to age-related
restrictions. Such steps will be set out and agreed as part of the EMP.

There shall be a welfare point (or equivalent area) for the reporting and
management of lost children. The welfare point will be staffed by trained {and
appropriately certified by the Criminal Records Bureau) members of staff who will
be in radio contact with the head steward and the safety co-ordinator.



Page 147

APPENDIX C - REPRESENTATIONS FROM ‘OTHER
PARTIES’



Page 148

APPENDIX C1 - ‘OTHER PARTIES’AGAINST
APPLICATION



Page 149

Anderson Chanel

From:

Sent: 25 March 2017 21:51

To: Licensing

Cc: S

Subject: Alexandra Palace Grounds Licensing Act 2003 Representation

Attachments: Noise Council Code on Noise Contral at Concerts.pdf; ATT00001.htm; NANR292

_Napier_Final_Report.pdf; ATTO0002.htm

« We wish to make a representation in relation to the licence application for Alexandra Palace
Grounds

« Qur personal details are © ‘and
contact emails - Sy _ . and

e We qualify to make representations because we live in the area which will be affected by the licence
application,

e We are objecting to the licence application on the grounds of the prevention of public nuisance:

o The application will result in a significant increase in the number of outdoor events with
associated noise nuisance.

o We wish to object because the total number of events at the high noise levels specified in the
application will result in an unacceptable level of noise nuisance given the frequency of
events specified in the application. Either the number of events needs to be reduced or the
noise generated at the events needs to be reduced.

o As alocal resident I value the peace and quiet of this residential area and wish this to
continue into the future, particularly in the evenings and weekends.

o We accept that a balance has to be reached to meet the commercial needs of Alexandra
Palace.

o We submit that the licence application should only be granted if it complies with the "Code of
Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts™ as produced by The Noise Council.

o Details of the code of practice can be found at

icy/noise_council _environmental _noise.html and we have attached a

copy for information.

o Specifically we would wish to object to any false distinction between events which have
music as their primary purpose and those which do not have music as their primary purpose.

o All external events which will create noise levels over and above background levels should be
considered together. It is the impact in terms of noise nuisance which is important not the
nature of the event.

o As such all events should be captured within the guidelines laid down in the code of practice
such that where events are taking place between 4 to 12 days per calendar year per venue the
Music Noise Levels should not exceed the background noise level by more than 15dB(A)
over a 15 minute period. This is particularly important in our neighbourhood where
background noise levels are currently low.

o We want the the number of events to be limited to 12 per year and for all events the noise
levels not to exceed the background noise level by more than 15dB(A) over a 15 minute
period . See code of guidance guidelines section 3.1 - Table one.

o In addition to capture the impact of low frequency noise additional criteria should be set in
line with the code of practice. The code of practice states that even if the above guiltiness are
met that unreasonable disturbance may be occurring because of low frequency noise. The
guidance suggests that a level up to 70dB in either of the 63Hz or 125Hz octave frequency is
satisfactory. We wish this limit to be included in any approval in order to control low
frequency noise nuisance.

o We have also attached for information the Napier Research into Attitudes to Environmental
Noise from Concerts -2011. This shows that the code of practice is very relevant to real life
events which generate noise nuisance. It also shows how increasing noise levels leads to
increased levels of annoyance and hence noise nuisance.

1



Page 150

* Wealso wish to object on the ground of the nuisance which will be caused by the massive increase in
the number of people arriving in the area.

o]

The public transport service is totally inadequate to meet the demands of a significant number
of visitors impacting on local residents who use public transport.

Because of the poor public transport links many will decide to come by car and this will have
a major impact on both congestion and on parking,

Tha car parks at Alexandra Palace have a small capacity compared to the projected number of
visitors at many events. As a result many will park on local roads which are already at
capacity.

Many of the local roads do not have parking restrictions and even those that do will generally
not have restrictions at the times of the outdoor events.

Thank you for considering our representations - «



Page 151

Code of Practice on |
Environmental Noise Conirol af Concerts

THE NOISE COUNCIL



Page 152

CONTENTS

1.0 Introducticn

2.0 Definitions

3.0 Guidelines

4.0 Recommended Noise Control Procedure

Planning

Before the Event

- During the Event

Appendix I References

Appendix II Noise Council Working Party

Appendix I1T

Examples of Licensing Conditions

PAGE

10
10
11
11
13
14

15



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Page 153

INTRODUCTION

Large music events involving high powered amplification are held in sporting
stadia, arenas, -open air sites and within lightweight buildings. These events give
pleasure to hundreds and in some cases thousands of people. However, the music
from these events can cause disturbance to those living in the vicinity. The
purpose of this code is to give guidance on how such disturbance or annoyance

can be minimised.

This Code of Practice has been prepared by the Noise Council tirough a Working
Party comprising specialists who are experienced in the particular problems that
can arise with environmental noise control at concerts and similar music events.
A list of members of the working party is shown in Appendix T and a list of
technical papers providing some background data and more detailed information
is given in Appendix 1.

Various guidelines and criteria are described in this document covering a Tange
of events from the single occasional concert to a full season. It is believed that
compliance with the guidelines and the other advice given here will enable
successful concerts to be held whilst keeping to a minimum the disturbance caused
by noise. It is recognised, though, that full compliance with this code may not

eliminate all complaints, and local factors may affect the likelihood of complaints.

This Code is not designed to address the question of environmental noise arising
from discotheques, clubs and public houses, nor cnvironmenta] noise affecting

noise sensitive premises which are Structurally attached to the venue.



1.5

1.6

1.7

Page 154

This Code is designed ro assist those planning a music event, those responsjble
for licensing such events and those responsible for enforcing the nuisance
provisions of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (England and Wales) and the
Control of Pollution Act 1974 (Scoﬂandj. It addresses the environmental problem
of noise from the performance and sound checks omly, Other environmental
impacts of concerts and the question of meeting the requirements of the Noise at
Work Regulations 1989 and the guidance. given in the Health and Safety
Executive’s Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at Pop Concerts and similar

events are beyond the scope of this document.

- Compliance with this Code of Practice does not of itself confer immunity from

legal obligations.

The Noise Council is keen to receive accounts of the practical application of the

Code in order to improve and enhance its content.



2.0

DEFINITIONS
Background

Noise Level:

dB(A):

Delay Tower:

LA9|].T:

Mixer:

Page 155

The prevailing sound level at a location, measured in
terms of the Lygo,r, On an equivalent day and at an equivalent
time when no concert or sound checks are taking place.

‘The A-weighted 'sound pressure level whereby various

frequency components of sound are weighted (equalised) to
reflect the way the human ear responds to different

frequencies.

An additional set of loudspeakers employed to provide a

better spread of sound to the audience.

The equivalent contimious noise level which at a given
location and over a given period of time contains the same A-
weighted sound energy as the actual fluctuating noise at the

same location over the same period.

The A-weighted sound pressure level exceeded for 90% of

the measuring period (T).

The location where the main sound system is controlled. As
well as ensuring the correct sound balance between the
various performers, the overall level of sound for the

audience is controlled at this location.



Music Event:

Music- Noise: -

: Music Noise

. Level (MNL):

Noise
Consultant:

Noise
Monitoring

Position:

Noise-sensitive: .

Premises:

Other Urban

Venue:

Page 156

A concert or similar event where live or recorded music is

performed by a solo or group of artists before an audience.

The neise from the music and vocals during a concert or

. sound checks and not affected by other local noise sources.

.The L, of the music noise measured at 2 particular location.

A person given responsibility by the organiser of the event

for monitoring noise levels in accordance with the prevailing
conditions, and.who -has the ability and authority to make
decisions and jmplement changes in noise level during the

gvent.

. The location of the microphone within the venue from which

the Jevel of sound is monitared and controlled. For outdoor

venues, this location tends to be at the mixer.

Includes premises used for residential purposes hospitals or
similar institutions, .education establishments (when in use),
or places of worship (during recognised times and days of
worship) or any premises used for any other purposes likely
to be affected by the Music Noise.

An urban park or similar area which is not normally used for

major organised events.



Rural Venue:

" Sound

Engineer:

Urban Stadia

or Arenas:

Page 157

A park, open space or grounds of a country house in a mral

area not normally used for major organised events.

Person employed to control the sound quality

of the music for the audjence,

A regular veme for major Sporting or similar

evenis in an urban area.



3.0

3.1

Page 158

GUIDELINES : Ny

The Music Noise Levels (MNL) when assessed at the prediction stage or

. easured during sound checks or concerts should not exceed the guidelines shown

in Table 1 at 1 metre from the-fagade of any neise sensitive premises for events
held between the hours of 0900 and 2300.

TABLE 1
Concert days per Venue Guideline
cnlemiar year, Catepory
per venue
lw3i Urban Siadia or The MNL should rot exceed 75dB(A)
Arenas over a 15 minute period
l1t03 Other Urban and The MNL should not exceed 65dB(A)
Rural Venues over a 15 minute period
91012 All Venues The MNL should not £xceed the
background noise leve!’ by more than
i5dB(A) over a 15 minute period

Notes to Table 1

L9 The value used should be the arithmeric average of the hourly L,,, measured over the Jast four hours
of the proposed music event or aver the enrire period of the proposed music event if scheduled to last
for less than four houys.

N There are many other issues which affee: the aceeptability of prupr.ned concens. This code is designed
to address the environmentml npise issve alone.

3. In ipeations where individuals mey be affected by nate than one venue, the impace of 2]l the cvents
should be considered.

4. For those veses where more than theee svenis per calendar yeer are expected, the frequency and

Acheduling of the events will affect the level of diswrbance. In particular, additional disairbance can
arise if events accur op more than three consecutive days without o reduction in the permined MNL.
3. For indoor venues nsed for up 1o about 30 cvents per calendar year an MNL not exceeding the
! background nojse by more than 5dB(A) over a fifiren minule penod is recommended far events finishing
no later than 2300 hours.



32

3:3

34

Page 159

6. Account should be tiken of the noise impact of other events ata venue. It may be uppropriats 1 reduce
the permitted noise from = concen if the other events-are noisy.

T. For venues where just onc event has been held an ons day in any one year, it has been fonnd passible
m edoprt a higher jimir value without Causing an unacceptable level of disnurbance.

For events continuing or held between the hours 2300 and 0900 the music
noise should not be audiblq within noise-sensitive p_mn{ises with windows

Open in & typical manner for ventilation.

Notes to Guideline 3.2

I. The use nf inatdibility os 0 gufdetine is not universally nccepied as an appropriate method of conirnl.
Refertnces 6 & 7 {Appendix 1) sat put the varjous issues, This guideline is proposed as there is
inmfficient e-vldnm:: available (o pive more precisz guidance,

i

Control can be a:u:n:imd in this simation by limiting the musu: noise so that it is just audibie uumdu
the noise sensitive premises. When that is aciieved Il can be assumed that the music poise is not
oudible inside the noise sensitive premises.

The nature of music events means that these guidelines are best used in the

setting of limits prior to the event (see 4.0),

Assessment of noise in tenﬁs of dB(A) is very convenient but it can
underestimate the intrusiveness of low frequency noise. Purthermore, low
frequency noise can be very noticeable indoors. Thus, even i|f the dB(A)
guideline is being met, unreasonable distarbance may be occurring because
of the low frequency noise. With certain types of events, therefore, it may
be necessary to set an additional criterion in terms of low frequc'néy noise,

or apply additional control conditions,

Notes to Guideline 3.4
1. + 3t has been found that it is the frequency fmbalance which causes d ismrbance. Cansequemnly there is
less of u problem from the low frequency comtent of the music nojse near :u an open air venue than

further away.



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Page 160

1. Although no precise guidance is availeble the following may be found helpful (Ref B):
A level up 1 70dB n either of the 63Hz ar 125Hz octave frequency band bs sausfactory; @ leve) of

80dB or more in either of those ociave Freguency bands causes significant disurbente.

Complaints may occur simply because people some distance from the event
can hear it and that, consequently, they feel the music must be loud even
though the guldelmes are being met. In fact topographical and climatic
conditions can bc such that the MNL is lower at locations nearer to the

VEnue.

Although care has been taken to make these guidelines compatible with what
occurs at existing venues, this may not be the case at every location. Where
arrangements are satisfactory with either higher or lower noise levels than

those contained in the.guidelines, these limits should continue.

Tt has been found that if there has been good public relations at the planning
stage between the event organisers and those living nearby, annoyance can

be kept to a minimurm.

The music noise level should be measured using an integrating-averaging

sound level meter complying with type 2 or better of BS6698. The

. background moise level should be measured using a sound level meter

complying with type 2 or better of BS5969. Time weighting F (fast
response) should be used. '
When measuring L, in order to determine the music noise level, care must

be taken to avoid local noise sources influencing the result. When the local

. noise is intermittent, a series of short term L, measurements should be

" made .of the-music noise while thé local source is absent or has subsided to

typically low or mean minimum values. An averagé of these short term

8



3.10

3.11

Je1d

Page 161

readings will give an.estimate of the music noijse level. A further option
would be to measure the A-weighted sound pressure level On 2 sound leve]
meter complying with type 2 or better of BS5969 with the time weighting set
to 8 (slow response) when the music is loudest and not influenced by local
nojse. If the local source .ig continuous, make a measurement of the LA,q of
the local source when the music is not occurring,. and make a carrection to
the measured Lae; when the music is occurring to obtain an estimate of the
music noise level.

The-nature of many concerts requires the sound volume level to be increased
during the event to enhance the performance. The Pprevailing noise control
restrictions should be borne in mind 50 that the sound volume at the start of
the event is not too high, hence allowing scope for an increase during the
event,

Some concerts are accompanied by associated activities (e.g. fairgmunds)

which can be noisy. These should be teken into account when setting the

limit for the music noise level.

When monitoring the music noise level, the sound of the andience applause
tan be a significant contributor. It is not possible to address this jssue
precisely; instead it is recommended that any such effect be noted.

L



4.9

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Page 162

RECOMMENDED-NOISE CONTROL PROCEDURE

This procedure has been developed over several iyears and found to provide
an effective means of addressing the problem of ‘erivironmental noise conirol
at events. The maid feamres of the procedure are set out below and
references are made 10 various technical papérs which give more details.

4

Planning

Determine the sound propagation characteristics between the proposéd venne
and those: living nearby who inight-be affected by noise, and carry out an
appropriate backg.round'noise survey- - This should -be undertaken by a
competent person who is experienced in noise propagation and control,

particularly from music events.

Check the viability of the evént against the-relevant guideline levels. This
is achieved by determining fror 4.2 above the sound level experienced by
the audience which would allow the guidelines to be met. Research shows
that the music noise level in the audience by the mixer position at.pop
concerts is typically 100dB(A), and that levels below 95dB(A) will be
unlikely to provide satisfactory entertainment for the audience.

Prospective licensees should give the local authority as much notice as

possible of the proposed event especially if more than one event is planned

during a calendar year.

10



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

. lfet'oré the Event

Page 163

The local authority should make -use of licensing conditions and statutory
powers to implement the procedures described in this Code of Practice,
Examples of possible conditiops are given in Appendix III.

The Noise Consultant should be appointed.

. 4
'- o ' o i T

Inst;ﬂl the ioudspééker s'};stem early énnugh to enable ali;gi]nicnt and

pr, l". - it O £ o 3
orientation to be optimised to mimmise noise disturbance.

_ Carry out a sound test ﬁﬁor to each event to ascertam the maximum level

that can prevail at the monitoring position to enable the glidelinés to be met.
This éfféctiﬁely cal'ilbratés the system, lal'cing into account as far ag pbssiblc

prevailing weather conditions, and, for indoor events, the sound insulation

of the vemue,

" Notes lo Guideline 4.4

1. It should be remembered thet the inwaduction of an wudience 10 g vemee increeses the acoustic
absorption present.  This has the effect of teducing the sound level i the Venue for o given amplifier
setting compared with the sound test, This shouid be borne in mind when seting the fimit levels,

During the Event
Advertise and operate an attended complaint telephone number through
which noise complaints can be channelled. This will enable an immediate

response to the complaints to be given and the Nojse Consultant to judge
whether .or not any adjustment to the music noise level js needed.

Establish a communication network between all those involved in noise

11



4.11

4.12

Page 164

. control. ‘This should include the local police authority.

4

Note to Guideline 4.20 -~

1. It is difficult to communicate effectively in noisy environments, especially in the vicinity of the mixer.
1t has been found helpful for those invalved in the communication nervork to use head-sews with their
two way radio sysiems.

Carry out noise monitoring within the venue at the noise monitoring position

and at sample locations outside the vepue throughout the event. If the event

_is employing one or more delay towers, additional noise monitoring may be

needed inside the vemue to control the sound output from them.

Although the limit value set at 4.8 above would be in terms of 15 minute
Lopcqs useﬁ:].cdntrol can be exercised by moniforing the L, over one minute
periods. This enables an early warning to be obtained of possible breaches
in the 15 mmutc limit. It is sometimes appropri;te to set an additional
conirol hm1t in terms of the one mimte LA;,‘ (typically some 2-3dB(A) above
the 15 minute value) and to use a level recorder display to assist the sound
engineer in checking compliance with the limit. The Noise Consultant
should advise the sound engineer of any breaches in the prescribed noise
limit, to epable a reduction in level as appropriate. The sound engineer

should also be advised of occasions when the limit has only just been met.

12



Page 165

References
1. Noise Control Techniques and Guidelines for Open Air Concerts,
I.E.T. Griffiths (ProcIOA, Vol 7, Part 3, 1985).

2. - A"Noise Control Procedure for Open Air Pop Concerts, J.E.T. Griffiths,
S.W. Turner and A.D. Wallis (ProtIOA, Vol 8, Part 4, 1986).

3. Noise Control in the Built Environment, edited by John Raberts and
Diane Fairhall, Gower Technical, 1988 (Chapters 1, 2 and 3).

4. - Environmental Noise Guidelines proposed for the new Health & Safety
Executive Guide for Pop Concerts,.1.E.T. 'Griffiths and A. Dove (ProclOA,
Vol 14, Part 5, 1992).

5. A Survey of Sound Levels at Pop Concerts, J.E.T. Griffiths (HSE Contract
Research Report No 35/1991). 3y ' '

6. Inaudibility - an Established Criterion, A.W.M. Somerville (ProclOA, Vol
13, Part 8, 1991). i

7 Noise Control at All-night Acid Honse Raves, K. Dibble (ProcIOA, Vol 13,

Part 8, 1991).
8. A smdy of Low Frequency Sound from Pop Concerts, I.E.T. Griffiths,

J, Staunton and S. Kamath (ProcIOA, Vol 15, Part 7, 1993)

13



Page 166

APPENDIX IT

Noise Council Working Party Membership

" 8.W. Turper*

A. Somerville*

A.D. Wallis*

J. Bickerdike

K. Dibble

1.E.T. Griffiths

5.8. Kamath

J. Sargent

J. Staunton

Technical Director, TBV Science

Department of Environmental Health, City of Edinburgh
District Council

Cirmus Research Limited

Leeds Polytechnic

. Ken Dibble Acoustics

Director, Travers Morgan Enviropment

Director, Pollution & Scientific, London Borough of

Brent.

Building Research Establishment

Associate, Travers Morgan Environment

* Full members of the Noise Council

14



e T it AL

1.0

2.0

3.0

Page 167

APPENDIX II

Sample Conditions Concerning

Environmental Noise Control at Concerts

The licensee shall appoint a suitably qualified and experienced noise contro]
consultant®, to the approval of the Licensing Authority, no later
than.......c.cooevemnennn.., weeks prior to the event. The pojse -control .
consultant* shall liaise between al] parties including the Licensee, Promoter,
sound system supplier, sound engineer and the licensing authority etc. on all

matters relating to noise control prior to and during the event.

If not already carried out, the noise control consultant* shall carry ont a
survey to determine the background noise levels (as defined by the Code of
Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts)at.........................
locations around the venue representative of the nojse Sensitive premises
likely to experience the largest increase in noise/highest noise level™ a5 a
result of the concert. The information obtained from this survey shall be
made available to the licensing authority...........cooeenivnn . weeks prior

to the event.

A noise propagation test shall be undertaken at least........ e s T ——
hours prior to the start of the event in order to set appropriate control limits
at the sound mmixer position. The sound system shall be configured and
operated in a similar manner as intended for the event. The sound source
used for the test shall be similar. in character to the music likely to be

produced during the event.

15



4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

Page 168

The control limits set at the mixer position shall be adequate to ensure that
Music Noise Level (MNL) shall not at any noise sensitive premises
exceed......cooves dB(A) over a 15 minute period/the background noise level
by more than ............... dB(A) over & 15 minute period* throughout the

duration of the concert.

The control limits set at the mixer position shall be adequate to ensure that
the MINL shall not at any noise sensitive premises exceed.....coiveennes dB(A)
over a 15 minute period/the background noise level by more than
................ dB(A) over a 15 minute period* throughout any rehearsal or

sound check for Lﬁe event.

. The Licensee shall ensure that the promoter, sound system supplier and all

individnal sound engineers are informed of the sound coatrol limits and that
any instructions from the noise control consultant* regarding moise levels

shall be implemented.

The appointed noise control consultant* shall continually monitor noise
Jevels at the sound mixer position and advise the sound engineer accordingly
to ensure that the poise limits are not exceeded. The Licensing Authority

shall have access to the results of the noise momitoring at any tme,

Rehearsals and ‘sound checks ‘are permitted only between: the following

hours:

16



Page 169

0.0 Music from the event is permitted only between the following hours:
................ hrs to................hrs
Note: Suitable noise conditions should also be considered with respect to

minimising noise exposure to the audience and people working at the event
as advised in the HSE document "Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at
Pop Concerts and Similar Events",

*delete as appropriate. *i.e. the Noise Consultant

17




Page 170

THE NOISE COUNCIL

The Noise Council was established by a group of professional bodies concermned with
‘problems relating to noise and vibration in the community and industrial environments. Its
aims and objectives are to promote and respond to issues relating to noise and vibration, and
to make independent technical and scientific_ expertise available to international and national .

agencies, central and local government, commerce and industry.
The Founding Bodies are:

» The Chartered Institute of Environmental Health

. The Institute of Acoustics

L The Royal Environmental Health Institute of Scotland
® The Institute of Occupational Safety & Health

© 1095
The Noise Council, Chadwick Court, 15 Hatfields, London SE1 8DJ
ISBN 0900103 51 5 Tel: 0171 928 6006 Fax: 0171 928 69353



Page 171

bpc

building performance centre

42 Colinton Road
Edinburgh
EHI0 5BT

T: 0131 455 512
F: 0131 455 5121

E: bpc@napier.ac.uk
www.napierac.uk/bpc

RESEARCH INTO ATTITUDES
TO ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE
FROM CONCERTS

(NANR 292)

September 2011

Edinburgh Napie»




Page 172

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmentai Noise From Concerts

building perfarmance centre

Acknowledgements

We are grateful to the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for their
support in sponsoring this research project. We would wish to express our thanks to
Nicola Robertson, Professor Sean Smith, Clement Luciani and other members of the
BPC team for their assistance during the project. We also express our thanks to Ipsos
MORI for their assistance and advice during the project.

Noise modelling and data processing: Analysis and report preparation :
Daniel Lurcock Richard Mackenzie

B.Eng {Hons), M.L.O.A B.Sc., F.L.O.A, MInsLS.C.E

Approved by:

Professor Sean Smith
BSe (Hons), PhD, MIOA

Edinburgh Napier University : Page 2



Page 173

NANR 292 Research into Attitudes to

Envircnmental Noise From Concerls

bpc

building performance centre

Contents
1.0 INIPOAUCHION.......c. ettt rt e e e s e ety es e s ee e e e et 4
2.0 Analysis Methodology.............c..eeeeeceemieciiereeeeesiteeeeeeeseeseere s e ssesesssemeses e e seees e 7
3.0  Concert NOISE MEASUIEMENES ........oeeeecvviisreeeeeeeeeeeee e eee e e e eeeeeee e s ees e 9
4.0  Analysis of Concert NOISE RESPONSES..........ccooermrrereeeeeeeeeeee oot s sestsseeeeeeeeeeons 21
Overall Analysis of All 10 CONCEMS.............c.ooveeeecieeeeeeeeeeee s e e eeee e 25
Green Day, MANChESLET ..........ccccoveieeiceceeceeeee e ceessee e e e se st ot 41
PINK, GIESGOW .....ccuieeeeicteererereias e s s seseeste s e s enene e et srese e es e e 45
PINK, COVENIIY ....oovei ettt et st s s s s e seans 50
Pride, BRGRION ...t eeee st et e e e sttt e 54
Help for Heroes, TWICKENNAM ..........oomeeeieeeeeeeeeeeee et et 58
PIOMS, SWANSEE .....covvetieieeierieeeecieessteie e st eeeeeeetrssesssessesmessese e e s e e e sesseeenes 62
EVOIUtION, NEWCASHE ...ttt ettt eeeeens 65
Green Day, Wembley Staditim .............cooocoiieieeeeenesneeeeeeeeeee e e seses e 69
Mowtown, Kenwood HOUSE .........oocueeiieeee e eers s e eeeee s et e e e et e s 73
KISS, Wembley AfERa..........oooeieeieeeee et eee e ee e et e e e et 77
5.0 CONCIUSIONS........oeeeeiiceeicteccse st s st ee et emeeresrssse e e e eee e s s e es e e 81
Appendix A. NOISE-RESPONSE MAPS ........cooevecietcecreeesieee e eeeee e st st e e s e 83
Appendix B. Event Meteorological Data ............cceceereereeeeeeeseeeeeeses oo eeeeeeeeeeeesees s 84

Edinburgh Napier University

Page 3



Page 174

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp @

1.0
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

building performance centre

Introduction

The Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) and the
Devolved Administrations commissioned research contract NANR 292 to assist
a future review of the Noise Council's Code of Practice on Environmental Noise

Control at Concerts.

To inform the review process Ipsos MORI and Edinburgh Napier University's,
Building Performance Centre have been appointed to carry out a social study of
attitudes to music noise of those residing in the vicinity and those attending

such events.

The study is based around 10 concert events held across the UK between May
and September 2010.

To compliment the social study Defra have let a secondary contract
(NANR 297) to undertake noise monitoring at the events where the social
studies were to be undertaken.

The purpose of this report is to analyse the results of the social study together
with the event noise to determine potential correlations that will help inform the
review of the Noise Council's Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control

at Concerts.

The UK Noise Council Code of Practice on Environmental Noise at Concerts
(1995) has, over the last 17 years, been widely adopted and utilised by local
authorities and concert promoters. It has provided a framework to achieve a
workable balance between the local authorities’ obligation to protect noise-
sensitive premises, and the local authorities’' obligation to facilitate and licence

public entertainment events.

Edinburgh Napier Univers:ty Page 4



Page 175

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

building performance centre

1.7 The key guidance from the code, which is reproduced below, provides a
framework for setting limits on the Music Noise Level based on the type of
venue and number of events to be held each year.

1.8 The Music Noise Levels (MNL) when assessed at the prediction stage or
measured during sound checks or concerts should not exceed the guidelines
shown in Table 1 at 1 metre from the facade any noise sensitive premises for
events held between the hours of 0900 and 2300.

Concsrt days per Venue Category Guideline
calendar year, per
venue
103 Urban Stadia or Arenas The MNL should niot exceed
75dB(A) over a 15 minute
period
103 Other Urban and Rural Venues The MNL should not exceed
65dB{A) over a 15 minute
period
4012 All Venues The MNL should not exceed
the background noise level’ by
more than 15 dB(A) over a 15
minute period

1.9 The Code of Practice event category and guidance Music Noise Level for each
of the ten events included in the project are presented in Table 1 overleaf.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 5



Page 176

NANR 292 Research Into Aftitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Table 1: Code of Practice, Event Clagsification

Guideline

Event Venue Category MNL
L sq 15min
12/5/2010 Green Day, LCCC, Manchester Urban Stadia 75dB
26/6/2010 Pink, Hampden Park, Glasgow Urban Stadia 75dB
24/6/2010 Pink, Ricoh Arena, Coventry Urban Stadia 75dB
7/8/2010 Pride, Preston Park, Brighton Cther Urban 65 dB
12/912010 Help for Heroes, Twickenham, London Urban Stadia 75dB
11/9/2010 Proms, Singleton Park, Swansea Cther Urban 65dB
30&31 /5/2010 Evolution, Baltic Sq, Newcastle Other Urban 65dB
19/6/2010 Green Day, Wembley Stadium, London Urban Stadia 75dB
31/7/2010 Mowtown, Kenwood House, London Other Urban 85 dB
12/5/2010 KISS, Wembley Arena, London Indoor venue N/A

1.10  Whilst covered by the Code of Practice general guidance, no specific guideline
MNL is given for purpose built indoor concert venues which host over 30 events
per year, such as Wembley Arena.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 6



Page 177

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

building performance centre

2.0  Analysis Methodology

2.1 We have been supplied with the noise levels measured at the mixing desk for
each event and the noise levels measured during the event at positions
representative of the residential areas around each venue.

2.2 Meteorological data for each event has been gathered from the nearest Met
Office weather station to the event.

23 We have also been supplied with the social survey response data from each
event.

24 For those living near the venue, the pertinent section of the social survey to
correlate to the measured noise level are Question 17 and the follow on
Question 18:

Q17 Did you hear music from the event, inside your home?
Q18 To what extent, if at all, were you annoyed by noise from the event?

25 The music audibility response rate to Question 17 for each event is presented in
Table 2.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 7



NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

2.6

217,

Page 178

building performance centre

Tabie 2: Q17 Music Audibliity Response Rate

% of respondents who % of respondents Total
Event couid hear music and stating music number of
expressed an opinion on inaudibie / not respondents
subjective annoyance heard
Green Day, Manchester 75 25 174
Pink, Glasgow 60 40 181
Pink, Coventry 47 53 220
Pride, Brighton 70 30 125
Help for Heroes,
Twickenham 48 2! ks
Proms, Swansea 43 57 170
Evolution, Newcastle 36 64 275
Green Day, Wembiey
Stadium 32 68 168
Mowtown, Kenwood
e 1 69 123
KISS, Wembley Arena 14 86 144
To allow an analysis of the whole data set, the assumption has been made that

respondents who could not hear the music noise were ‘not annoyed’ by music
noise. An analysis has also been undertaken of the ‘audible response’ sub set

for each event.

The data-sets have been integrated into graphical form by constructing a noise
model of each event. This enabled a geographical representation of the survey
responses alongside the measured music noise levels presented as a noise
contour map. In addition, by using the noise model to calculate the noise level
at each respondent location, each survey response was able to be specifically
linked to an estimated music noise level (eMNL) enabling investigation of a
dose-response relationship' between music noise and subjective response.

¥ a dose-response relationship describes the change in effect of someone (in this case, annoyance) we might see as
a result of differing levels of exposure (or doses) to a stressor (in this case, noise).

Edinburgh Napier University Page 8



Page 179

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerls

bpc

building perfermance centre

3.0 Concert Noise Measurements

3.1 Noise measurements were undertaken at the mixing desk within each venue,
except Pride in Brighton where there was no front of house mixing desk. At
Pride the measurements were made approximately 10m from the side of the
stage. The typical levels recorded during the main act are presented in Table 3.

Tabie 3: Mixing Desk Noise Leveis

Typical event

Event desk to stage Venue Category
LMq 15imin
Green Day, Manchester 40m 100 dB Urban Stadia
Pink, Glasgow 65m Est 98 dB Urban Stadia
Pink, Coventry 50m 98 dB Urban Stadia
Pride, Brightan - 96 dB Other Urban
Help for Heroes, .
o e e e 40m 88 dB Urban Stadia
Proms, Swansea 40m Est 85 dB Other Urban
Evolution, Newcastle 40m 89 dB Other Urban
Green Day, Wembley .
Stadium 40m 101 dB Urban Stadia
Mowtown, Kenwood
Ty 40m 88 dB Other Urban
KISS, Wembley Arena Indoor venue 104 dB Indoor venue
3.2 Event levels were not available for two events. It is expected that the mixing

desk level at Pink in Glasgow would be similar to Pink in Coventry. Based on
the levels measured around the venue and the distance to the loudspeaker
stacks, it is estimated that the Proms event in Swansea is likely to have a
mixing desk level of around 85 dBA.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 9



Page 180

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

building perfarmance centre

3.3 In terms of the Code of Practice event categories, the Help for Heroes concert
was the quietest of the Urban Stadium events with a MNL approximately 10 dB
tower than the other Stadium events. Conversely the Pride, Brighton event was
significantly louder than the rest of the ‘Other Urban' events with a MNL
approximately 10 dB higher.

34 Noise measurements were undertaken at a series of residential locations within

approximately 1 km distance from each concert venue.

3.5 The noise survey data, which covers three 5 minute measurement periods at
each position, has been assessed. Most of the noise measurements included
audio data, which enabled post-measurement selection of suitable
measurement periods most representative of music noise from the concert
venue. Periods with high background? noise levels have been discounted from
the analysis and the remaining periods have been averaged and tabulated into
the following Tables of this Section.

3.6 Whilst this selection process has reduced the influence of intermittent
background sources, some measurement positions were still affected by
significant background noise or otherwise had very low music noise levels.
Measurement positions which have an estimated Music Noise Level Lagq 5 to
10 dBA below the ambient measured level have been highlighted with an ‘<’;
positions where the music was not audible and was therefore likely to be Laeq
10 dBA below the measured level have been highlighted with an ‘<<’.

?i.e. noise not associated with the event

Edinburgh Nap.er University Page 10



Page 181

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

building performance centre

Green Day, Manchester
3.7 The measured noise levels for each measurement location are given in Table 4,
along with an indication of the significance of the concert music content on the

measured level.

Table 4: Ambient noise levels measured in residential areas,
Green Day, Manchester

Name Lpsq
Railway Road <547
Barlow Road 571
Gorse Avenue 61.3
Great Stone Road 736
Trent Bridge Walk 66.6
Kings Road 59.5
Ayres Road 61.5
Addison Crescent 51.8
Sutherland Road 48.0

< indicates MNL 5 to 10 dB less, << indicatas MNL over 10 dB less

Edinburgh Napier University Page 11



Page 182

NANR 292 Research Into Altitudes to

Environmental Noise Fram Concerts hp @

building performance centre

Pink, Glasqow

3.8 The measured noise levels for each measurement location are given in Table 5,
along with an indication of the significance of the concert music content on the
measured level.

Tabie 5: Ambient noise leveis measured in residentiai areas,
Pink, Glasgow

Name Lasq
Ardmory Avenue 52.6
Battlefield Avenue << 52.8
Broadwood Drive << 49.0
Cumming Drive 67.2
Green Holme Street <<48.4
Kingshurst Avenue <498
Kingswood Drive - 53.0
Myrtle View Road 58.6

<indicates MNL 5 to 10 dB less, << indicates MNL over 10 dB less

3.9 The three positions where the MNL was 10 dBA less than background were the
first three measurements made, all in the early part of the evening between
18.00hrs and 20.00 hrs. There are no mixing desk levels available for this
event, but it has been confirmed by the event monitoring contractor that aa
support act was performing at a subjectively lower music level than the main
act.

Edinburgh Naper University Page 12



Page 183

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

building performance centre

Pink, Coventry

3.10  The measured noise levels for each measurement location are given in Table 6,
along with an indication of the significance of the concert music content on the

measured level.

Tabie 6: Amblent noise levels measured In residential areas,
Pink, Coventry

Name I
Allied Close 54.7
Arbury Avenue 58.4
Beacon Rd JAW St Luke's < 66.7
Farndale Avenue <53.6
Grindle Road 55.1
John Sheiton Drive << 491
Whitmore Park Road << 54.0

< indicates MNL 5 to 10 dB less, << indicates MNL over 10 dB less

Edinburgh Napier University Page 13



Page 184

NANR 292 Research Into Atfitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building perfarmance centre

Pride, Brighton

3.1 The measured noise levels for each measurement location are given in Table 7,

along with an indication of the significance of the concert music content on the

measured level.

Table 7: Ambient noise levels measured in residential areas,
Pride, Brighton

Name Lisq
Argyle Road 62.8
Bevant Road 58.0
Ditchling Rise 60.1
Herbert Road 59.7
Nerth Road 53.5
Port Hall Road <576
Preston Drove 67.3
Preston Park Avenue 72,5
Reigate Road << 57.8
Rookery Close 68.4
Rugby Road 60.5
Waldegrave Road 62.1

< indicates MNL 5 to 10 dB less, << indicates MNL over 10 dB less

Edinburgh Napier University

Page 14



Page 185

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Help for Heroes, Twickenham

3.12  The measured noise levels for each measurement location are given in Table 8,
alang with an indication of the significance of the concert music content on the
measured level.

Tabie 8: Ambient noise leveis measured in residential areas,
Help for Heroes, Twickenham

Name Lpsq
Amold Crescent 46 9
Beaumont Place 54.5
Cole Park Gardens 48.9
Duke of Cambridge Close <529
Gainsborough Gardens <464
Godfrey Avenue 46.2
Lime Grove 51.5
Marlow Crescent 54.3

Stanhope Terrace 49,9

< indicates MNL 5 to 10 dB less, << indicates MNL over 10 dB less

Ednburgh Napier Un.versity Page 15



Page 186

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

buiiding performance centre

Proms, Swansea

3.13  The measured noise levels for each measurement location are given in Table 9,
along with an indication of the significance of the concert music content on the
measured level.

Tabie 9: Ambient noise levels measured in residentiai areas,
Proms, Swansea

Name Laeq
Admirais Walk <45
Eversiey Rd 45.9
Kimberley Rd 43.2
Park View Terrace 46.9
Roger Beck Way <456
Sketty Avenue 43.3

< indicates MNL 5 to 10 dB less, << indicates MNL over 10 dB less

Edinburgh Napier University Page 16



Page 187

NANR 292 Research Into Atfitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp @  {

building performance centre

Evolution, Newcastle

3.14  The measured noise levels for each measurement location are given in Table
10, along with an indication of the significance of the concert music content on
the measured level.

Table 10: Ambient noise levels measured in residential areas,
Evolution, Newcastle

Name Lisg
Baltic Quay 59.2
Barker Street << 56.5
Brinkburn Street << 53.3
Brock Street <546
Chaucer Close << 524
Dean Street << 60
Howards Strest <63.9
Mulgrave Terrace << 52.1
Quayside <62.8
St Ann's Street 549

< indicates MNL 5 to 10 dB less, << indicates MNL over 10 dB less

3.15  The music from the event was only audible at a few of the measurement
positions. This is likely to be due to a combination of factors:

® The music levels at the mixer desk were relatively low, approximately
10 dB below the typical concert level.

® The event was held in the centre of Newcastle with a number of maijor road
networks around the event site.

® This event was the only one measured during the daytime period when
traffic and background noise is generally higher.

Edinburgh Napier Univers ty Page 17



Page 188

NANR 292 Research Into Atiitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

Green Day, Wembley Stadium

3.16  The measured noise levels for each measurement location are given in Table
11, along with an indication of the significance of the concert music content on

the measured level.

Table 11;: Ambient noise leveis measured in residential areas,
Green Day, Wembley Stadlumn

Name Laeq
Empire Court <§7.2
Jesmond Avenue 53.5
Linden Avenue 50.3
Manor Drive 50.9
Park View 54.2
Tokyngton Community 61.4
Vivian Avenue 533
Windsor Crescent << 60.1

< indicates MNL 5 to 10 dB fess, << indicates MNL over 10 dB less

Edinburgh Napier University Page 18



Page 189

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts pr

building performance centre

Mowtown, Kenwood House

3.17  The measured noise levels for each measurement location are given in Table
12, along with an indication of the significance of the concert music content on

the measured level.

Table 12: Amblent noise levels measured in residential areas,
Mowtown, Kenwood House

Name Lpeq
Bunkers Hill << 45,1
Fitzroy Park 51.7
Spainlards Close <459

< indicates MNL 5 to 10 dB less, << indicatss MNL over 10 dB less

Edinburgh Napier University Page 19



Page 190

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Conceris

bpc

building performance centre

KISS, Wembley Arena

3.18  The measured noise levels for each measurement locaticn are given in Table
13, along with an indication of the significance of the concert music content on
the measured level.

Table 13: Ambient noise levels measured in residential areas,
KISS, Wembley Arena

Name Lisq

Alexandra Court << 53.1
Dagmar Road << 46.0
Empire Court << 519
Forum House, Engineer Way << 55.4
Raglan Court <479

< indicates MNL 5 to 10 dB less, << indicates MNL over 10 dB less

3.19  The music was only audible at one of the measurement positions and was not
dominant at this position. This was due to the high level of sound insulation
provided by the enclosed arena building.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 20



Page 191

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

4.0  Analysis of Concert Noise Responses

Concert Noise Maps

41 Noise mapping was performed using SoundPLAN 6.4 noise mapping software.
An Ordnance Survey street map was used as a mapping base onto which the
event noise levels were overlaid from the noise survey data. The propagating
noise levels from the venue are shown on the maps using coloured bands, each
of which has a 5 dB bandwidth.

4.2 The noise maps were optimised by an iterative procedure to provide the best
possible agreement with measured sound levels at the positions which were
identified as most representative of the Music Noise Level.

43 Whilst the maps present the best possible agreement, it is not possible for the
maps to accurately reflect all the measured noise levels as some of the
locations are affected by localised attenuation from buildings and other
geographical features. Due to project constraints such features are not
included within the noise-response maps, therefore a general limit to their
accuracy exists when considering precise locations.

44 Details of the noise monitoring and survey respondent locations are shown on
the noise maps as PDF annotations. Information about each annotation can be
viewed by selecting the respective annotation marker when viewing the PDF file
in Adobe Reader.

4.5 Noise monitoring locations are identified as blue arrows and are annotated with

the location and measurement results.

46 Information about each of the interview responses was entered onto the plan as
an annotation, at locations determined using the full address supplied by Ipsos
MORI. Each coloured ‘star’ annotation shows the post code location and
subjective response to Survey Question 17 and 18 if the music was audible.

Edinburgh Napier Universily Page 21



Page 192

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts b p C

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

building performance centre

The respondent location ‘star’ markers are categorised into five colours
representing the response to Questions 17 and 18 i.e. Very, Fairly, Not Very,
Not at All Annoyed and Inaudible/Can’t remember.

Where there are a number of respondents in close proximity to one another, it is
easier to interpret the survey responses by zooming in to the location through
Adobe Reader.

Whilst the data analysis uses the exact respondent address, in order to
maintain anonymity for the respondents, the survey annotation positions have
been randomly distributed within 20m of the true survey location and utilise
‘'stars’ as opposed to arrows to indicate the respondent location without
precisely identifying them.

The noise maps for each event are presented in Appendix A. To print the noise
maps with annotations it is necessary to have Acrobat Adobe Reader version
10 or the full Acrobat Adobe package.

As weather conditions such as wind direction can affect noise propagation, the
maps also include details of the wind strength and direction. The full weather
data is also reproduced in Appendix B.

Dose Response Relationship

A dose-response relationship has been investigated by linking the social survey
response data and the estimated MNL determined from the noise map.

The following sections present analysis tables for each event and a summary of
all 10 event responses collated. The dose response relationships are
presented in both 5 dB and 10 dB bands.

The full responses to Q17 and Q18 are analysed together, initially based on all
respondents including those who could not hear the music. There are a wide

Edinburgh Napier University Page 22



Page 193

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp @

building perfoermance centre

variety of reasons why any individual respondent may have not heard the
music, such as:

High external background noise, traffic etc

High internal background noise, television etc

Living reom or bedrooms on facades facing away from event
High level of sound insulation from building facade

Hearing deficiency

4.14  The responses to Q18 are then analysed separately to look at the opinions of
just those who heard the music.

4.15  There are a large number of potential variables which affect an individual's
perception to music noise from an event, as listed below. Further discussion
can be found on pages 35 to 42 of the lpsos Mori report.

Prior knowledge of event

Windows open / closed during the event
Children in household

Music taste

Shift-work

Age/hearing ability

Previous experience of noise from venue
Background noise level

Augmented dose response relationship

4.16  Following the establishment of the dose response for the measured event noise
levels, predictions have been made of the likely change in the percentage of the
population either “Fairly Annoyed” or “Very Annoyed” by the concert noise for a
theoretical reduction in event noise level.

Edinburgh Napier Unversity Page 23



Page 194

NANR 292 Research Into Altitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building perfarmance centre

4.17  Predicting this change has been achieved by re-mapping the population within
each noise category to the respective response rate for the new noise band
they would have been exposed to. For example, when considering a 5 dB
reduction in noise, the new -5dB band responses are calculated by applying the
response proportions from the previously adjacent lower band. Responses for
the new lowest category (eMNL < 35dB) would be assigned to be “not
annoyed”.

4.18 For each of the individual events an assessment of the likely change in
annoyance rates if the music noise level was lower has been produced.
However these predictions are individual to the particular events and therefore
have not been collated for all events.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 24



Page 195

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bpC

building performance centre

Overall Analysis of All 10 Concerts

419 The results from the ten individual events have been collated in order to provide
an overall assessment of resident's dose response to music noise from
concerts.

420  Table 14a show the percentage of alf respondents giving a subjective response
within each of the 5 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 14a: Subjectlve response to nolse ieveis (5dB categories)
ali events, all respondents

Estimated Subjective response

no::eaf)vel Could not Not at ali Not very Falrly or very r:sl;:T::L::s
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 55% 25% 11% 9% 1725
<40 78% 16% 3% 3% 460
40 - 45 59% 27% 10% 4% 293
45 - 50 51% 27% 10% 12% 222
50-55 52% 31% 9% 8% 252
55 -60 39% 31% 17% 13% 262
60 -65 32% 30% 22% 16% 137
65-70 27% 38% 14% 21% 56
>70 8% 23% 38% 33% 40

Edinburgh Napier University Page 25



Page 196

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre
421  Table 14b represents the data with the ‘Not very annoyed’ and ‘Fairly or very
annoyed’ combined to present a category of ‘Annoyed to some extent'.

Table 14b: Subjective response to noise leveis (5dB categories)
all events, all respondents

nE ;2:' fgl Subjective response S
(dBA) Coul:‘ :::Itc hear Not at ali annoyed Annog;extti et:t some respondents
Overall 55% 25% 20% 1725

<40 78% 16% 6% 460
40-45 59% 27% 14% 293
45 - 50 51% 27% 22% 222
50-55 52% IN% 17% 252
55-60 39% 31% 30% 262
60 - 65 32% 30% 38% 137
65-70 27% 38% 35% 56

>70 8% 23% 1% 40

Edinburgh Napier University Page 26



NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

4.22

Percentage of populationin noise category

4.23

4.24

4,25

4.26

Page 197

building performance centre

Chart 14 shows the percentage of all respondents giving a subjective response
within each of the 5 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Chart 14: Subjective response to noise ievels, all events. 5 dB bands

100%
90%
Could not
80% hear music
70% Notat all
annoyed
60% Notvery
50% annoyad
Faitly ot very
40% annoyed
30% Annoyedto
some extent
20%
10%
0%

<40 40-45 45-50 50-55 55-60 60-65 65-70 >70
Approximate noise level (dBA)

The 5dB bands present a clear linear dose response relationship, the only
anomaly is in the 45 to 50 dB band where slightly higher number of residents
are annoyed than in the higher 50-55 dB band.

The tables also gives a clear guide on the percentage of residents that will be
aware of the music for any given external level. Again this presents a good
linear correlation, with the music inaudibility reducing as the noise levels

increase.

There is a clear increase in annoyance response above a MNL of 55 dB and a
similar reduction in the number of people that did not notice or could not hear

the music.

Table 14b indicates that at around a MNL of 60 dB the percentage of
respondents ‘annoyed to some extent’ rises above both the ‘not annoyed’ and

‘inaudible’ categories.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 27



Page 198

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts

building performance centre

4.27  The events surveyed were all managed in accordance with the best practice
guidelines contained in the current Code of Practice and all employed an
acoustic consultant to oversee the control of music levels. The overall results
therefore indicate the typical percentage of residents that may be annoyed at
concerts operated under the Code of Practice. However it should be noted that
the resuits may not reflect annoyance rates at concerts without an acoustic
consultant monitoring the MNL during the event.

428  Whilst 9% of all respondents were fairly or very annoyed by the music noise, it
should be noted that only 1% of residents actually complained about the noise
disturbance. The most common reasons for not making a complaint were that
they “had nothing to complain about” (53%) or “event did not have sufficient
impact to complain “(33%). This finding is similar to many other areas of impact
where simply being annoyed does not necessarily trigger a complaint.

429 Table 15a shows the percentage of all respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 15a: Subjective response to noise levels (10dB categories)
all events, all respondents
Subjective response
:;2:::3:' Could not Not at all Not very Fairly or very r:lsl;:r:::;::s

felzss hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 55% 25% 1% 9% 1725

<35 83% 10% 3% 4% 216
35-45 66% 24% 7% 4% 537
45 - 55 52% 29% 9% 10% 474
55-865 36% 31% 18% 14% 399

> 65 19% 31% 24% 26% 96

Edinburgh Napier University

Page 28



Page 199

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

430 Table 15b represents the data with the ‘Not very annoyed’ and ‘Fairly or very
annoyed’ combined to present a category of ‘Annoyed to some extent'.

Table 15b: Subjective response to noise levels (10dB categories)
all events, all respondents

Estimated Subjective response
ey evel Could not hear Annoyed to some r:su'::rl:zre::s
(dBA) musle Not at all annoyed Yaxt ont P
Overall 55% 25% 20% 1725
<35 83% 10% 7% 216
35-45 866% 24% 11% 537
45 - 55 52% 29% 19% 474
55-85 36% 31% 33% 398
>85 19% 3% 50% 96

4.31  Chart 15 shows the percentage of all respondents giving a subjective response
within each of the 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Chart 15: Subjective response to noise ievels. ail events. 10 dB bands

> 100%
% 90% — Couldnothear
E 80% music
> :
'g 70% — Mot at all
= T annoyed
= %
= ;
e 504 Notvery
E annoyed
g 40% =

e — e —Fairly of very
_:'-‘5!- 30% et annoyed
& 20% i e
2 — et Annoyedto
s 10% - —— some extent
L s — e
¢ 0%
o

<35 35-45 45- 55 55- 65 » 65

Approximate noiselevel (dBA)

Edinburgh Napier University Page 29



Page 200

T,

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental No'se Fram Concerts bp C )

building performance centre

432  The 10 dB table shows a slightly more linear response than the 5dB tables as
the larger bandwidths smooth the anomalies in the smaller bands.

4.33  The results indicate that even at higher music levels at the residential propertias
there was still a significant proportion of the population in the immediate vicinity
of an event that did not hear the music. The reasons for this are discussed in
section 4.12.

4.34  Therefore a dose response relationship has been established for just the
residents who heard the music and expressed an opinion on how annoying it

was.

435  The results given in Table 16 and Chart 16 show the percentage of respondents
giving a subjective response to the audible concert music within each of the

5 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 16: Subjective response to audible music

(5dB categorles)
: oslﬁm Iaetedl Subjective response R
@88)  Notstan  Notvey  Faliyorveny  rospondents
Overall 57% 23% 20% 784
<40 71% 14% 16% 102
40-45 66% 23% 1% 120
45 - 50 56% 20% 24% 108
50 - 55 65% 18% 17% 120
55-60 50% 28% 22% 161
60 - 65 44% 32% 24% 93
65-70 51% 20% 29% 4
>70 24% 41% 35% 37

Edinburgh Napier University Page 30



Page 201

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

Chart16: Subjective response to audible nolse levels. all events. 10 dB bands

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

Percentage of population in noise category

<40  40-45

45-50 50-55

55-60 60-65

Approximate noiseievel {dBA}

65- 70

bpc

bu'lding parformance centre

- 70

Notat all
annoyed

MNotvery
annoyed

Fauly or very
annoyed

436  Again with the exception of the 45-50 dB band the results show a clear linear

dose response to increasing music levels.

4.37  Table 17 and Chart 17 show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective

response to the audible concert music within each of the 10 dB estimated noise

exposure bands.

Edinburgh Naper University

Page 31



Page 202

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

Percentage of populationin noise category

4.38

Table 17: Subjectlve response to audible music

(10dB categories)
Estimated Subjective response
nolse level
Not very Fairly or very
(dBA) Not at all annoyed annoyed
Overall 57% 23% 20%
<35 59% 16% 24%
35-45 70% 19% 11%
45-55 61% 19% 20%
55 - 65 48% 30% 22%
> 85 38% 29% 32%
Chart 17; Subjective response to noise leveis
100%
90%
80%
0%
60%
50%
40%
30% e i
20% iy m——— e
10%
0%
=356 35-45 45- 55 55- 65

Approximate nolse [evel (dBA)

building performance centre

Number of
respondents
764
37
185
229
254
78
Notat all
annoyed
—MNotvery
annoyad
Fairly or very
annoyed

=68

The tables and charts above indicate a general link between increasing music

noise levels and the percentage of people annoyed. However, it is not a

completely linear correlation and it is likely that other external factors (such as

those listed in 4.15) complicate this relationship.

Edinburgh Napier University

Page 32



Page 203

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
£nvironmental Noise From Concerts

building perfermance centre

4.39 It appears that a significant percentage of the population will form an opinion on
the music’s subjective annoyance irrespective of the actual level of music.

440  The opinion formed will be influenced by the factors highlighted in section 4.14
and are also likely to be influenced by other concert related factors such as
annoyance from additional event traffic, attendees littering etc, see pages 51
and 52 of Ipsos Mori report.

441 Table 18a below presents a summary of the percentage of all interviewees
‘annoyed’ set against the event Music Noise Level and the Code of Practice
venue category. The venues are listed in order of percentage of annoyance,
high to low. The Wembley Arena event has been excluded from the list as it
does not fit info any specific C of P category.

Table 18a: Comparison of annoyance response against MNL and C of P venue category

% ali respondents Typical event MNL at

Event ‘tairly’ or ‘very mixing desk c:teeng?
annoyed’ LAaq 15min D,
Green Day, Manchester 29% 100 dB Urban Stadia
Green Day, Wembley h
Stadium 11% 101 dB Urban Stadia
Pride, Brighton 11% 96 dB Other Urban
Pink, Glasgow 10% Est 98 dB Urban Stadia
Pink, Coventry 8% 98 dB Urban Stadia
awiown iKenwacd 5% 88 dB Other Urban
Evolution, Newcastle 5% 89 dB Other Urban
Help for Heroes, M
Twickenham 4% 88 dB Urban Stadia
Proms, Swansea 2% Est 85 dB Other Urban

442  From the table above it is important to note the Help for Heroes event as having
a lower sound level than other stadium events and the Pride, Brighton event as
having a higher sound level than other ‘Other Urban’ amongst this sample.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 33



Page 204

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concers bp @

443

4.44

4.45

4.46

building performance centre

The results of this analysis are interesting, suggesting that for these ‘Urban’
events there is a correlation between the mixing desk level and the percentage
of people that will be annoyed. The table indicates that in general,
approximately 10% of the population were ‘fairly’ or ‘very annoyed' by any
‘Urban’ events with a mixer desk MNL of around 100 dB. This dropped to
approximately 5% of the population annoyed by any ‘Urban’ events with a mixer
desk MNL of around 90 dB.

This suggests that it may be the level of music noise and not the type of venue
that is significant within an urban environment and therefore a review of the
Code of Practice may wish to consider whether different criteria are required for
different urban venues, as is currently the case.

Unfortunately the project did not have the opportunity to survey any rural
venues to test the dose response of these types of events. An option for future
research would be to undertake a similar survey of rural venues.

Table 18b below presents the corresponding response from the Ipsos Mori
survey of the concert attendees who expressed an opinion on the level of music
within the venue,

Edinburgh Napier Un versity Page 34



Page 205

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

building performance centre

Table 18b: Comparison of attendees music level response agalnst Mixer desk level

Typlcal event MNL

Event at mixing desk Too quiet Just right Too loud
L aq 15min

Kiss, Wembley Arena 104 dB 9% T7% 12%

Green Day, Manchester 100 dB 23% 73% 3%

Green Day, Wembley

Stadium 101 dB 18% 78% 3%

Pride, Brighton 96 dB 10% 79% 9%

Pink, Glasgow Est 98 dB 7% 88% 5%

Pink, Coventry 98 dB 4% 79% 14%

Mowtown, Kenwood

s 88 dB 21% 76% 2%

Evolution, Newcastle 89 dB 34% 66% 0%

Help for Heroes,

Twickenham 88 dB 14% 79% 6%

Proms, Swansea Est 85 dB 17% 7% 4%

447 Table 18b indicates that a significant percentage of the concert attendees at
events with a mixer desk music level below 90 dBA considered the music level
to be too low.

448 At the events with a music level of around 100 dB there is significant variances
in opinions between events, this is likely to be due to differences in music type
and audience demographic. These issues are discussed further in the Ipsos
Mori report, page 85.

4.49  Further dose response analysis has been carried out to look at the Code of
Practice event category groupings to identify any differences between venue
types.

4.50  Table 19a and 19b show the percentage of all respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands
for the stadium events.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 35



Page 206

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Enviranmental Noise From Concerts b p c

building performance centre

Table 19a: Subjective response to nolse levels (5dB categories)
Stadium Events (Manchester, Coventry, Wembley Stadium, Hampden, Twickenham)

Subjective response

nE ;2':?;3:' Number of
(dBA) Could not Not at all Not very Falrly or very = respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed

<40 78% 14% 4% 3% 97
40 - 45 51% 31% 13% 6% 159
45 - 50 51% 27% 9% 13% 174
50-55 53% 29% 5% 9% 166
55 -60 35% 31% 18% 16% 173
60-65 32% 23% 23% 23% 79
65-70 13% 27% 20% 40% 18

>70 4% 17% 43% 35% 23

Table 19b: Subjective response to nolse levels (10dB categories)
Stadium Events (Manchester, Coventry, Wembley Stadlum, Hampden, Twickenham)

Subjective response

nE ;t slren Iaetsgl Number of
(dBA) Could not Not at all Not very Fairly or very respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
<35 70% 20% 5% 5% 20
35-45 61% 25% 10% 5% 236
45 - 55 52% 28% 9% 11% 340
55-65 34% 29% 19% 18% 252

> 85 8% 21% 34% 37% 38

4,51 Table 20a and 20b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5 and 10 dB estimated
noise exposure bands for the stadium events.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 36



Page 207

NANR 282 Research Into Attitudes to

Enviranmental Noise From Concerts b p c

building performance centre

Tabie 20a: Subjective response to audible noise
(5dB categories) Stadium Events (Manchester, Coventry,
Wembiey Stadium, Hampden, Twickenham)

Subjective response

Estimated
Number of
no}z; IAe)vei Ntr:‘to ?tvaeil!yor Fairly or very  respondents
annoyed annoyed
< 40 86% 14% 21

40 - 45 88% 12% 78

45 - 50 73% 27% 86

50-55 81% 19% 78

55 - 60 75% 25% 113

60 - 65 67% 33% =

65 -70 54% 46% L3

>70 64% 36% 22

Table 20b: Subjective response to audible noise
(10dB categories) Stadlum Events (Manchester, Coventry,
Wembley Stadium, Hampden, Twickenham)

Subjective response
Estimated
Number of
noise level Not at ali or Falrly or very  respondents
(dBA} not very annoyed
annoyed y
<35 83% 17% 6
35-45 88% 12% 83
45-55 7% 23% 164
55 - 65 72% 28% 167

> 65 60% 40% 356

452  Table 212 and 21b show the percentage of all respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands
for the ‘Urban Other’ events.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 37



Page 208

NANR 282 Research Inlo Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Tabie 21a: Subjective response to noise ieveis (5dB categories)
Urban/Other Events (Kenwood, Swansea, Brighton, Newcastle)

Subjective response

Estimated

nolse level Coul N Number of
(dBA) ould not Not at aii Not very Fairly or very  respondents

hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
<40 73% 20% 4% 2% 255

40 -45 66% 26% 6% 3% 116
45-50 40% 47% 7% 7% 30
50 - 55 51% 35% 8% 6% 86
55 - 60 46% 30% 16% 8% 89
60-65 33% 40% 21% 7% 58
65-70 32% 41% 12% 15% 41

>70 12% 29% 29% 29% 17

Table 21b: Subjective response to noise levels (10dB categories) Urban/Other Events
(Kenwood, Swansea, Brighton, Newcastle)

Estimated Subjective response

noise ievel e e
(dBA) Could not Not at ail Not very Fairly or very respondents

hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
<35 81% 13% 4% 2% 129

35-45 66% 27% 5% 2% 242
45-55 48% 38% 8% 6% 116
55-65 41% 34% 18% 7% 147

> 65 26% 38% 17% 18% 58

453 Table 22a and 22b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5 and 10 dB estimated
noise exposure bands for the ‘Urban Other’ events.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 38



Page 209

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Table 22a: Subjective response to audible nolse
(5dB categories) Urban/Other Events (Kenwood, Swansea,
Brighton, Newcastle)

Subjective response
Ec:ts':llaet\?:l Not at aii or Fairly or very r:supn;:;::s
(dBA} not very annoyed
annoyed

<40 91% 9% 68
40-45 93% 8% 40
45-50 89% 11% 18
50 - 55 88% 12% 42
55 - 60 85% 15% 48
60-65 90% 10% 39
65 - 70 79% 21% 28

>70 67% 33% 15

Table 22b: Subjective response to audibie noise
(10dB categories) Urban/Other Events (Kenwood, Swansea,
Brighton, Newcastie)

Subjective response
Estimated
Number of
nolse levei Not at ali or Fairly or very respondents
(dBA) not very e
annoyed y
<35 88% 12% 25
35-45 93% 7% 83
45-55 88% 12% 60

55-65 87% 13% 87

c e rT— = v o o v

Edinburgh Napier University Page 39



Page 210

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerls hp c }

building performance centre

454  The tables indicate that the stadium events give higher levels of annoyance for
the same level of music noise at the residential properties. This may be linked
to perception of how loud the music must be within a stadium by residents
compared to an unenclosed park, i.e. the louder the music is believed to be at
the event the more disturbing it is perceived to be by the resident.

455 There may also be a link between the more frequent general use of the
stadiums and reducing tolerance to additional music events.

4.56  The following sections present the individual analysis for each event.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 40



Page 211

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

Green Day, Manchester

4.57  The relevant noise map BPC5077-E1 produced for the Green Day Manchester
event is presented in Appendix A.

458 There is a general visual correlation between the annoyance ratings and the
noise level, i.e. properties closer to the venue tend to display higher levels of
annoyance although there is also significant variation between adjacent
households assumed to be exposed to similar noise levels.

4.59.  The annoyed responses are evenly distributed around the venue with no area
demonstrating particularly strong reaction.

460 Tables 23a and 23b present the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 23a: Subjective response to noise levels (5dB categories)
Green Day, Manchester
Estimated Subjective response s
no:zg:\e)vel Could not Not at ail Not very Fairly or very = respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 25% 31% 15% 29% 174
<40 82% 18% 0% 0% 1

40 - 45 22% 33% 0% 44% 8

45 - 50 26% 36% 1% 26% 53

50 - 55 33% 33% 13% 20% 30

55 - 60 20% 34% 20% 25% 44

60 - 65 0% 18% 27% 55% 22

> 65 0% 25% 25% 50% 4

Edinburgh Napier University Page 41



Page 212

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise Fram Concerts bp C

building performance centre

Table 23b: Subjective response to noise levels (10dB categorles)
Green Day, Manchester

Estimated Subjective response

no::eBIAe)veI Couid not Not at all Not very Fairly or very r:sl:::g;::s
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 25% 3% 15% 29% 174
35-45 55% 25% 0% 20% | 20
45 - 55 28% 35% 12% 24% 83
55-865 14% 29% 23% 35% 68

>g5 0% 25% 25% 50% 4

461 Table 24a and 24b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5dB and 10 dB
estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 24a: Subjective response to audible noise

(5dB categories)
Subjective response
:os:%'e:ie;:gl Not atit ali or Fairly or very ,;‘:,'2:323:3
noyey e

Overall 62% 38% 130

< 40 100% 0% 2
40 - 45 43% 57% 7
45 - 50 64% 36% 3¢
50 - 55 70% 30% 20
55-60 69% 31% 35
60 - 65 45% 55% 22

> 85 50% 50% 4

Edinburgh Napier University Page 42



Page 213

i

NANR 282 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

Table 24b: Subjective response to audible noise

(10dB categories)
Subjective response
:;221 I?:gl Not at ali or Fairly or very ,:;;,ﬂg:;ﬂ:s
(dBA) not very annoyed
annoyed
Overall 62% 38% 130
35-45 56% 44% 18
45 -55 66% 34% 60
55-65 60% 40% 58
>65 50% 50% 4

462  The tables clearly indicate a link between increasing music noise levels and the
percentage of people annoyed. However, it is not a directly linear correlation
and it is likely that other external factors (such as those listed in 3.17)
complicate this relationship.

4.63 From Tables 23a and 24a, there is a clear increase in annoyance response
above Laeq 60 dB and a similar reduction in the number of people that did not

notice or could not hear the music.

4.64  The results of the response re-mapping following the methodology described in
section 4.16 are shown in Tables 25a and 25b below for 5 dB and 10 dB

categories respectively.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 43



Page 214

NANR 282 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts b p C

buitding performance centre

Table 25a, indicative community annoyance with varying music noise levels
Response re-mapping method, 5 dB categories

Event noise ievel Estimated level at nearest % popuiation ‘fairly’ or
reduction from 100 dBA property (dBA) ‘very annoyed’ within
1km radius
0 74 29%
-5 69 30%
-10 64 20%

-15 59 26%

Table 25b. Indicative community annoyance with varylng music nolse levels
Response re-mapping method, 10 dB categories

Event noise level Noise level at nearest % population ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from 100 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1km radius
0 74 29%

-10 64 22%
=20 54 20%

4.65 The tables indicate that a reduction of approximately 6% points could be
achieved at this venue for each 5 dBA dropin MNL.

466 It is also worth noting that 73 % of the concert attendees thought the Mixer
Desk level at around Laeq 100 dB was ‘just right’, not ‘too loud’ or 'too low'. If
the reduced MNL was achieved by reducing the noise at source, it is likely that
a greater proportion of the audience would find the level ‘too low'. For this event
23% of the attendees felt the music was already too quiet.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 44



Page 215

NANR 292 Research Into Aftitudes to
Environmental No'se From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Pink, Glasgow

467  The relevant noise map BPC5077-E2 produced for the Pink, Glasgow event is
presented in Appendix A.

468 There is a general visual correlation between the annoyance ratings and the
noise level, i.e. properties closer to the venue tend to display higher levels of
annoyance aithough there is also significant variation between adjacent
households assumed to be exposed to similar noise levels.

469 There was a concentration of annoyed residents to the south east of the
stadium.

4.70  Tables 26a and 26b present the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 26a: Subjective response to noise ievels (5dB categories)

Estimated Subjective response N
no:zeB::)veI Could not Not at ail Not very Fairly or very  respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overail 40 32 18 10 181
<40 75% 25% 0% 0% 8
40 -45 34% 45% 19% 2% 47
45-50 83% 17% 0% 0% 23
50 - 55 1% 29% 0%. 0% 14
55 -60 27% 36% 24% 13% 45
60-65 39% 22% 22% 17% 23
65-70 0% 33% 33% 33% 3

>70 0% 22% 38% 39% 18

Edinburgh Napier University Page 45



Page 216

NANR 292 Research Into Atiitudes to
Environmental Naise From Concerts

bpc

buitding performance centre

Table 26b: Subjective response to noise ievels (10dB categories)

Estimated Subjective response YT
no;:eaf)vei Could not Not at ali Not very Fairiy or very respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 40 32 18 10 181
< 35 100% 0% 0% 0% 1
35-45 39% 43% 17% 2% 54
45-55 78% 22% 0% 0% 37
55-65 31% 31% 24% 15% 68
>65 0% 24% 38% 38% 21

471  There is a significant drop in the percentage that could not hear the music in the
40-45 dB band. This is principally due to the number of residents interviewed
on Prospecthill Circus which were almost a kilometre away from the venue but
had a clear line of site to the venue across Toryglen Park, therefore noise was
not being attenuated by intervening buildings.

4.72  Table 27a and 27b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5dB and 10 dB
estimated noise exposure bands.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 46



Page 217

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to v
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Table 27a: Subjective response to audible noise

(5dB categories)
Subjective response
nE:itsT?et::l Not at ali or Falrly or very r:sl:::;:tfs
(dBA) not very annoyed
annoyed

Overall 83% 17 109

<40 100% 0% 2
40-45 97% 3% 31
45 - 50 100% 0% 4
50-55 100% 0% 4
55 - 60 82% 18% 33
60-65 71% 29% 14
65-70 67% 33% 3

>70 61% 3%% 18

Table 27b: Subjective response to audibie noise
(10dB categories)

Subjective response
Estimated

Number of
nolse ievel Not at ali or Fairly orvery  respondents
(dBA) not very annoved
annoyed ¥
Overall 83% 17 108
35- 45 97% 3% 33
45-55 100% 0% 8
56 - 65 79% 21% v/

>B5 62% 38% 21

Edinburgh Napier University Page 47



Page 218

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building perfarmance centre

4.73  The tables clearly indicate a link between increasing music noise levels and the
percentage of people annoyed. However, it is not a directly linear correlation
and it is likely that other external factors (such as those listed in 3.17)
complicate this relationship.

4.74  There is a clear increase in annoyance response above Laeq 55dB and a
similar reduction in the number of people that did not notice or could not hear
the music.

4.75  The results of the response re-mapping following the methodology described in
section 4.16 are shown in Tables 28a and 28b below for 5dB and 10 dB
categories respectively.

Table 28a. Indicative community annoyance with varying music noise levels
Response re-mapping method, 5 dB categorles

Event noise ievel Nolse level at nearest % population “fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from Est 98 property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1km radius
dBA
0 78 10%
-5 73 6%
-10 68 2%

-15 63 2%

Table 28b. Indicative community annoyance with varying music noise leveis
Response re-mapping method, 10 dB categories

Event noise level Noise level at nearest % popuiation ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from Est 98 property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1km radius
dBA
0 78 10%
-10 68 2%
-20 58 1%

476 The tables indicate that a reduction of approximately 4% points could be
achieved at this venue for each 5 dBA drop in MNL.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 48



Page 219

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

4.77 It is also worth noting that 88% of the concert attendees thought the Music
Noise Level estimated at around Laeq 100 dB was ‘just right’, not ‘too loud’ or
oo low'. . If the reduced MNL was achieved by reducing the noise at source, it
is likely that a greater proportion of the audience would find the level ‘too low’.
For this event only 7% of the attendees felt the music was already too quiet.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 49



Page 220

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts

4,78

4.79

4.80

4.81

bpc

building performance centre

Pink, Coventry

The relevant noise map BPC5077-E3 produced for the Pink, Coventry event is
presented in Appendix A.

There is no visual correlation between the annoyance ratings and the noise
level. There are a considerable number of properties close to the venue that
did not hear the music despite the map indicating relatively high music levels.
This may be due to a shadowing effect of the stadium reducing the noise level
close to the venue which is not reflected in the modelling. Alternatively the
background noise may have been high as a result of the dual carriage way that
runs between the venue and the properties to the west.

It is also noted that there are a number of respondents approximately 1km to
the south west of the venue that were annoyed, despite the predicted low level
at this distance. This may be due to weather conditions during the event, as
there was a northerly wind and no cloud cover which can give rise to
temperature inversions which can reflect sound back down to the ground some
distance from the source.

Tables 29a and 29b present the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Edinburgh Napier Univers ty Page 50



Page 221

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

builting performance centre

Table 29a: Subjective response to nolse ievels (5dB categories)

Estimated Subjective response R
Lol i Couid not Not at all Not very Fairly or very = respondents
{dBA)
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 53 28 11 B 220
<40 55% 24% 10% 10% 29
40 -45 53% 24% 16% 8% 38
45 - 50 52% 27% 12% 10% 52
50-55 58% 27% 9% 5% 55
55-60 45% 33% 9% 12% 33
60 - 65 54% 46% 0% 0% 13
Table 29b: Subjective response to noise ieveis (10dB categories)
Estimated Subjective response =
umber o
no:?lgl:]vel Couid not Not at ali Not very Fairly or very respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 53 28 1 B 220
<35 69% 19% 6% 8% 16
35-45 49% 25% 16% 10% 51
45-55 55% 27% 10% 7% 107

55 - 65 48% 37% 7% 9% 46

4.82 Tables 30a and 30b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5dB and 10 dB
estimated noise exposure bands.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 51



Page 222

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

Table 30a: Subjective response to audible nolse

(5dB categories)
Sl Subjective response
' ma
no:(s’% :;vel Nzto :tv :Irlyor Fairly or very r;'sl;::::;::s
annoyed annoyed
Overall 83% 17% 103
<40 77% 23% 13
40-45 83% 17% 18
45 - 50 80% 20% 25
50 - 55 87% 13% 2
55 - 60 78% 22% g8

60 -65 100% 0% 6

Tabie 30b: Subjective response to aud/bie noise

(10dB categories)
Subjective response
nEosltsl: Iaet::l Not at all or Fairly or very r:sl:,r::z;::s
(dBA) not very annoyed
annoyed
Overall 83% 17% | 103
<35 80% 20% | 5
35- 45 81% 19% %
45-55 83% 17% 48

55-65 83% 17% 24

4.83  The tables do not indicate any link between increasing music noise levels and
the percentage of people annoyed.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 52



Page 223

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

4.84  The results of the response re-mapping following the methodology described in
section 4.16 are shown in Tables 31a and 31b below for 5dB and 10 dB

categories respectively.

Tabie 31a. indicative community annoyance with varying music noise ievels
Response re-mapping method, 5 dB categorles

Event noigse level Noise levei at nearest % population ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from 98 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1km radius
0 67 8%
-5 62 8%
-10 57 7%
-15 52 6%

Table 31b. Indicatlive community annoyance with varying music noise leveis
Response re-mapping method, 10 dB categories

Event noise levei Noise level at nearest % population ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from 98 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1km radius
0 67 8%
-10 57 6%

-20 47 2%

485 The tables do not indicate that annoyance rates would be significantly lower if
music levels were reduced.

4.86 It is also worth noting that 79 % of the concert attendees thought the Music
Noise Level at around Laeq 98 dB was ‘just right, though 14% thought it was
'too loud’ the highest of the 10 events.. If the reduced MNL was achieved by
reducing the noise at source, it is likely that a greater proportion of the audience
would find the level ‘too low'. Though for this event only 4% of the attendees felt
the music was too quiet.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 53



Page 224

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp @

bui'ding performance centre

Pride, Brighton

487 The relevant noise map BPC5077-E4 produced for the Pride, Brighton event is
presented in Appendix A.

488 There is a general visual correlation between the annoyance ratings and the
noise level, i.e. properties closer to the venue tend to display higher levels of
annoyance although there is also significant variation between adjacent
households assumed to be exposed to similar noise levels.

4.89 The responses are relatively evenly spread around the venue with no particufar
area displaying non typical reactions to the music. There is however generally
more audibility to the east, which was downwind of the venue.

490 Tables 32a and 32b present the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Tabie 32a: Subjective response to noise ieveis (5dB categorles)
Subjective response
T Number of
(dBA) Couid not Not at ail Not very Fairly or very  respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed

Cverall 30% 40% 19% 1% 126
50-55 64% 36% 0% 0% 14
55 - 60 36% 38% 19% 8% 36
60 -65 26% 44% 23% 7% 43
65-70 11% 56% 17% 17% 18

>70 14% 21% 29% 36% 14

Edinburgh Napier University Page 54



Page 225

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Tabie 32b: Subjective response to noise levels (10dB categories)

Estimated Subjective response

Number of
no;:eBi:)vel Couid not Not at ali Not very Fairly or very respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 30% 40% 19% 1% 125
45-55 64% 36% 0% 0% 14
55-65 30% 41% 22% 8% 79

>65 13% 41% 22% 25% 32

491 Table 33a and 33b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5dB and 10dB

estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 33a: Subjective response to audibie nolse

(5dB categories)
Subjective response
"E‘;t‘:;n'aet::' b Ly Fairly or very r:lsup':::’e::s

CBR ey smnaped
Overall 84% 16% 88
50 - 55 100% 0% 5
55 - 60 87% 13% 22
60 - 65 91% 9% 32
65-70 81% 19% 16

>70 58% 42% 12

Edinburgh Napier University Page 55



Page 226

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts b p C ]

building perfarmance centre

Table 33b: Subjective response to audible noise

(10dB categories)
S Subjective response
stima
no}:t; Le)vel N?.:):t\rzl:yor Failrly or very r;'sl:;:::;::s
annoyed annoyed
Overall 84% 16% 88
45-55 100% 0% 5
55 - 65 89% 11% 55
>65 71% 29% 28

492 The tables indicate a link between increasing music noise levels and the

percentage of people annoyed.

493 There is a clear increase in annoyance response above Lreq 65dB and a
substantial reduction in the number who could not hear the music.

4.94  The music noise level at the nearest residential property was significantly above
the other park events. This is likely to be why the annoyance rate for all
respondents at 11%, is higher than the other park venues and was more typical

of the Stadium annoyance response rate.

495  The results of the response re-mapping following the methodology described in
section 4.16 are shown in Tables 34a and 34b below for 5dB and 10 dB

categories respectively.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 56



Page 227

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

Table 34a. Indicative community annoyance with varying music nolse levels
Response re-mapping method, 5 dB categories

Event nolse level Noise level at nearest % population ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from 96 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 750km radius
0 73 11%
-5 68 6%
-10 63 3%
-15 58. 1%

Table 34b. Indicative community annoyance with varying music noise levels
Response re-mapping method, 10 dB categories

Event noise level Noise level at nearest % population ‘falriy’ or ‘very
reduction from 96 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 750m radius
0 73 11%
-10 63 3%
-20 53 1%

496 The tables indicate that a 5 dBA reduction in desk levels would significantly

reduce the annoyance rates.

497 It is also worth noting that 79 % of the concert attendees thought the Music
Noise Level at around Laeq 96 dB was ‘just right’, not ‘too loud’ or ‘too low’
though 9% of concert attendees thought the music was ‘'too loud’, the ighest
percentage of all the ‘Urban other' events. If the reduced MNL was achieved by
reducing the noise at source, it is likely that a greater proportion of the audience
would find the level ‘too low'. For this event 10% of the attendees felt the music

was too quiet.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 57



Page 228

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerls

Help for Heroes, Twickenham

buitding performance centre

498 The relevant noise map BPC5077-E5 produced for the Help for Heroes,

Twickenham event is presented in Appendix A.

4.99 There is a general visual correlation between the event audibility and the noise

level, i.e. properties closer to the venue tend to display higher levels of

audibility.

4.100 This was the only event were there were no very annoyed respondents. There

was only six fairly annoyed respondents, who's response does not seem to be

linked to the distance from the venue. The fairly annoyed respondents were

however all located to the east of the stadium, particularly the north east, this

may be weather related.

4.101 Tables 35a and 35b present the percentage of respondents giving a subjective

response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 35a: Subjective response to nolse levels (5dB categoriles)

Estimated Subjective response
"023‘;"3"9' Could not Not at ail Not very
hear music annoyed annoyed
Overall 52% 32% 12%
< 40 89% 7% 4%
40 -45 55% 34% 9%
45 - 50 53% 42% 0%
50-55 25% 70% 5%
55-60 30% 50% 0%
60 - 65 41% 12% 41%
65-70 33% 33% 33%
>70 20% 0% 60%

Edinburgh Napier University

annoyed
4%
0%
2%
5%
0%
20%
6%
0%
20%

Number of
Fairly or very  respondents

145
27
44
19
20
10
17

3
5

Page 58



Page 229

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Table 35b: Subjective response to noise levels (10dB categories)

Estimated Subjectlve response

noise level LI
(dBA) Could not Not at ali Not very Fairly or very respondents

hear muslc annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 52% 32% 12% 4% 145
<35 0% 100% 0% 0% il

35-45 69% 23% 7% 1% 70
45-55 38% 56% 3% 3% 39
55 - 65 37% 26% 26% 11% 27

>65 25% 13% 50% 13% 8

4102 Table 36a and 36b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5dB and 10 dB
estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 36a: Subjective response to audible nolse

(5dB categories)
Feiers Subjective response
no::; I:t)vel N?-.:;tvzlrlyor Fairly or very rc?s:?::;:tfs
annoyed annoyed
Overall 91% 9% 70
<40 100% 0% 3

40 - 45 95% 5% 20
45 - 50 89% 11% 8
50-55 100% 0% 15
55 -60 71% 28% 7
80 - 65 90% 10% 10
65-70 100% 0% 2

>70 75% 25% 4

Edinburgh Napier University Page 59



Page 230

NANR 292 Research Into Altitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

Table 36b: Subjective response to audible noise

(10dB categorles)
S Subjective response
stima
no;:.;:a)vel "?,Z?'vi'.'y“ Falriy or very r:s‘LTﬁﬁiﬁfs
annoyed annoyed
Overall 91% 9% 70
<35 100% 0% 1
35-45 95% 5% 22
45 - 55 96% 4% 24
55-65 82% 18% 17
> 65 83% 17% 6

4.103 There does not appear to be a strong link between increasing music noise
levels and the percentage of people annoyed.

4.104 There is a clear increase in annoyance response above Lpeq 55 dB,

4.105 The annoyance rates for this event were very low. This is likely to be mainly
due to the music noise level being relatively low for a stadium event and
probably lower than residents are normaily accustomed to for music events at
this venue. it is also likely however that the charitable nature of the event wiil
have reduced the number of peopie willing to express annoyance.

4106 The results of the response re-mapping following the methodology described in
section 4.16 are shown in Tables 37a and 37b below for 5dB and 10 dB

categories respectively.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 60



Page 231

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

bulding performance centre

Table 37a. Indicative community annoyance with varylng music noise levels
Response re-mapping method, 5 dB categories

Event nolse ievei Noise level at nearest % popuiation ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from 88 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1km radius
0 77 4%
-5 72 3%
-10 &7 1%

=15 62 1%

Table 37b. Indicative community annoyance with varying music nolse levels
Response re-mapping method, 10 dB categories

Event noise ievel Noise level at nearest % popuiation ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction 88 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1km radius
H 77 4%
-10 67 1%
-20 57 1%

4.107 it is also worth noting that 79 % of the concert attendees thought the Music
Noise Level at around Laeq 88 dB was ‘just right, though 14% thought it was
aiready ‘too low’

Edinburgh Napier University Page 61



Page 232

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Proms, Swansea

4,108 The relevant noise map BPC5077-E6 produced for the Proms, Swansea event
is presented in Appendix A.
4.109 There were significantly higher levels of audibility to the north east of the venue.
This may be due to the wind coming from a westerly direction..
4110 Tables 38a and 38b present the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.
Table 38a: Subjective response to noise levels (5dB categories)
Estimated Subjective response Ao
no:(s‘eBLel)vel Could not Not at all Not very Fairiy or very = respondents
hear muslic annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 57% 34% 7% 2% 170
<40 53% 37% 7% 2% 83
40-45 69% 23% 7% 1% 70
45-50 33% 60% 0% 7% 15
50-55 0% 100% 0% 0% 2
Table 38b: Subjective response to noise leveis (10dB categorles)
Estimated Subjective response
noise ievel b Mz &l
(dBA) Could not Not at ali Not very Fairly or very respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 57% 4% 7% 2% 170
<35 35% 50% 10% 5% 20
35-45 64% 28% 7% 2% 133
45-55 29% 65% 0% 6% 17
Edinburgh Napier University Page 62



Page 233

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

4111 Table 39a and 39b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5dB and 10 dB
estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 39a: Subjective response to audible noise
(5dB categories)

Subjective response
Estimated

Number of
noise level  Notat all or Falrly or very  respondents
(dBA) not very annoyed
annoyed ¥

Overall 95% 5% 73

< 40 95% 5% 39
40-45 95% 5% 22
45-50 90% 10% 10
50 - 55 100% 0% 2

Tabie 39b: Subjective response to audibie nolse

(10dB categories)
et W Subjective response
ma
no:zeB I:)vel Nt:':,?t\;l:yor Falrly or very r:sl;r:::;::s
annoyed e
Overall 95% 5% 73
<35 92% 8% 13
35- 45 96% 4% 48

45-55 92% 8% 12

4112 The tables do not indicate a strong link between increasing music noise levels
and the percentage of people annoyed. This is likely to be a factor of the
relatively low music level at this event.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 63



Page 234

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

4.113 Due to the very low annoyance rate for this event and the distribution of these
responses the response re-mapping cannot be accurately carried out for this
event. It is worth noting though that 77 % of the concert attendees thought the
Music Noise Level estimated at around Laeq 85 dB was ‘just right’, though 17%
thought it was ‘too low'.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 64



NANR 262 Research Info Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

Page 235

building performance centre

Evolution, Newcastle

4114 The relevant noise map BPC5077-E7 produced for the Evolution, Newcastle
event is presented in Appendix A.

4.115 There is a general visual correlation between the annoyance ratings and the
noise level, i.e. properties closer to the venue tend to display higher levels of
annoyance although there is ailso significant variation between adjacent
households assumed to be exposed to similar noise levels.

4.116 There were a significant number of interviews conducted in three blocks of flats
to the south of the main stage in Gateshead. None of these properties heard
the music. This is likely to be due to high levels of traffic noise from the
adjacent duel carriageway.

4.117 Tables 40a and 40b present the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 40a: Subjective response to nolse levels (5dB categorles)
Subjective response
"E%%g%::i Could not Not at all Not very Fairiy or very r:sl:::;:tfs
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed

Cverall 64% 23% 8% 5% 275

<40 81% 14% 2% 2% 85
40 - 45 81% 15% 4% 0% 26
45 - 50 80% 20% 0% 0% 5
50 - 55 54% 31% 9% 6% 65
55 - 860 53% 26% 13% 8% 53
60 -65 53% 27% 13% 7% 15
65-70 48% 30% 9% 13% 23

>70 0% 67% 33% 0% 3

Edinburgh Napier University Page 65



Page 236

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building perfarmance centre

Table 40b: Subjective response to noise leveis (10dB categories)

Estimated Subjective response
nolse level Could i N Fairi Number of
(dBA) ould not Not at al ot very airly or very respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 64% 23% 8% 5% 275
<35 88% 7% 2% 2% 43
35-45 76% 19% 3% 1% 68
45-55 56% 30% 9% 8% 70
55 - 65 53% 26% 13% 7% 68
> 85 42% 35% 12% 12% 26

4.118 Table 41a and 41b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5dB and 10 dB
estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 41a: Subjective response to audibie noise

(5dB categories)
T Subjective response o
B e Nt t B o Ty overy | Il o wondanie
(dBA) not very annoyed
annoyed
Overall 86% 14% 99
<40 88% 12% 16
40-45 100% 0% 5
45-50 100% 0% 1
50 - 55 87% 13% &l
55 - 60 84% 16% 2
60 - 65 86% 14% Y
65 - 70 75% 25% 2

>70 100% 0% 3

Edinburgh Nap er University Page 66



Page 237

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance cenire

Table 41b: Subjective response to aud/ble noise

(10dB categories)
Subjective response
Estimated
Number of
no::eal:)vel N:Latatv:i:yor Fairly or very respondents
annoyed L
Overall 86% 14% 99
<35 80% 20% 5
35-45 94% 6% 16
45-55 87% 13% 31
55-65 84% 16% 32
> 65 80% 20% 15

4119 The tables indicate a link between increasing music noise levels and the
percentage of people annoyed. However, it is not a directly linear correlation
and it is likely that other external factors (such as those listed in 4.14)
complicate this relationship.

4120 There is an increase in annoyance response above Laeq 65 dB.

4.121 The results of the response re-mapping following the methodology described in
section 4.16 are shown in Tables 42a and 42b below for 5dB and 10 dB
categories respectively.

Tabie 42a. Indicative community annoyance with varying music noise leveis
Response re-mapping method, 5 dB categories

Event noise ievel Noise levei at nearest % population ‘faldy’ or ‘very
reduction from 89 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1.5km radius
0 75 5%
-5 70 3%
-10 65 1%
-15 60 1%

Edinburgh Napier University Page 67



Page 238

NANR 282 Research [nto Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building perfaormance centre

Tabie 42b. Indicative community annoyance with varying music noise ieveis
Response re-mapping method, 10 dB categories

Event noise level Noise level at nearest % popuiation ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from 89 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1.5km radius
0 75 5%
-10 65 3%

-20 55 1%

4.122 It is also worth noting that 66 % of the concert attendees thought the Music
Noise Level at around Lae 89 dB was fust right’, though 34% thought the level
was ‘too low’, the highest percentage of the 10 events.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 68



NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerls

Page 239

Green Day, Wembley Stadium

building performance centre

4.123 The relevant noise map BPC5077-E8 produced for the Green Day, Wembley

Stadium event is presented in Appendix A.

4.124 There is a general visual correlation between the annoyance ratings and the

noise level, i.e. properties closer to the venue tend to display higher levels of

annoyance although there is also significant variation between adjacent

households assumed to be exposed to similar noise levels.

4125 The majority of annoyed respondents were located to the south of the stadium

in the Tokyngton district. This is likely to have been influenced by the moderate

northerly wind during the event.

4.126 Tables 43a and 43b present the percentage of respondents giving a subjective

response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Estimated
noise levei
{dBA)

Overall
<40
4045
45 - 50
50-355
§5-60
60-65

65-70

Couid not
hear music

&67%
95%
0%
67%
66%
51%
50%

20%

Edinburgh Napier University

Subjective response
Not at ali Not very
annoyed annoyed

11% 11%

5% 0%
5% 5%
7% 15%

11% 1%

17% 20%

25% 0%

20% 0%

Tabie 43a: Subjective responsge to noise ieveis (5dB categories)

annoyed

11%
0%

0%

11%
13%
12%
25%

60%

Number of
Fairly or very respondents

168
22
21
27
47
41

4

5

Page 69



Page 240

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Table 43b: Subjective response to noise levels (10dB categories)

Estimated Subjective response N ot
no:geBIAe)vel Couid not Not at ali Not very Fairly or very respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 67% 11% 11% 11% 168
<35 100% 0% 0% (;% 2
35-45 93% 5% 2% 0% 41
45 - 55 66% 9% 12% 12% 74
55-65 51% 18% 18% 13% 45
>65 20% 20% 0% 60% 5

4.127 Table 44a and 44b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective

response fo the audible concert music within each of the 5dB and 10 dB
estimated noise exposure bands.

Tabie 44a: Subjective response to audible noise
{5dB categories)

Subjective response
Estimated

Number of
"0:(3’98':)"9' N‘r":,:tv:':y‘" Fairly orvery  respondents
Srfioyen annoyed

Overall 67% 33% 54
<40 100% 0% 1
40 - 45 100% 0% 2
45 - 50 67% 33% 9
50— 55 63% 38% 16
55 - 60 75% 25% 20
60 - 65 50% 50% 2

65-70 25% 75% 4

Edinburgh Napier University Page 70



Page 241

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Table 44a: Subjective response to audible noise
(10dB categories)

Subjective response
Estimated
Number of
noise level Not at ali or Fairly or very  respondents
(dBA) not very annoyed
annoyed y
Overall 67% 33% 54
35-45 100% 0% 3
45 - 55 64% 36% 2
55— 65 73% 27% 22

>85 25% 75% 4

4.128 The tables clearly indicate a link between increasing music noise levels and a
reduction the percentage who did not hear the music. However there is not
such strong annoyance correlation.

4.128  The results of the response re-mapping following the methodalogy described in
section 4.16 are shown in Tables 45a and 45b below for 5dB and 10 dB
categories respectively.

Table 45a. Indicative community annoyance with varylng music noise ieveis
Response re-mapping method, 5 dB categories

Event noise ievei Noise ievel at nearest % popuiation ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from 101 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1km radius
0 69 11%

-5 64 8%
-10 59 4%

-15 54 1%

Edinburgh Napier University Page 71



Page 242

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

buitding performance centre

Table 45b. Indicative community annoyance with varying music noise leveis
Response re-mapping method, 10 dB categories

Event noise level Noise ievei at nearest % population ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from 101 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1km radius
0 69 11%

-10 59 4%

-20 49 0%

4.130 The tables indicate that a reduction of approximately 4% points could be
achieved at this venue for each § dBA drop in MNL.

4131 It is also worth noting that 78 % of the concert attendees thought the Music
Noise Level at around Laeq 101 dB was ‘just right’, not ‘too loud’ or ‘too low’. . If
the reduced MNL was achieved by reducing the noise at source, it is likely that
a greater proportion of the audience would find the level ‘too low'. For this event
18% of the attendees felt the music was already too quiet.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 72



Page 243

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

building performance centre

Mowtown, Kenwood House

4132 The relevant noise map BPC5077-E9 produced for the Mowtown, Kenwood
House event is presented in Appendix A.

4133 There is a general visual correlation between the audibility and the noise level,
i.e. properties closer to the venue fend to display higher levels of audibility.
There is generally more audibility to the east of the venue as this area was
downwind during the event.

4.134 Tables 46a and 46b present the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 46a: Subjective response to noise levels (5dB categorles)

Estimated Subjective response e
no;zgi:)vei Couid not Not at ail Not very Fairly or very ' respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Cverall 69% 21% 5% 5% 123
<40 85% 10% 2% 2% 87

40 - 45 35% 50% 5% - 10% 20

45 - 50 30% 40% 20% 10% 10

50 - 55 0% 60% 20% 20% 5

Edinburgh Napier University Page 73



Page 244

NANR 282 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

huitding performance centre

Table 46b: Subjective response to noise levels (10dB categories)

Estimated Subjective responge N
no::eazvei Could not Not at aii Not very Faldy or very respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 69% 21% 5% 5% 123
<35 89% 6% 3% 2% 66
35-45 54% 37% 2% 7% 41

45 - 55 20% 47% 20% 13% 15

4.135 Table 47a and 47b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5dB and 10 dB
estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 47a: Subjective response to audible noise

(5dB categories)
Ler Subjectlve response
m
no::g :a)vel N:to :tv:"!ym Fairly or very r:sl::::r?tfs
annoyed —ed
Overall 84% 16% .
<40 85% 15% 13

40 - 45 85% 15% 13

45 - 50 86% 14% 7

50 - 55 80% 20% 5

Edinburgh Napier University Page 74



Page 245

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp c

building performance centre

Tabie 47b: Subjective response to audible noise

(10dB categories)
Subjective response
Estimated
Number of
noise ievei Not at aii or Fairly or very respondents
(dBA) not very e
annoyed y
Overall 84% 16% 38
<35 B86% 14% 7
35-45 B4% 16% 19

45 - 55 83% 17% 12

4,136 The low number of people who were annoyed with this event and the wide
dispersion of these respondents results in a poor correlation of levels with

annoyance.

4,137 The results of the response re-mapping following the methodology described in
section 4.16 are shown in Tables 48a and 48b below for 5dB and 10dB

categories respectively.

Tabie 48a. indicative community annoyance with varylng music noise ievels
Response re-mapping method, 5 dB categories

Event noise ievel Nolse levei at nearest % popduiation ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction (dBA) property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1.5km radius
0 59 5%
-5 54 3%
-10 49 1%

-15 44 0%

Edinburgh Napier University Page 75



Page 246

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

Tabie 48b. Indicatlve community annoyance with varying music noise ievels
Response re-mapping method, 10 dB categories

Event noise ievei Noise level at nearest % popuiation ‘falry’ or ‘very
reduction from 88 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1.5km radius
0 59 5%
-10 49 2%
-20 39 0%

4.138 It is also worth noting that 76 % of the concert attendees thought the Music
Noise Level at around Laeq 88 dB was ‘just right’, not ‘too loud’ or ‘too low'. . If
the reduced MNL was achieved by reducing the noise at source, it is likely that
a greater proportion of the audience would find the level ‘too low’. For this event
21% of the attendees felt the music was already too quiet.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 76



Page 247

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bpc !

building performance centre

KISS, Wembley Arena

4.139 The relevant noise map BPC5077-E10 produced for the Kiss, Wembley Arena
event is presented in Appendix A.

4.140 There is no obvious visual correlation between the annoyance ratings and the
noise level. The vast majority of the respondents did not hear any music, this is
due to the high level of insulation provided by the arena building.

4.141 In the Tokyngton area approximately a kilometre to the south east of the Arena
there is a grouping of four very and fairly annoyed respondents. This is on the
far side of Wembley stadium. This is difficult to explain as the music level at
these properties should have been under 20 dBA within the properties even
with their windows open. It is suspected that they were perhaps exposed o a
different music noise source that evening, or were perhaps giving a general

response to noise from the Stadium rather than the arena.

4.142 Tables 49a and 49b present the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response within each of the 5 dB and 10 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 49a: Subjective response to noise leveis (5dB categories)

Estimated Subjective response e
no:zeB::)vel Couid not Not at all Not very Falrly or very  respondents
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 86 4% 4% 6% 144
<40 88% 6% 0% 6% 108
40-45 89% 0% 6% 6% 18
45-50 72% 0% 22% 6% 18

Edinburgh Napier University Page 77



Page 248

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Tabie 49b: Subjective response to noise levels (10dB categories)

Estimated Subjective response

no:zaB::)vel Could not Not at ail Not very Fairly or very r:st;:nc:::re::s
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed
Overall 86% 4% 4% 6% 144
<35 91% 1% 0% 7% 67
35-45 85% 8% 2% . 5% 59

45 - 55 2% 0% 22% 6% 18

4143 Table 50a and 50b show the percentage of respondents giving a subjective
response to the audible concert music within each of the 5dB and 10 dB
estimated noise exposure bands.

Tabie 50a: Subjective response to audible nolse
(5dB categories)

Subjective response
Estimated
Number of
noise ievel Not at ail or Fairly or very respondents
(dBA) not very At
annoyed y
Overall 55% 45% 20
< 40 46% 54% 13
40 -45 50% 50% 2
45 - 50 80% 20% 5

Edinburgh Napier University Page 78



Page 249

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp c

building performance centre

Table 50b: Subjective response to aud/bie noise

(10dB categories)
= cudet Subjective response
stima
no::eB ::)vel Nzto ?tv:'r'v“ Fairiy or very r:s‘::'g::re:tfs
e annoyed
Overali 55% 45% 20
<35 17% 83% 6
35-45 67% 3% 9
45-55 80% 20% 5

4.144 The tables do not indicate any link between increasing music noise levels and
the percentage of people annoyed.

4.145 The results of the response re-mapping following the methodology described in
section 4.16 are shown in Tables 51a and 51b below for 5dB and 10dB

categories respectively.

Tabie 51a. Indicative community annoyance with varying music noise ievels
Response re-mapping method, 5 dB categories

Event noise level Noise level at nearest % popuiation ‘fairly’ or ‘very
reduction from 104 dBA property (dBA) annoyed’ within 1km radius
0 50 6%
-5 45 4%
-10 40 2%
-15 35 1%

Edinburgh Napier University Page 79



Page 250

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

bpc

building performance centre

Table 51b. Indlcative community annoyance with varying music noise levels
Response re-mapping method, 10 dB categories

Event noise level Nolse ievel at nearest % population ‘faidy’ or ‘very
reduction from 104 property (dBA) annoyed’ within tkm radius
(dBA)
0 50 6%
-10 40 4%

-20 30 1%

4.146 It is also worth noting that 77 % of the concert attendees thought the Music
Noise Level at around Laeq 104 dB was ‘just right’, thought 12% thought it was
‘too loud’. If the reduced MNL was achieved by reducing the noise at source, it
is likely that a greater proportion of the audience would find the level ‘too low’.
For this event 8% of the attendees felt the music was too quiet.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 80



Page 251

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to
Environmental Noise From Concerts

0 pPC/

building performance centre

5.0 Conclusions

5.1 The dose response analysis has indicated a clear link between music noise
levels and levels of annoyance of residents living near venues used for music
events. The overall 10 event relationship for all respondents ranges from 4%
‘fairly’ or ‘very’ annoyed at music levels under 35 dBA rising to 26% annoyed

with music levels over 65 dBA.

5.2 Looking at those ‘annoyed to some extent' the relationship for all respondents
ranges from 7% at music levels under 35 dBA rising to 50% annoyed with music
levels over 65 dBA.

53 The relationship also gives a clear guide on the percentage of residents that will
be aware of the music for any given external level. Again this presents a good
linear correlation, with the music awareness increasing as the noise levels

increase.

54 There is a clear increase in annoyance response above a MNL of 55 dB and a
similar reduction in the number of people that did not notice or could not hear

the music.

5.5 At around a MNL of 60 dB the percentage of respondents ‘annoyed to some
extent’ rises above both the ‘not annoyed’ and ‘inaudible’ categories.

5.6 The results indicate that even at higher music levels at the residential properties
there was still a significant proportion of the population in the immediate vicinity

of an event that did not hear the music.

57 It also appears that a significant percentage of the population will form an
opinion on the music's subjective annoyance irrespective of the actual level of

music.

Edinburgh Napier University Page 81



Page 252

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

5.8 The opinion formed will be influenced by the factors highlighted in section 4.14
and are aiso likely to be influenced by other concert related factors such as
annayance from additional event traffic, attendees littering etc.

58 As would be expected, a number of the maps indicate that the residents living
downwind of an event are more likely to hear the noise from the event.

5.10  The tables indicate that the stadium events give higher levels of annoyance for
the same level of music noise at the residential properties. This may be linked
to perception of how loud the music must be within a stadium by residents
compared to an unenclosed park, i.e. the louder the music is believed to be at
the event the more disturbing it is perceived to be by the resident.

2.11  Whilst 9% of all respondents were fairly or very annoyed by the music noise, it
should be noted that only 1% of residents actually complained about the noise
disturbance. The most common reasons for not making a complaint were that
they “had nothing to complain about” (53%) or “event did not have sufficient
impact to complain “(33%). This finding is similar to many other areas of impact
where simply being annoyed does not necessarily trigger a compiaint.

5.12  Annoyance rates for urban venues appear to be linked to music noise level
rather than venue type, suggesting that the Code of Practice perhaps does not
need to differentiate between these types of venues.

5.13  For each of the individual events an assessment of the likely change in
annoyance rates if the music noise level was lower has been produced.
However these predictions are individual to the particular events and therefore
have not been collated for all events.

Ed'nburgh Napier University Page 82



Page 253

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance cenlire

Appendix A. Noise-Response Maps

Noise Maps - BPC 5077-E1 to E10 are contained in a separate PDF file.

Event Map Reference
Green Day, Manchester BPC 5077-E1
Pink, Glasgow BPC 5077-E2
Pink, Coventry BPC 5077-E3
Pride, Brighton BPC 5077-E4
Help for Heroes,

Twickenham BPC 5077-£5
Proms, Swansea 8PC 5077-E6
Evolution, Newcastie BPC 5077-E7
Green Day, Wembley

Stadium BPC 5077-E8
Mowtown, Kenwood

. BPC 5077-E9
KiSS, Wembley Arena 8PC 5077-E10

Please note, in order to print the annotations shown on the noise maps, the user must
be using either Adobe Acrobat (full version) or Adobe Reader 10, for which a free
download is available on the internet (at get.adobe.comi/reader). Printing of PDF
annotations is not supported in Adobe Reader versions 9 and below. In addition, the
“Print notes and pop-ups” option must be enabled within the commenting tab in the

application’s preferences.

Edinburgh Napier University 2 Page 83



Page 254

NANR 292 Research Into Attitudes to

Environmental Noise From Concerts bp C

building performance centre

Appendix B. Event Meteorological Data

Event Weather Data

Wind direction & Cioud cover

Event Temperature °C Speed

Green Day, Manchester 20 4m/s ENE Clear

Pink, Glasgow 21 3m/s WSW Partly Cloudy

Pink, Coventry 15 4mis NNE Clear

Pride, Brighton 18 3m/s SW Sc;;ts(rjed

Help for Heroes, Partl

i S 16 2m/s NNW artly Cloudy
Scalttered

Proms, Swansea 15 Sm/s W e

Evolution, Newcastle 10 7mis N Partly Cloudy

30th

Evolution, Newcastle 10 1mis ESE Partly Cloudy

31st

Green Day, Wembley

Stadium 14 4m/s N Partly Cloudy

Mowtown, Kenwood

House 21 5mis W Parlly Cicudy

KISS, Wembiey Arena 10 3m/s NE Clear

Edinburgh Napier University Page 84



environment applied research centres, the Institute

: 3 - Sustainable
works with key organisations across the construction Construction
Industry. I5C has specialist expertise in developing
and supporting innovative Building Technologies &
Product Innovation and is the lead partner in the Low
Carbon Building Technologies Gateway.

Comprising several of Scotland’s leading buikt I‘ fm'mutl
ar

ANCY 5

PHE ASSEATION GE MCE LD ARG T LSS
NSOGB EONSULFANTS TESTLS OF OLLAE

& ‘*:., INVESTORS
%, IN PEOPLE

£dinturgh Napier University s a registered Scattich charity. Reg, No. SCOIB3T3

OFFICES

Building Performance Centre

0131 455 2569

bpc@napier.ac.uk

www.napier.ac.uk/bpc
www.rmp.biz
www.soundtest.co.uk
www.airtest.org.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 257

AR
l

i RECEIVEDS
ll'CHNL‘IM ACT 2003 - REPHESENTATION FORM 24 MAR 2017

To make a representalt on in respect of an appilication for a Premises Licence or Club

—————Rremises Certificate please complete the following form. For resentations to be
considered relevant they must relate to one or more of the our icensing — —____|
Objectives" (listed below).

Please note al| representations will be made available for applicants to view. If you
make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you will be called
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before 3 Licensing Committee.

Personal Detaljs

.....................................

............................................................

Licence application you wish to make a representation on
You do not need to answer all of the questions in this section, but please give as
much information as you can:

Application Number....... ..
Name of Licensee.. Pe.L. Exviv et PYrinmces %Rouﬁs

Name of Premises (if applicable). P - ExvtvdenA P wrlrtce

Premises Address where {|
..... %Lﬁmm?w o

.................................................................

Reason/s for reprasentation
Under the Licensing Act 2003, tor a representation lo be relevant it myst be one that is
about the likely effect of the application on the promotion of the four licensing objectives.

Fill in reason/s for Your representation in the Space provided under each Licensing
Objective it relates 1o,




Page 258

ot . -....,hearby declare that all information | have
s,!lbm}:ted is truémTdCorrect. ( )

Signed: (i SesmmrURs SE T e "7 Date: '2)2/’ '-E'l =N

Please send completed form to:

Haringey Council Licensing Team
Alexandra House,

Level 8,

10 Station Road,

Wood Green

London, N22 7TR



2 1 MAR 2017

—— Page 259

1

LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM

To make_a.represéntation in respect of an application for a Premises Licence or Ciub

Premises Certificate please complete the following form, For representations to be
considered relevant they must relate to one or maore of the four "Licensing
Objectives” (listed below).

Please note all representations will be made avaiiable for applicants to view. If you
make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you will be called
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing Committee.

Personai Detalls

.................................................................

Posteode.. ..

Licence application you wish to make a representation on

You do not need to answer alf of the questions in this section, but please give as
much information as you can:

Application Number.......... ..
Name of Licensee. .

Name of Premises (if applicable).. A’ LEXANDRA PRLIACE

Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect).......................
Pc\—-Ex.ﬂl\)Pﬂ.ﬂ-f gﬁe.&i..qm.mws ..................
..........&E....w.ﬁa.,.... OO GIREEN. ...

Reason/s for representation

Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relevant it must be one that is
about the likely effect of the application on the promotion of the four licensing objectives.
Any repreésentations that are considered to be vexatious or irivolous will not be considered
(please sea Haringey Councir's leaflet Variations, Representations and Appeals
for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates).

Fill In reason/s for Your representation In the space provided under each Licensing
Objective it relates to.




Shhe "o il b @L\o

”@aw\tﬁd’—i T AR
w U hiasl o

-———

€, Aouwn -
s

&, peopla

[ The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

20~ 56,550 pecpa wa)\k-u.-_j sk =
ey v a Swiuriom G\:‘;i—‘f&e'k’f llc.ny\.svuj
{o.30 PW\;’GTV

prnvwges will (hew
wilaaa \qu Polace.

o)

<

Wﬁ?\—l.sv\ ON aund
dﬂ:ﬂob leod 4o olecvd_g,( aandh
oo owve cc\.u\coALa_Acﬂ.
th"‘““lﬂ

Public Safety T\.cxre As o
o Public v,

Ju.ﬂak::a_\s <hockiing

Leo.uw.s oo vemune . B'V\
(=JOV-ION Y, um_tlmcxlcé'w{\\f

LN CvBUuMM o) ootz Pl’-‘l—’rfUY
<

SLW "‘Wbrc_ chian,
dﬂ/\nﬁey PRy
VIR

o

7 L

Ne) eangpovt |
s x“.él'nnm T s

TP Wi i Mkmtw%-kmg

Ao l.M

a.(:k.r.\edg \s al
aSsSociaked UQ"\“A
eo e p..mmc

| The Protection of Children from |

The Prevention of Publlc Nulsance

OWV loc.au\. u_mdm“fs \ cunn o

tbu{m\-med ond Aous
VMIN @rbeninag wany Iovid, Qaneh R

f-tql -GN

%Q‘cs‘h& VIS vaviphy

4 Uevicalk b3
<ok &Y ttis

o R
vis

[her o
submitted is true and correct.

Signed:

-—

Please send completed form to:

shearby declare that all information | have

Date:

9-8-17F

Haringey Council Licensing Team

Alexandra House,
Level 6,

10 Station Road,
Wood Green
London, N22 7TR

A Tuan thare e tha. fieoing ed edos o
wpeonadn calo

L\WLM\'DOJAL

o (curby oy

tnerlasl (i dva e ystumg, \ﬁ.a\-e o Ha %Ak\ﬂ

3('0 W,\_\_—Lov\ ?Q.GPLQ_\J?QQ.V\Aﬂ NS frc‘\/\.\r aﬂureiam )
Lo wg,\Olqd\c_ MSW&U&V{U‘& vt‘-?fﬂ"f
lV\-\"D M

anig wauj o shad



Page 261

' Y L
RECENVED
27 MAR 2017
LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM

To make a representation in respect of an application for a ﬂmh_eﬂ&eu&gmML_..

Premises Certificate please complete the following form. For representations to be
considered relevant they must relate to one or more of the four "Licensing
Objectives" (listed below).

Please note all representations will be made available for applicants to view. If you
make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you will be called
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing Committee.

Personal Details

.................................................................

Postcode.

Licence application you wish to make a representation on
You do not need to answer all of the questions in this section, but please give as
much information as you can:

Name of Premises (if applicable)....................

Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect).............ccceen......
--o» oo AIEXANGTR. Park a3 shown an the Applicants PIaD. .........ocoeeeeeeee e,

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Reason/s for representation

Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relevant it must be one that is
about the likely effect of the application on the promotion of the four licensing objectives.
Any representations that are considered to be vexatious or frivolous will not be considered
(please see Haringey Council’s leaflet Variations, Representations and Appeals
for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates).

Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each Licensing
Objective it relates to.




Page 262

The Pravention of Crime and Disorder

T~

Public Safety

The Prevantion of Public Nuisance

| believe that the scale, frequency and type of events being applied for will cause a major public nolse
nuisance. There would be a deleterious effect for thousands of people on the peaceful enjoyment of
their homes and gardens. This is likely to oceur on all sides of Alexandra Park but probably it would

particularly affect those on the south and the west of the park.

The application mentions the race mestings at Alexandra Park. I'm old enough to remember themn and
the weak Tannoy they used bears no relationship to the noise levels described In the application.

The Protection of Children from Harm

T
l,.CliveGabrel | . ,hearby declare that all information | have
submitted is true Aand ~nre~-~
Signed: - Date: 22nd March 2017
Please send completed form to: y
e

Haringey Council Licensing Team
Alexandra House,

Level 6,

10 Station Road,

Wood Green

london, N22 7TR




Page 263

LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM

To make a representation in respect of an application for a Premises Licence or Club
Premises Certificate please complete the following form. For representations to be
considered relevant they must relate to one or more of the four "Licensing
Objectives” (listed below).

Please note all representations will be made available for applicants to view. {f you
make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you will be called
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing Committee.

Personal Details

.................................................................

.................................................................

Postcode.

Licence application you wish to make a representation on

You do not need to answer ail of the questions in this section, but please give as
much information as you can:

...................

Reason/s for representation

Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relevant it must be one thal is
about the likely effect of the application ont the promotion of the four licensing objectives.
Any representations that are considerad to ba vexatious or frivolous will not be considered
(please see Haringey Council’s leaflet Variations, Representations and Appeals
for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates).

Fill in reason/s for your represeniation in the space provided under each Licensing
Objective it relates to. )




Page 264

i Bing WP euld Wt a4 o year b pemech wine ¢ #f
e At QA tdeat quol w;{mmr olakin -mis \lceinde  vICe all
ableced SNl puve o chane e ol vouy S il aftds Buinn
The Preventlon of Crime and Disorder
Sewlivg alcohol ab esenls ; &3 vz Yo :1(1&{.1\9 deen Witih Mo Darks erents,
cuil> wmiew 2 Lall ay punters gel howdly dwinke avd frvi
Sowlirg & chantvg | bveavivg | winhvg i sukdiveelS. \vave Yideo (eolege of
VA Whave e veaten ® buliew €y of Qe C’_v\h o ewelnks Air o i\ 0¢-v5
Al diteienbraven vat ey ae o n PN At
wil W2 any dftferer Ty gven 0y e hepng T e alechpl.
Publlc Safety )
T yove Video footege ob kil vecierivg Al de gvects Bllefiig an
et ab o palace N WY e popelivg ek @ies wyenk, [ {pere qrme

contere e b Safih) o @ pegrle apdd Arvel VAo dnSe ey
w\mmawmm,{,d%m P SULe S SR

The Prevention of Public Nuisance .
The. licens, appicahga Wkl via menhon oF vaot contuole vill Ko
put W @Aae D pieveld pRbIT nuSane  fellaiwy an estid. AS A i
G.’f‘ﬁpemétﬁcfo\.bﬁ etk 1h cioge fmmm‘ﬁu_& altca | BAS egrRS plai] 1S oy Senl
and omabuhe ard Were feve, winlkettab € | pieanivg Wk restctnl peay oAl fwunt C
. prlnged auiane Wiig oy se ot Wy ndoov evenk - Chn eutbdecs e inil vakl e
The Protection of Children from Harm
thw'ﬁ e atsuat ey ol alevey pobinged viaSavie MESE MY arG W i
Mve A Kyock ap GASULAE 64 Y WyYwy b et il T Sieep famlst 113

achit pufyde

| e T .. oy hearby declare that all information | have
submitted is truet and correct.

Signed.: -- Date: ZE !O%!Z.O[:f‘ '

Please serld cﬁr_ﬁeted form to:

Haringey Council Licensing Team
Alexandra House,

Level 6,

10 Station Road,

Wood Green

London, N22 7TR

N e (mediw € 14,000 efie w0 (W) S50 000 yeerk - PT pave wor C-’-*t"‘“.‘!‘ej\f :«w
Yoy will e ﬁbﬁw} vid ot all %m&g 4 fg:f\e ‘\”"‘""“ﬂ aind qivefly | given WY \wn?e

A ARSpA - afhaes avitlode - ‘W:\aw € P Ak e v wareelled o delagest [AAE
Wi e ol | e aviinel Cetan vd Wt brod-on condaMipul vl le
wab veguuty wil ﬁi(a {’W‘ﬂ/gc‘ilnﬂs«mcf aCe rewtt \bw iavg At i exyect i @
Wike o fewaie al el yeuple b e aree 7 :



Page 265

Anderson Chanel

From: .
Sent: 20 March 2017 14:35

To: Licensing

Subject: Alexandra Palace Grounds Licence application
Dear Sirs

| have read the application and am responding as a local resident.

[ am extremely concerned that if the application is granted it will have a very severe detrimental impact on the health,
wellbeing, safety, environment and living conditions of local residents, as well as on the peaceful park environment,
wildlife etc.

The number of outdaor events proposed is excessive and will materially effect thousands of people's enjoyment of
their homes and gardens, the Palace and Park itself, for many manths of the year. Given the number of events (42), it
is likely that there will be noise and crowd disturbance for every day of every weekend throughout spring and summer
months. Existing outdoor events already cause a significant disturbance and the Palace is very bad at dealing with
noise complaints. They do not answer calls most of the time. When they do, the noise officer is usually busy dealing
with other complaints and by the time they respond the event has passed. They also completely ignore the "echo
chamber” effect that is caused by the topography.If the licence is granted it will be pretty much impossible to enjoy
sitting in our gardens, or having windows open while the events are on.

The number of music events in particular is likely to cause extreme disruption to the neighbourhood, not least to
children and elderly peaple trying to sleep. Most children need to be asleep before the suggested latest times for
events in order to stay healthy and thrive at school.

The decibel levels applied for are extraordinarily high - way in excess of those allowed for Finsbury Park concerts.
There is also no mention that | can see of how many days each of these events will last; so one event could mean a
whoie week of extreme noise.

They are proposing 4 events with a maximum sound level at the closest properties of 75dbA (similar to Hyde Park
which gave rise to large numbers of complaints) and a further 5 events at 65dbA. Given the relatively quiet nature of
The Park and its environs, every one of these events would exceed the current limits imposed by the Council at
Finsbury Park (which is +15dbA above background noise level — equivalent to about 55dbA along Redston Rd /
Northview Road).

In addition to noise concerns, there is likely to be a huge detrimental impact on the grounds of Alexandra Palace from
a succession of huge outdoor events, plus concerns about crowd control and other aspects of security (there is no
control currently, for example, of the hundreds of drunken louts singing at the top of their voices who exit darts events
late at night; nor of the motorcyclists who tear around the Park in the early hours of the morning almost every day).



Page 266

Anderson Chanel

D __
From: ——
Sent: 21 March 2017 09:08
To: Barrett Daliah
Cc: Licensing
Subject: Re: Alexandra Palace Licence Application
Dear Daliah Barrett

I object to the plans to stage an unprecedented number of live music and performance events in
Alexandra Park.

I am a homeowner who has lived on the edge of The Park for 17 years. My family already
endures an unacceptable amount of noise pollution from indoor concerts at The Palace - a
building not properly sound-proofed to prevent leakage especially from bass heavy rock
concerts. Further, we are assaulted by noise from the annual circus which produces noise

pollution 24/7 for 10 days due to the electrical generators the circus runs. And, there have
been motorcycle events held in The Park during which the announcer
has screamed over a loudspeaker system at panful decibel level for the
entire weekend!

I have worked as a concert producer. I know that it is impossible to control noise volume
because as the day or night wears on those on the sound board loss perspective and "crank it
up.” As example, the indoor concerts at The Palace invariably get louder the later the hour
becomes.

Finally, this proposal will fundamentally change the nature of Alexandra Park and, in effect,
deny picnicking families, dog walkers and others the quiet enjoyment of this green space and it
will do this so on far too many weekends. It will also deny those of us who live on or near The
Park the right to the quiet enjoyment of our homes. It will also have a disastrous effect on the
value of our homes. Would you want to buy a home where you will be assaulted by noise on a
regular basis?

As a taxpayer, homeowner, and voter, I urge you to defend the peace and quiet of Alexandra
Park and environs.

Sincerely yours,

Phone:



Page 267

Anderson Chanel
b

From:

Sent: 22 March 2017 11:25

To: Licensing

Subject: Alexandra Palace grounds premises licence application

Re: Alexandra Palace grounds premises licence application

| object to this application for a blanket premises licence for Alexandra Park, on
the grounds of prevention of public nuisance. If granted, frequent large-scale
events in the park during the summer months, attracting crowds of up to 50,000
people hearing amplified music and consuming alcohol, will destroy the park as a
peaceful green space. It will become a crowded and noisy commercial space
instead.

The inevitable problems of littering, pressure on scarce local parking and on
transport networks, will compound a major nuisance to local residents and users
of the park who wish to enjoy it just as that - a park.

Alexandra Park is a precious and freely accessible open space for people who do
not have money or transport to access the countryside. The proposed increase in
the number and scale of events will not only deprive them of that resource, but
will also have a severe detrimental effect on residents living nearby.

My home backs onto the park, and | already experience acute noise disturbance
from the generators, music and amplified commentary coming from the relatively
small number of existing events. | accept that occasional nuisance as the price
for staging a small number of income-generating events each year. But what is
now proposed will mea a step-change in the level of nuisance, which will entirely
alter the experience of living where | do. For this reason the Council and AP will
be laying themselves open to legal challenge, if the application is allowed and an
events programme is launched which will destroy residents' peaceful enjoyment
of their homes in summer.

I strongly urge the licensing committee to refuse this application, thereby retaining
control over the size and number of public events in this landmark Haringey park.

~»



Page 268

Anderson Chane!

From:

Sent: 21 March 2017 22:14

To: Licensing

Subject: Objections to the proposed Alexandra Park Premises Licence Application
Dear Sir/Madam,

As alocal resident living less than 50m from a gate to Alexandra Park, I am writing to register my strong
objection to significant elements of the proposed Alexandra Park Premises Licence Application currently
under consultation, notably:

1) The overall number of outdoor events, which at 42/year is excessive given the importance of the park as a
local public amenity and the disruption to this public enjoyment entailed by such a major increase in the
number of outdoor events.

ii) That 4 events/year will entail a maximum 75dbA impact to nearby residents, with a further 5 events/year
will entail of maximum 65dbA local impact. Given our location, both the above are likely to impact us
significantly, almost certainly well above the +15dbA to background noise limit put in place to limit the
noise impact of the far less frequent music events held at Finsbury Park. Music from the circus already
disturbs is regularly, notwithstanding the volume is much lower than the events proposed in the licence
application.

Yours faithfully,



Page 269

Anderson Chanel

From:

Sent: 27 March 2017 10:59

To: Licensing

Subject: Re: Representation re. licensing application no. 240317

Dear Daliah,

Thank you for letting me know about the problem with my attachment.
I've copied and pasted the whole form below.

Kind regards,

LICENSING ACT 2003

REPRESENTATION FORM

To make a representation in respect of an application for a Premises Licence or Club
Premises Certificate please complete the following form. For representations to be
considered relevant they must relate to one or

more of the four “Licensing

Objectives” (listed below).

Please note all representations will be made available for applicants to view.

If you make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you
will be called upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing
Committee.

Personal Details
Name.... ¢ s ——
Address...

-----------------------------------------------------------------

Postcode. .

Licence application you wish to make a representation on You do not need to answer all of
the questions in this section, but please give as much information as you can:

Application Number..240317........ :

Name of Licensee.Alexandra Palace Trading Limited................

Name of Premises (if applicable)..Alexandra Palace,....mwn. .

Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect)..........ueueennunnn....
..Alexandra Palace

By e

Reason/s for representation

Under the Licensing Act 2063, for a representation to be relevant it must be one that is
about the likely effect of the application on the promotion of the four licensing
objectives.

Any representations that are considered to be vexatious or frivolous will not be
considered (please see Haringey Council’s leaflet Variations, Representations and Appeals
for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates).

1



Page 270

Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each Licensing
Objective it relates to.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Public Safety
The Prevention of Public Nuisance

I wish to register my objection to the above licence application. If granted, it will
facilitate a significant increase in the number of outdoor events in Alexandra Park.

I live in a flat on the perimeter of the park and have a ready suffered from the increase
in the number of noisy events in the park during the last® two years. For the first time,
the annual fireworks event in November 2016 was held over two days instead of one. Unlike
previous years, the event involved the setting up and taking down of stalls close to my
garden over a number of days, the use of generators that ran all night and were audible
from my bedroom and a noisy refrigeration lorry that was parked extremely close to ny
garden. i

The food festivals that took place during the last two summers also involved noisy work
over several days before the event and at least a day afterwards. The noise included loud
beeping at frequent intervals from vehicles reversing.

Music events held further up the slope have also been louder over the last few years.

I feel that people who live around the park should be able to expect to lead normal lives
in their homes and gardens without a significant increase in noise during, before and
after events in the park. This should apply to any single event, but is even more
critical if the number of outdoor events is to increase.

I am also concerned about the impact of increasing the number of outdoor events on the
flora and fauna of the park.

The Protection of Children from Harm

D shearby declare that all
information I have submitted is true and correct.

Signed:

Date:
26 March 2017

Please send completed form to:
Haringey Council Licensing Team
Alexandra House,

Level 6,

10 Station Road,

Wood Green

London, N22 7TR

On 27/63/2017 08:42, Licensing wrote:
>
5



Page 271

Anderson Chanel

S —
From: K — i
Sent: 22 March 2017 19:40
To: Licensing
Cc: louise.stewart@alexandrapalace.com
Subject: Alexandra Palace licence representations
Dear Sir/Madam

| live on Redston Road. My property backs onto Alexandra Palace. I'd like to make representations on their current
licence application - which aims to significantly increase the volume of events, and the the volume at events.

| appreciate that Ally Pally needs an income from events. And | want that income to grow. | regularly attend the events
there - from gigs and open air cinema and the Soap Box and Fireworks. All of these | love.

But I'm worried in particular about the volume allowed or their type 1 events, particularly the 4 events with 75db
allowed. 1 think this is just too high. I recognise that this is the same level that Hyde Park, Clapham Common and
Finsbury Park have, but | think that the unique hilly geography of Alexandra Palace means that sound will be projected
further, down the slope toward houses which are extremely close to the edge of the park. Across the entire Warner
Estate.

Having been on Stroud Green Road during Wireless Festival a year or two ago, and knowing people who regularly
move out of their houses in Stroud Green when the Wireless Festival is ongoing, I'd like the committee to consider
exaclly where the maximum volume will be tolerated, and set lower limits so as not to spoil typical summer's evenings
for me and my neighbours.

I know that it's not part of this consultation, but already when the Palace hosts events on the path at the bottom of the
hill (e.g. the Russian Circus) the constant drone from the generators - admittedly probably less than 75db - is a real
nuisance and because it's on 24 hours genuinely prevents people from sleeping. | hate it when the circus comes to
town because there is no escape from this incessant rumble.

But apart from that | don't have a problem with the types of events planned, or even the number of them. But the peak
volume - | do.

The other point to raise is one of parking and traffic. Our road is not CPZd. Alexandra Palace do issue a ticketing
system for some events when roads are closed (e.g. Fireworks}), but on many other events, the number of cars which
park there prevent us from doing so. There should be more ‘locals only' parking checks for major events, certainly all
those with more than 5000 people expected.

The Trust does try and maintain good relations with neighbours, but | worry this dramatic increase in the number of
events, and the volume of events will turn friends into enhermies.

| feel very privileged to live where | do, and make very good use of the Park. Indeed I'd welcome more gigs and events
in the building where the volume can be well managed - but the prospect of summer evenings being ruined by loud
noise worries me. I'd like you to limit this 75db volume to 1 event for the first year of the licence, so us neighbours can
get a better understanding of what it might actually mean, so we can decide whether to support or object to 4 events in
future.

Yours sincerely



Page 272

Anderson Chanel!

From; . —

Sent: 22 March 2017 21:01

To: Licensing

Subject: Alexandra Palace Licence Application Objection

To whom it may concern,

Myself and my husband ( pwould like to lodge an objection to the new licence application
by Alexandra Palace.

As residents of Redston Road, backing directly onto the park, we have first hand knowledge of the impact of
events on both local residents and the surrounding area.

Whilst we enjoy many events held at the park (concerts at Ally Pally, The RedBull Soap Box Race and the
Fireworks Festival) we feel that the proximity of our and many other houses to the park makes it an
impossible venue for many large scale events.

The noise level suggested in the application is quite frankly ludicrous - being louder than events at Finsbury
Park (which I may add we can hear from our house) and events at that noise level would severely disrupt the
lives of local residents. Specific to our circumstances we have 2 young children whose sleep would
undoubtedly be impacted. The noise of the circus, which is already a regular event in the park, is extremely
disruptive to their sleep (and this is staged in a tent).

Also, the application is extremely vague as to exactly what type of events are being proposed so I am not
sure how anybody in the local area can agree to it? Specific details on exactly what type of event and
exactly where they would be held would need to be provided for proper consideration.

Furthermore, with the potential large number of people attending these events, we have concerns over both
traffic and crime.

In conclusion, we object to the application.

Regards,



Page 273

LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM ’ ? Ity
214 AR %o

To make a representation in respect of an application fora P remises |
Certificate please complete the following form. For representations to be considered relev
must relate to one or more of the four “Licensing Objectives" (listed below),

Please note all representations will be made available for applicants to view. If you make a
representation objecting to the application it is tikely that you will be called upon to attend a hearing
and present your objection befare a Licensing Committee.

Enclosed is the full submission which includes information about WERA
Personal Details

Name. (Chair of Warner Estate Residents’ Association (WERA} and Member of Alexandra
Palace Statutory Advisory Committee. Dick Hudson (WERA Member and Member of Alexandra
Palace Consultative Committee)

Address
Postcode.

Licence application you wish to make a representation on. You do not need to answer all of the
questions in this section, but please give as much information as you can;

Application Number...................
Name of Licensee: Alexandra Palace Trading Limited
Name of Premises (if applicable) Alexandra Palace, Alexandra Palace Way

Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect)......Alexandra Palace Way.........c...... ......
London

Postcode...N22 7AY

Reason/s for representation Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relevant it
must be one that is about the likely effect of the application an the promotion of the four licensing
objectives. Any representations that are considered to be vexatious or frivolous will not be
considered (please see Haringey Council’s leaflet Variations, Representations and Appeals for
Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates).

Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each Licensing Objective it
relates to.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Chatlenge 25. The APP application, page 6, refers to the adoption of the “Chatlenge 25” policy,
but on page 11 reference is made to “Challenge 21”. Presumably the former will apply?



Page 274

See also “Number of Events” and “Sites” below
Public Safety

Transport. We would like to see a more developed response on how, for major events,
the transport infrastructure will cope with limited accessibility.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

Number of events. It is important to note that when number of events are referred to they
are the number of event open days and not individual number of events (see page 8 of the
Alexandra Palace licence submission). The licence application is for 42 event days although
the Alexandra Park and Palace (APP) Board has capped the number of events at 30 event
days for year 2017/18. Without some indicatien of the present number of events or events
days, it is hard to evaluate this figure. The application should contain this information, The
number of events is one issue, but the size of events, where they are and how much noise
they make are all important factors. Added to the number of the actual event days of course
are the days setting up and pulling out.

”

Nolse One of the worries expressed was that the kind of problems that had arisen with
Finsbury Park events would arise also at Alexandra Palace, but at the public meeting we
received verbal assurances that this would not be case. However, we now understand that
the limit on one of our roads for example (Redston Road) will in fact be even higher than
that for Finsbury Park, which is 15dB{A) above background noise. According to the
Vanguardia report which APP had prepared in support of the application, background
noise in Redston Road is about 40dB, so the Finsbury Park limit would be 55dB. Given
this calculation and the figures of 55-75dB(A) in the supporting document, the Finsbury
Park limit would be at least equalled by all APP events and exceeded by alt medium to
large or large events. Therefore on the face of it the proposals for Alexandra Palace are
worse than the conditions currently existing for Finsbury Park. They are worse also than the
Noise Council's Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (1995). This
states that “the Music Noise Level (MNL) should not exceed the background noise level by
more than 15 dB(A) over a fifteen minute period” where more than three events are held up
to 2 maximum of 12. Even though it is stated to be under review this is the Code as it stands.

Scheduling. No mention appears to be made to the spread of events through the year. Can
we assume that most events will be in the summer months?

Sites. Appendix B of the Paper presented to the 29" September SACC, showed a map of
potential sites for the Park events. it makes important relevant comments including that
music for south east and south west slopes would “not fall in to a category of dance music or
heavy rock music.” This information does not appear to be provided in the licence
application.

Impact assessments. We recognise that Alexandra Park and Palace will be carrying out
impact assessments. It is possible that the APP assessment may vary from assessments
made by local residents and in such circumstances we hope that some form of mediation is
possible, most notably for noise.

Circus. We have been given to understand that the circus is not included as one of
these 42 events. Is that correct? One of the residents who lives close to the circus
site contributed this comment to 3 discussion on our association e mail list: “The



Page 275

circus runs loud, electrical generators 24/7 for 10 days. We have to endure what
sounds like a lorry idling outside our windows for that entire time.”

The Protection of Children from Harm

Challenge 25. The APP application, page 6, refers to the adoption of the “Challenge 25"
policy, but on page 11 reference is made to “Challenge 21", Presumably the former will

apply?

Conclusions {Are relevant to all four licensing objectives).

Signed:

Conclusions. We have serious concerns about this licence application, especially so far as
noise is concerned. The decibel levels presented are unsatisfactory and should be
reconsidered.

We are also concerned at the absence of any justification for 42 event days and would prefer
to see in the first instance how the cap next year 2017/18 of 30 event days works out. And
there does seem to be some confusion as to what events are included in the licence
application (for instance circus, fireworks, street cafes etc). This needs to be set out much
more clearly.

The APP submission states “The impact of any event on local residents will be mitigated to a
fair and reasonable level with considerations and policies in place to manage issues....” We
hope so.

Jhereby declare that all information | have submitted is true and correct,

Date: 24" March 2017

Please send completed form to:

Haringey Council Licensing Team Alexandra House, Level 6, 10 Station Road, Wood Green London,
N22 7TR



Page 276

Alexandra Palace Park
Licence Application [ HAR |\’
Response from Warner Estate Residents’ Associatjon

Introduction

The Warner Estate Residents’ Association (WERA), founded in 1996, comprises Redston Road,
Danvers Road, Warner Road, Park Avenue North, Clovelly Road, Baden Road, Priory Avenue, Linzee
Road and parts of Priory Road. All the roads are in the N8 postcode.

There are about 630 homes in the WERA area.

WERA is represented as a residents’ association on the Alexandra Palace Statutory Advisory
Committee (SACC) .~ ° ° }and Consultative Committee ( Tk

WERA made submissions when the Licence application was first mooted. The Minutes of the SACC
and Consultative Committee on 29™ September 2016 record:

“g) provided feedback from the Warner Estate Residents Association-the need to generate
income must be balanced with the need to maintain the resource as an area of peaceful enjoyment
in a city, as well as the need to preserve the natural environment; “noise creep” from any events
with amplified sound needed to be addressed, with some independent mediation if required; the
impact on local streets with parking overspill and crowds of people leaving events must be
considered when reviewing any events in the Park”

WERA followed this up with a letter sent to the Chair of the Alexandra Palace Board and the Chief
Executive of Alexandra Palace on 11" October 2016. One of our comments was taken up, namely
that the final Minute of the Board meeting of 29" September should refer to impacts on surrounding
areas as well as on the Park. The published minute stated “the Board, whilst recognising the
constraints on resources, directed the executive to ensure that appropriate measures and resources,
to manage the impacts on the Park and surrounding areas, were included in the Business Plan for
17/18.”

The Minutes of the same meeting “......agreed that the maximum number of event days that the
Board shall allow to take place is capped at 30 for 17/18 and shall not be exceeded in future years
without the permission of the Board.”

Comments

a) Number of events. It is important to note that when number of events are referred to they
are the number of event open days and not individual number of events (see page 8 of the
Alexandra Palace licence submission). The licence application is for 42 event days although
the Alexandra Park and Palace (APP) Board has capped the number of events at 30 event
days for year 2017/18. Without some indication of the present number of events or events
days, it is hard to evaluate this figure. The application should contain this information. The
number of events is one issue, but the size of events, where they are and how much noise
they make are all important factors. Added to the number of the actual event days of course
are the days setting up and pulling out.

b} Noise One of the worries expressed was that the kind of problems that had arisen with
Finsbury Park events would arise also at Alexandra Palace, but at the public meeting we



Page 277

received verbal assurances that this would not be case. However, we now understand that
the limit on one of our roads for exampie (Redston Road) will in fact be even higher than
that for Finsbury Park, which is 15dB(A) above background noise. According to the
Vanguardia report which APP had prepared in support of the application, background
noise in Redston Road is about 40dB, so the Finsbury Park limit would be 55dB. Given
this calculation and the figures of 55-75dB(A) in the supporting document, the Finsbury
Park limit would be at least equalled by all APP events and exceeded by all medium to
large or large events. Therefore on the face of it the proposals for Alexandra Palace are
worse than the conditions currently existing for Finshury Park. They are worse also than the
Noise Council’s Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (1995). This
states that “the Music Noise Level {MNL) should not exceed the background noise level by
more than 15 dB{A) over a fifteen minute period” where more than three events are held up
to a maximum of 12. Even though it is stated to be under review this is the Code as it stands.

c) Scheduling. No mention appears to be made to the spread of events through the year. Can
we assume that most events will be in the summer months?

d) Sites. Appendix B of the paper presented to the 29" September SACC, showed a map of
potentiai sites for the Park events. it makes important relevant comments including that
music for south east and south west slopes would “not fall in to a category of dance music or
heavy rock music.” This information does not appear to be provided in the licence
application.

e} Impact assessments. We recognise that Alexandra Park and Palace will be carrying out
impact assessments, it is possible that the APP assessment may vary from assessments
made by locai residents and in such circumstances we hope that some form of mediation is
possible, most notably for noise.

f) Challenge 25. The ApP application, page 6, refers to the adoption of the “Challenge 25”
policy, but on page 11 reference is made to “Challenge 21”. Presumably the former will
apply?

g) Circus. We have been given to understand that the circus is not included as one of
these 42 events. Is that correct? One of the residents who lives close to the circus
site contributed this comment to a discussion on our association e mail list: “The
circus runs loud, electrical generators 24/7 for 10 days. We have to endure what
sounds like a lorry idling outside our windows for that entire time.”

h) Transport. We would like to see a more developed response on how, for major
events, the transport infrastructure will cope with limited accessibility.

Conclusions. We have serious concerns about this ficence appiication, especially so far as noise is
concerned. The decibel ievels presented are unsatisfactory and should be reconsidered.

We are aiso concerned at the absence of any justification for 42 event days and wouid prefer to
see in the first instance how the cap next year 2017/18 of 30 event days works out. And there
does seem to be some confusion as to what events are included in the licence application (for
instance circus, fireworks, street cafes etc). This needs to be set out much more clearly.

The APP submission states “The impact of any event on local residents will be mitigated to a fair
and reasonabie ievel with considerations and policies in place to manage issues....” We hope so.

On behaif of WERA: © ~ ° and



Page 278

MAR 2017

LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM

To make a representation in respect of an application for a Premises Licence or Club
Premises Certificate please complete the following form. For representations to be
considered reievant they must reiate to one or more of the four "Licensing
Objectives” (fisted below).

Please note all representations wiil be made available for applicants to view. If you
make a representation objecting to the application it is fikely that you will be called
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing Committee.

Personal Detalls

Name...'

Address.... .........ccccenne,

------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------

Postcode........... ;

Licence application you wish to make a representation on

You do not need to answer all of the questions in this section, but please give as
much information as you can:

Application Number...................
Name of Licensee. A LEXANDRA PALACE TRADING LM (AD

Name of Premises (if applicable)... )L EXAN ODRA  PARK

Premises Addresi&where the Licence will take effect)..........................
A PALACE

e AR ONWDRA L PRLACE T
o ALEXANDRA. . RRCACE AN
Postcode. N 22 24

Reason/s for representation

Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relavant It must be one that is
about the likely effect of the application on the promotion of the four licensing objectives.
Any represantations that are considered to be vexatious or frivolous will not be considered
(please see Haringey Council’s lsaflet Variations, Representations and Appeals
for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificatas).

Filll In reason/s for your representation In the space provided under each Licensing
Objective it rejates o,




Page 279

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Public Safety

Frequent use of vehicles across open grassland in the park, which wouid be

reguired for setting up and taklnﬁ down event facliities, presents a significant

LE:I:I ptairk users, particuiarly children, See the attachment for further
ation.

"The Prevention of Public Nuisance

The hoiding of events up to the maximum number proposed in the appiication
would lead to 1) park users being deprived of their customary activities in the
park, and 2) the creation of nolse, litter, iight and air potiution in the park and
surrounding areas which in its frequency and cumuiative effect woul comprise
a public nuisance. )

See the attachment for further expianation.

The Protection of Chiidren from Harm

ver i, ...,hearby declare that all information | have
submitted is true and correct.

Signed: Date: 7 ¢ M\ 2017

Please send completed form to:

Haringey Council Licensing Team
Alexandra House,

Level 6,

10 Station Road,

Wood Green

London, N22 7TR



Page 280

o NCrL B
Application for Premises Licence by Alexandra Palace Trading Limited | S

Representation by the Friends of Alexandra Park 25 MAR 2017

This representation is made on behalf of the Friends of Alexandra Park, a member
organisation established in 2006 with aims to promote and protect Alexandra Park, the
grounds around Alexandra Palace. The Friends group has a membership of 294 households,
Including local residents and supporters of the park living In other parts of London. We
provide a programme of walks, talks and conservation activities in the Park which support
the park management and the charitable objectives of the Alexandra Park and Palace
Charitable Trust.

The application by Alexandra Palace Trading Limited (APTL) seeks the grant of a premises
licence which would permit an increase in the number of days for which events are open in
the park to 42 per year from iess than 10 days per year over the past 2 years. We do not
object to the granting of a premises licence for Alexandra Park per se, and we are not aware
of any deficiencies in the procedures put forward by APTL for managlng an individual event.
However we do consider that the maximum number of events In the application Is excessive
on the grounds primarily of the cumulative public nuisance it will cause together with
concerns over public safety. There are other concerns about environmental impact, but we
recognise these are not a consideration in the grant of a premises licence.

This representation has been based on the experlence of park users observing the before,
during and after effects of events such as the Firework Festival, the Foodle Festival and the
Red Bull Soap Box Derby, across the park as a whole, as well as the impact of large crowds
leaving music concerts in Alexandra Palace.

Prevention of public nuisance — number of events

AlexandraPark s a large park which is noted for its areas of woodland, open grassland,
wildlHe, views and history, and which recelves approaching 3 million visits per year. Itis
used for picnics, running, walking and cycling, sports, nature observation and the relaxation
which an open green space can provide. Much of this activity is regular: a vital part of local
people’s daily or weekly routines. At a time when the council expects to construct over
7,000 new homes in Wood Green, without any large open spaces, it is vital that Alexandra
Park remains a green open space to support the well-being of those additional residents.

The “premises” in this application are used for the vast majority of the year for activities
which are not the licensable activities. Consideration of public nuisance should therefore
encompass the Impact of the licensable activities on the other uses and users of the
“premises” i.e, the park.

As a primarily natural, green open space, the park has no permanent facllities or
infrastructure to support large scale events. As a result any event requires the erection of




Page 281

stages, marquees, sound systems, catering facllities, generators and fencing, which in turn
means days of vehicles and equipment traversing the park. Hence the maximum of 42 days
when the events would be open, would lead to 2 to 3 times that number of days of
restrictions on access to areas of the park. Access for park users to the open space would
therefore be compromised to a greater or lesser extent for up to 120 days, predominantly in
the summer months. This turns what might be regarded as an inconvenience to park users
when it Is only occasional Into a nuisance for substantial numbers of people: a disruption of
normal life as significant as sleep disturbance due to excessive nolse. In addition the
diversion of the W3 bus service, which is required for safety reasons for some of the larger
events, has an Impact across a wide area as it removes the bus service from Station Road
and Priory Road, with a particular impact on school children and commuters.

Prevention of public nuisance — noise, litter and pollution

We recognise the efforts that the applicant has made to reduce the Impacts of the events
which have taken place in the park to date, both in and around the park. However thereisa
degree of nolse, litter, air pollution from catering and generators, and light pollution
resulting from large events in the park, despite the best efforts of event organisers and APTL
management. For example despite ample provision of litter bins and tollets, litter blows
into the trees and bushes and event attendees use the wooded areas as toilets. The
cumulative impact of frequent events in the park presents a significant problem for park
users.

Experlence has shown that noise, littering and traffic disruption in adjoining streets is
unavoidable when crowds of thousands of people enter and leave the park. When this
happens a few times per year the impact on local residents is generally tolerable, though
not to those close to park exits. An increase as proposed to 18 days per year for crowds
between 5,000 and 50,000, added to the number of occasions that crowds of up to 10,000
leave events In Alexandra Palace, would render these Impacts a serlous nuisance.

Public Safety

The need for a range of contractor’s vehicles to traverse the park for setting up and taking
down event facilities raises a concern for public safety. in large areas of the park, children
and dogs can normally run around freely. When vehicles enter these areas, there is no
physical separation of vehicles from the public, and despite attentive marshalling, there
would be a risk of accidents.

Support for this represen n

When we consulted our members on the proposed application for this premises licence as
presented to the Alexandra Park and Palace Consultative and Advisory Committees in
September 2016, we recelved 49 responses, 2 of which supported the draft application. 20
objected to any increase in events in the park from the current level and 27 agreed the need



Page 282

for some increase in the number of events, but felt strongly that the maximum number of
days of events listed In the application was unacceptable. In other words 95% of the
respondees objected to the maximum number of event days proposed. Similar concerns
were expressed by local residents’ groups and other members of the Alexandra Park and
Palace Consultative Committee and Advisory Committee as minuted at their joint meeting.
Proposals by APTL to provide details of the plans for monitoring and impact assessment
were welcomed but have not yet been published.

Summary

The Board of Alexandra Park and Palace Charitable Trust recognised these concerns and
restricted the management of the Trust to 30 days when events are open in the park until
such time as the Board revise that figure. We believe that the premises licence should be
granted for a maximum 30 days of events per year, since the increase from less than 10 days
per year to ultimately 42 days per year would take APTL into a situation where their events
would, even with APTL's improving management procedures, cause a significant public
nuisance and risk to the safety of park users.

Chair, Friends of Alexandra Park

25 March 2017



Page 283

LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM

To make a representation in respect of an application for a Premises Licence or Club
Premises Certificate please complete the fallowing form. For representations to be
considered relevant they must relate to one or more of the four "Licensing
Objectives” (listed below).

Please note all representations wiil be made available for applicants to view. If you
make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you will be called
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing Committee.

Personal Details HARNGEY S
Name L L

21
Address MAR 2017
Postcode |
Licence application you wish fo make a representation on
You do not need to answer all of the questions in this section, but please give as
much information as you can:
Application Number...................
Name of Licensee...................
Name of Premises (if applicable) Alexandra Palace Grounds
Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect)
Alexandra Palace Way, Wood Green, London
Postcode N22 7AY...............
Reason/s for representation
Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relevant it must be one that is
about the likely effect of the application on the promotion of the four licensing objactives.
Any representations that are considered to be vexatious or frivolous will not be considered
(please see Haringey Council's leaflet Varlations, Representations and Appeals
for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates).
Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each Licensing
Objective it relates to.




Page 284

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Piease see attached sheet

[ Public Safety

Please see attached sheet

The Prevention of Pubilc Nulsance .

Please see attached sheet

submitted is true and correct.

Signed:

Please send completed form to:

Haringey Council Licensing Team
Alexandra House,

Level 6,

10 Station Road,

Wood Green

London, N22 7TR

The Protection of Chiidren from Harm

please see attached sheet

1earby declare that all information | have

Date: 20 2, '7




Page 285

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

I am concerned that any restriction of parking north of Priory Road (such as is common for fireworks
events in the Palace) will adversely impact my ability to park in Park Avenue South. I use my car for
heavy shopping and find it difficult if I cannot park quite close to my home.

I would like to see a scheme whereby those living in Park Avenue South are issued with permits, to be
displayed on the windscreen of their vehicle, allowing them and only them access on event days.
Stewards are to ensure others cannot enter

Public Safety

1 h?ge that the extra policing required to ensure that a 50,000 crowd disperses quietly will be paid for
by the promoters. It would not, in my view, be a sensible V\g:r to spend ratepayers money especially
when so many other needs of our ratepayers are underfunded or cut. If the promoter will not pay, and
no police are to be provided out of the public purse, then the events should not go ahead. The public
must not suffer the noise and inconvenience of loud events in the park, and have to pay for policing

Prevention of Public Nuisance

1 can see the palace by direct line of sight from ;nrz house. I am concerned that events with a limit of
between 55and 75dBA at the boundary of the park will give rise to a Statutory Noise Nuisance as
defined in S79 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (as amended).

The Committee will be aware that regardless of any licensing conditions imposed bﬂeﬂaem, an{
Magistrate convinced that a Statutory Nuisance exists can require that the nuisance be abated. I note
that the number of event days proposed exceeds 40 and that this figure excludes events such as the
circus. The ng{se levels combined with the number of events make a Statutory Noise Nuisance, in my
view, inevitable

In order to pursue the prevention of Eublic nuisance (and given the large number of event days
requested by the a?plicants) 1 ask the Committee to consider a maximum of 10dB(A) over the
background noise level at the nearest noise sensitive premises or, failing that to adopt the
recommendation of the Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts for outdoor
events and insist on a maximum level of 15dB(A) over the background at the nearest noise sensitive
premises and limit the number of event days to 12.

I urge the committee to seek the advice of their Environmental Health Officers in determining the
extent to which they can achieve the prevention of Public Nuisance. Their officers will have
experience of complaints centred on noise from festivals at Finsbury Park. Their Environmental
Health Officers could confirm that a nuisance order, issued by a magistrates court, could restrict noise
leﬁggls and frequency of events. They can also confirm that breach of a nuisance order is a criminal
offence

S82 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 allows members of the public to summons parties to
court alleging Statutory Nuisance.

Protection of children from harm

Sufficient geaceﬁ.tl sleep is essential for a healthy child. If the committee are convinced that noise
levels of 75dB(A) will interfere with the sleep of infants, they will limit (either or both) the allowed
noise levels or the frequency of events accordingly.

75dB(A) is the fevel of conversation at close quarters, not the most conducive environment for getting
a child to sleep

I urge the committee to seck medical advice regarding the amount of sleep deprivation a child could,
or should, stand before they are harmed

Signed
' * 2o 5. 177




Page 286

LICENSING ACT 2003

Premises License Application by Alexandra Palace Trading Ltd for Alexandra
Palace and Park N22 7AY

RetEresentations of, . ) 'dated
24™ March 2017

Recommendation

| would strongly urge the Committee to reject this application on the grounds of
Prevention of Public nuisance.

| would urge that the Committee make clear to the Trading Company that any
application wouid only be approved subject to the conditions set out at the end of
these Representations

Clarification

The Committee is urged to clarify what exactly is included in this application. There are a
number of existing events which do impact on local residents in terms of high noise levels
sustained over long periods, for example the 25 Circus events, the 8 ‘Street Food and Beer'
events, the Foodie Festival etc.

If any of these are not included in the application (as has been suggested regarding the
circus) then the concerns set out below in terms of the nuisance arising from the proposed
42 events is all the more concerning (42 + 25 Circus events = 67 events).

There is also some confusion in the documentation over timing of events. The Supporting
Statement says in respect of noise (para 8.1): “No events will operate after 2230 Monday —
Saturday and 2200 on Sunday”.

However the Application itself says that Films will continue until 2330 Mon — Sat and 2300
Sunday.

The Committee is urged for clarity and to avoid late night disturbance to impose a consistent
schedule of hours. In any event there should be no audible noise at the closest residential
properties at all after 2230 Monday — Saturday and after 2200 on Sundays.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

3 events are proposed with attendance up to 50,000. These are described as events where
music is not the prime purpose.

Clarification is required whether this includes the fireworks events which this year was
spread over two days. On those events some local roads are closed and vehicle access
permits available to residents. All exits and entrances to the Park are fully stewarded.

Should the application be approved conditions should be imposed to ensure that this
continues in order to avoid traffic disturbance and violations and to control public nuisance.

4 music events are proposed with crowds up to 30,000. The attendance is far higher than
any events currently held at the Palace or Park other than the fireworks.



Page 287

Itis urged, should the application be appraved, that similar traffic controls be required for
such events and all entrances be fully stewarded in order to control potential disturbance
arising from people entering / leaving the Park.

Prevention of Public Nuisance
Maximum Noise Levels

The applicant proposes (para 8.1 of Supporting Statement) to hold 4 events per year with
maximum sound levels (as measured at the closest residential properties) of 75dB(A). This
is similar to Hyde Park which gave rise to large numbers of complaints. The applicant also
proposes § events at 65dB(A). The remaining 33 events would be allowed to 55dB(A).

These levels of noise will result in a public nuisance over a very wide area. A Noise Report
(by Vanguardia) was prepared for the Trading Company in support of the application {but not
publicly made available). ! would urge that this document be made available to the
Committee so that the full implications of the Trading Company's proposed noise levels can
be fully appreciated. { would also urge that Environmental Health officers provide members
with a full analysis of the Report together with recommendations.

This is because the Report demonstrates quite clearly that the Trading Company are
consciously trying to get the Committee to agree noise levels far in excess of the established
guidelines set out the Noise Council's Code of Practice on Environmental Noise at Concerts
— which are the standards properly imposed by this Committee on events in Finsbury Park.

The Noise Council's Code of Practice on Environmental Noise at Concerts establishes that
the impact of noise is relative to the number of events held and the existing background
noise level.

The Vanguardia Report establishes that the background noise levels around Alexandra Park
(para 6.2) are in no way comparable to Hyde Park or even Finsbury Park. The background
noise levels for monitoring purposes (LAF90) around the Park varies from 38dB(A) (at North
View Road) to 42dB(A) (at Newlands Road). The general background noise level is thus
around 40dB(A).

Whilst it provides details of a wide range of other noisy music events / festivals the Report
notably makes no reference to the most immediate comparator which is Finsbury Park.

This Committee has imposed maximum noise levels for Finsbury Park concerts which
accord with the Noise Council's Code of Practice on Environmental Noise at Concerts (see.
http:/lwww.harinqev.qov.uk/libraries-sm_ort-and-leisure/parks-and-open-spaces/z-parks-and--
open-spaces/finsburv-park/events-finsbuw-parklnmse-monitorrnq-events—parks).

This recommends that where there are more than 3 events a year (up to 12) the appropriate
maximum noise level for all events should be no more than 15dB(A) above the background
noise level. In the case of Alexandra Park this would therefore be around 55dB(A) (ie
40dB(A) + 15dB(A)).

As was highlighted above The Trading Company is seeking at least that level of noise for all
42 events and, in the case of the bigger events, to considerably exceed that — up to 75dB(A).
It should be bomne in mind that it is generally acknowledged that each extra 10dB(A)
represents a doubling of sound.

In reality the Trading Company are proposing that every one of 42 events would equal or far
exceed the limits.set by this committee for far fewer events at Finsbury Park.



Page 288

The reason for this is again set out in the Noise report (but not mentioned in the application).
The Report says quite explicitly that if the noise limits imposed at Finsbury Park was adopted
“only small scale events or events with low level background music...would be viable at the
majority of locations (within the Park)” (para 6.5)

On the contrary, adopting a far less stringent standard than Finsbury Park, allowing much
higher noise levels would be consistent with “a mixing desk level of 100dB(A) required for
popular music acts”. This may be commercially attractive to the Trading Company but it
would result in widespread nuisance and complaints.

Noise is a legitimate Licensing concemn because the Licensing Committee are charged with
preventing public nuisance and a public nuisance is included ( along with private nuisance
and matters prejudicial to health) in the legal definition of a statutory nuisance.

This application states quite openly that the Trading Company intend to stage up to 42
events a year at noise levels which equal or substantially exceed those imposed by this
Committee at Finsbury Park for far fewer events. Both individually (at 65 -75dB(A)) and
cumulatively, with such a substantial number of events, a Statutory Nuisance is inevitable.

The Committee should absolutely not be condoning or encouraging a statutory nuisance by
imposing no conditions or conditions so weak as to make the licensed activity readily
capable of causing a statutory nuisance.

It should be noted that the Noise Council's Code of Practice acknowledges that even if the
+15dB(A) standard is adopted “full compliance may not eliminate all complaints”. In other
words it will still be very noisy, over considerable periods and will be disturbing for some

people. It is not 2 ‘soft’ option.

L.ower Frequency Noise

The Noise Council's Code of Practice on Environmental Noise at Concerts states:
“Assessment of noise in terms of dB(A) can be very convenient but it can underestimate the
intrusiveness of low frequency noise. Furthermore low frequency noise can be very
noticeable indoors. Thus even if the dB(A) guideline is being met, unreasonable disturbance
may be occurring. With certain types of events, therefore, it may be necessary to set an
additional! criterion in terms of low frequency noise, or apply additional control mechanisms.”

The Code states “a level of 70db in either of the 63 Hz or 125 Hz octave frequency bands is
satisfactory. A level of 80db or more in either of these bands causes significant disturbance.

This has been a problem with many events in the park, notably the Circus and the Music
before and after the Fireworks.

Council officers have advised that “We have never included low frequency conditions partly
due to the difficulty in monitoring and enforcement”.

| can advise the Committee that the Trading Company's sound advisors (Vanguardia) can
and do measure low frequency levels (at 63hz and 125hz) and do take action when these
peak at unacceptable levels (see individual event Sound Management Reports available
from the Trading Company).

For example the Noise Monitoring Report for the Circus (by Aria Acoustics) dated 12" Oct
2016) states that “for a series of events consisting of 2 performances over a continuous 13
day period selecting Leaq 5 minutes 75db - the mid-point between these levels - is considered
the appropriate sound level for the Circus. Aria took action with the Circus when these bass
levels were exceeded



Page 289

The Committee is urged, therefore, to impose appropriate conditions on low frequency noise
in alignment with the Noise Council's Code of Practice on Environmental Noise at Concerts.

Music and Non Music Events

The application makes a distinction between these but in practice, in noise terms, there may
be little difference.

The ‘Fireworks’ this year, aver 2 days, had extremely loud music many hours before and
after the fireworks themselves. The Noise Report (by Aria Acaustics) shows that these noise
levels far exceeded the +15dB(A) standard and the Low Frequency Noise standards set out
above and led to a number of complaints by residents..

The ‘Red Bull' Soapbox events involve hysterical ear-splitting commentary audible over a far
wider area than the event.

Protection of children from harm

| would urge the Committee to take advice on the impact of the considerable number of
events at the levels sought by the Trading Company on the likely interference with sleep of
infants and the subsequent impact upon their health.

Recommendations

| would strongly urge the Committee to reject this application on the grounds of
Public nuisance,

I would urge that the Committee make clear to the Trading Company that any
application would only be approved subject to the following conditions:

1 For the 7 proposed events between 15,000 and 50,000 local roads are closed and vehicle
access permits available to residents as for last year's fireworks. All exits and entrances to
the Park to be fully stewarded.

2 If the applicant is minded to limit the number of events to up to 12 a year, the Committee
will adopt the recommendation of the Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at
Concerts for outdoor events and will impose the same conditions as at Finsbury Park
ensuring a maximum level of 15dB(A) over the background noise level at the nearest noise
sensitive premises for each event, whether music or non-music,

3 If the applicant is minded to continue to apply for far more events than at Finsbury Park,
given the cumulative noise impacts, the Committee will to impose a maximum of 10dB(A)
over the background noise level at the nearest noise sensitive premises for the first 12
events, whether music or non-music, and 5dB(A) for any further events.

4 In order to pursue the prevention of public nuisance the Committee will impose conditions
limiting the level of lower frequency noise to no more than 75 Leaq 5 minutes in either of the 63
Hz or 125 Hz octave frequency bands at the nearest noise sensitive premises.

5 In order to avoid late night disturbance the Committee will impose conditions such that
noise from events shall not be audible with any noise sensitive premises between the hours
of 2230 and 0900 the following morning Monday to Saturday and 2200 and 0900 the
following moming on Sunday.



Page 290

APPENDIX C2 ~ ‘OTHER PARTIES’ IN SUPPORT OF
APPLICATION



Page 291

Anderson Chanel

From: Barrett Daliah on behalf of Licensing

Sent: 20 March 2017 09:20

To: Anderscon Chanel _

Subject: FW: Alexandra Palace licensing application
Valid rep

Daliah Barrett
Licensing Team Leader

Haringey

LONDON

PE

Haringey Council
6th Floor,10 Station Road, London, N22 7TR

T. 020 8489 8232
M. 07870 154 126
daliah.barr ringey.qov.u

www . haringey.gov.uk.
twitter@haringeycouncil

facebook.com/haringeycouncit

Please consider the environment before printing this email.

From:

Sent: 15 March 2017 13:56

To: Licensing

Subject: Alexandra Palace licensing application

Hi

I'understand a license application had been made by Alexandra Palace to hold
cvents in the Park alongside those that already take place like the spectacular
annual fireworks display. I would just like to lend my wholchearted support to
such an application.

The area can only benefit from the type of events the Palace intend to hold - apparently
similar to the Open Air Theatre in Regents Park and the concerts in Kenwood., Their
assurances that the area would not be used for any large scale rock festivals puts nty mind at
case,

[ have lived in the area for nearly 35 years and have witnessed a metamorphosis at Alexandra
Palace - from a rarcly used, partly dilapidated relic into a crucial and thriving arts, cultural
and hohbices centre that has enhanced this unique site in the heart of London. | also understand
that monies provided from the new events will be used 1o help finance the continual
redevelopment of this wonderful area.



5 Page 292
F'would urge the council to grant this ticense and let the Palace continuc on its impressive

journey. To borrow a well worn Shakespearcan phrase, "Be not aleard. The isle is full of
noiscs, sounds and sweet airs that give deli ght and hurt not.”

Kind Regards

-

Sent from my iPhone



Page 293

Anderson Chanel

From: :

Sent: 22 March 2017 14:48

To: Licensing

Subject: Alexandra Palace premises licence

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:
I am a resident of Muswell Hill and I live very near to Alexandra Palace in Muswell Road.

I understand that an application has been made to increase the number and type of events
at the Palace and I would like to lend my support to this.

As near neighbours of the location, we and our family make great use of the place and its
facilities.

Of course, we don't attend every event held there, but we appreciate what a good job they
do in keeping local residents informed about them and any possible disturbance, as
recently happened with a night film shoot.

We are never troubled by any noise disturbance or parking problems on event days and we
don’t expect to be in the future either. In addition, the proposed range of new events
including a theatre run and open air concerts would definitely interest us.

Also, more events at the Palace will hopefully bring in more revenue and help maintain
this historic building and make for an even better facility both in the immediate future
and for generations to come.

I would therefore be obliged if you could register my support for the premises licence
during this consultation period.

Yours sincerely,



Page 294

Anderson Chanel

From: .

Sent: 22 March 2017 15:49

To: Licensing

Subject: Alexandra Palace Grounds,Alexandra Palace Way, Wood Green, London N22 7AY.

The Haringey Business Alliance has considered the licensing application in regard to the Alexandra Palace Grounds.
The HBA wishes to record its unconditional support and we hope the Licensing Committee will grant approval,
We take the view that it can only lead to a greater use of the wonderful asset that is Alexandra Palace and its fine
surrounding parklands.
Yours faithfully,

-BE, MSc, AfS, FRSA, FCIPD,
Chairman: Haringey Business Alliance.



Page 295

Anderson Chane|

From: e 0y e e

Sent: 22 March 2017 15:29

To: Licensing

Subject: Alexandra Palace Grounds,Alexandra Palace Way, Wood Green, London N22 7AY,Ward -
Alexandra, Regulated Entertainment: Plays, Films, Boxing or Wrestling Entertainments,
Live Music, Recorded Music, Performance of Dance, Provision of Facilities for M

Categories: Purple Category

This is to confirm that the staff and management of FEAST in Muswell Hill are fully in support of the Alexandra Palace
Grounds licensing application.

We take the view that this application, if successful, will attract visitors to the area and that will bring a real benefit
to local businesses as well as the community.

We wish the Ally Pally team well with this exciting venture,

IRl

Sent from Mail for Windows 10



Page 296

Anderson Chanel

From: .

Sent: 22 March 2017 15:42

To: Licensing

Subiject: Alexandra Palace Grounds, Licensing Application, Alexandra PalaceWay, Wood Green,
London N22 7AY

The supports this application.

We are of the opinion it will lead to an increase of visitors to Alexandra Palace which should be of an overall benefit
to the businesses adjoin the park grounds.



Page 297

Anderson Chanel

From: i -
Sent: 22 March 2017 19:28

To: Licensing
Subiject: support of the Alexandra Palace Grounds licensing application

Dear Haringey Licensing team

Im writing to you with full support of the Alexandra Palace Grounds licensing application on behalf

of BonaFideStudio In Muswell Hill.
We take the view that this application, if successful, will attract more visitors to the area and that

will bring a real benefit to the local economy.
This exciting venture and we know that Alexandra Palace Team will make it a success.

Regards

Y



Page 298

Anderson Chanel

From:

Sent: 23 March 2017 14:10
To: Licensing
Subject: Alexandra Palace Grounds

Dear Haringey Licensing Team,

We are writing to you with full support of the Alexandra Palace Park Grounds licensing application. We are
a community group in Muswell Hill and put on events such as MidSummer Muswell and A Very Merry
Muswell.

We take the view that this application, if successful, will attract more visitors to the area and that will bring a
real benefit to the local economy.

This is a really exciting venture and we know that the Alexandra Palace team will make this a huge success.

Best wishes,

T

On behalf of the ] .



Page 299

Anderson Chanel
-

From: . .
Sent: 23 March 2017 09:59
To: Licensing

Subject: Alexandra Park

Dear Haringey Council,

I am aware that a license application has been submitted for the park area of Alexandra Palace in order that it
can continue to organize outdoor events.

Ali Pali (The Peoples Palace) provides a centre and a hub of many great events for our local community and
enriches our culture in the area. It is important that these things continue — providing times for people to
gather together for a number of reasons, Ali Pali is also going through somewhat of a revival, adding to the
richness of London life and encouraging people in the area to visit and attracting others from further afield,
bringing business to Haringey, improving transport links and enriching all of our lives.

I hope that the application will go through, continuing the success story of Ali Pali.

Yours sincerely
&

Best wishes

If you would like notification of future exhibitions, events and releases:
hitp://www.stephenwalter.co.uk/artist/contact




Page 300

Anderson Chanei

From: - p .

Sent: 23 March 2017 10:36

To: Licensing

Subject: Ref: Alexandra Palace Grounds
Dear Sir/Madam,

We write on behalf of the Harringay GL Traders Association, representing approx 200 businesses since
1988.

We write in support of the above license application. Ally Pally is a key landmark for the borough, and a
favoured destination for major events throughout the year. This license will enable the new management to
facilitate more varied and year round programme of events which is a fresh approach for the Palace.

As the Trader group for Harringay, we have given support for the Wireless festival at Finsbury park because

of it's musical heritage and Ally Pally is a fantastic heritage site and should be given the opportunity to
become another local success.

With regards,

go37-

w: -
twitter:

Est. Since 1988

Winners of Haringey's Safer Communities Awards 2006 & 2010

Winner for Most Improved Street, Haringey in Bloom 2015

Organisers of the Harringay Green Lanes Food Festival & Harringay Christmas Event.
Publisher of 'Special Edition' Green Lanes Magazine.

Memober of the Haringey Business Alliance.



Page 301

Anderson Chanel

From: . = :
Sent: 23 March 2017 15:54

To: Licensing

Subject: Alexandra Park Premises Licence Application

To whom it may concern,

I write to you in regard of the licencing application made by Alexandra Palace.
| fully support the application made by the Alexandra Palace Grounds.

Alexandra palace has the potential to be at the very centre of Haringey's social scene, with it’s beautiful views and
stunning architecture ~ the hardest part of creating an admirable venue has already been achieved. Allowing the
Paiace to hold a variety of open events, without the need to apply for a licence in each instance will not doubt boost
the frequency and interest of these events, and as a local business we would support this motion.

Furthermore as someone who has lived in Crouch End my entire life, | too would support this application.

If my experience or opinions can add to this matter in any way, please do not hesitate to get in touch on either of the
two numbers below.

Best wishes,

2DUNN’S
4k BAKERY

rrtisan Craft Babers Since 1520

To see what we've been up to recently, check out:

You can even head over to our

L L L]



Page 302

Anderson Chanel
L
From: N
Sent: 24 March 2017 13:23
To: Licensing
Subject: Alexandra Palace license application

To whom it may concern
I am writing in support of Alexandra Palaces application for a permanent license.

As a local resident of many years, some of my happiest memories are of the Capital Radio
Jazz festival in the grounds of Alexandra Palace both before the 1986 fire and afterwards.
It was a privilege to be able to walk up to the Palace and see world class performances
outside on a warm summers day.

I am a supporter of the East Wing regeneration project and believe that the Palace needs
to increase its entertainment offering to both local residents and visiters from further
afield if it is to be sustainable in the future. Therefore I am supporting the application
for a permanent license and believe the management and trustees will plan events in the
park in consultation with local residents when appropriate and take into account any
concerns that may arise.

Yours faithfully



Page 303

Anderson Chanel

From: .

Sent: 22 March 2017 14:48

To: Licensing

Subject: Alexandra Palace premises licence

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:
I am a resident of Muswell Hill and I live very near to Alexandra Palace in Muswell Road.

I understand that an application has been made to increase the number and type of events
at the Palace and I would like to lend my support to this.

As near neighbours of the location, we and our family make great use of the place and its
facilities,

Of course, we don't attend every event held there, but we appreciate what a good job they
do in keeping local residents informed about them and any possible disturbance, as
recently happened with a night film shoot.

We are never troubled by any noise disturbance or parking problems on event days and we
don’t expect to be in the future either. In addition, the proposed range of new events
including a theatre run and open air concerts would definitely interest us.

Also, more events at the Palace will hopefully bring in more revenue and help maintain
this historic building and make for an even better facility both in the immediate future
and for generations to come.

I would therefore be obliged if you could register my support for the premises licence
during this consultation period.

Yours sincerely,



Page 304

APPENDIX D - CODE OF PRACTICE ON
ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE CONTROL AT CONCERTS



Page 305

Code of Practice on |
Environmental Noise Control gt Conceris

THE NOISE COUNCIL



Page 306

CONTENTS

1.0 Introduction

2.0 Definitions

3.0 Gnuidelines

4.0 Recommended Noise Conirol Procedure

Planning

Before the Event

- During the Event

Appendix I References

Appendix I Noise Council Working Party

Appendix I1I

Examples of Licensing Conditions

PAGE

10

10

11

11

13

14

15



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Page 307

INTRODUCTION

Large music events involving high powered amplification are held in sporting
stadia, arenas, -Open air sites and withio lightweight buildings. These events give
pleasure to hundreds and in some cases thousands of people. However, the music
from these events can camse disturbance to those living in the vicinity. The
purpose of this code is to give gnidance on how such disturbance or annoyance
can be minimised.

This Code of Practice has been prepared by the Noise Council through a Working
Party comprising specialists who are experienced in the particular problems that
can arise with environmental noise control at concerts and similar music events.
A list of members of the working party is shown in Appendix II and a list of
technical papers providing some background data and more detailed information
is given in Appendix I.

Various guidelines and criteria are described in this document covering a range
of events from the single occasional concert to a full season. It is believed that
compliance with the geidelines and the other advice given here will enable
successful concerts to be held whilst keeping to a minimum the disturbance caused
by noise. It is recognised, though, that full compliance with this code may not

eliminate all complaints, and local factors may affect the likelihood of complaints.

This Code is not designed to address the question of environmental noise arising
from discotheques, clubs and public houses, nor environmcnta] noise affecting

noise sensitive premises which are structurally attached to the venue.



1.5

1.6

il
~

Page 308

This Code is designed to assist those planning a music event, those responsjble
for licensing such events and those responsible for enforcing the muisance
provisions of the Environmental Protection Act 1950 (Engla_n_d and W;les) and the
Control of Pollution Act 1574 (Scoﬂandj. It addresses the environmental problem
of noise from the performance and sound checks only. Other environmental
impacts of concerts and the question of meeting the requirements of the Noise at
Work Regulations 1989 and the gu:dance given in the Health and Safety
Executive’s Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at Pop Concerts and similar
events are beyond the scope of this document.

- Compliance with this Code of Practice does not of jtself confer immunity from

. legal obligations,

The Noise Council is keen to receive acconnts of the practical application of the

Code in order to improve and enhance its content.



2.0:

DEFINITIONS

Background
Noise Level:

dB(A):

Delay Tower:

Laeg:

LA!K].T:

Mixer;

Page 309

The prevailing sound level at a location, measured in
terms of the L.req,y, O an equivalent day and at an equivalent
time when no concert or sound checks are taking place.

‘The A-weighted ‘sound pressure leve] whereby varions

frequency components of sound are weighted (equalised) to
reflect the way the human ear responds to different

frequencies.

An additional set of loudspeakers employed to provide a

‘better spread of sound to the audience.

The equivalent comtimious noise level which at a given
location and over a given period of time contains the same A-
weighted sound energy as the actual fluctating noise at the
same location over the same period.

The A-weighted sound pressure Jevel exceeded for 90% of
the measuring period (T).

The location where the main sound system is controlleél. As
well as ensuring the correct sound balance between the
various performers, the overall level of sound for the

audience is controlled at this location.



Music Event:

Music- Noise: -

+ Music Noise

. Level (MNL):

Noise
Consultant:

+

Noise .
Monitoring

Position:

Noise-sensitive: .

Premises:

Other Urban

Venue:

Page 310

A concert or similar event where live .or recorded music is

performed by a solo or group of artists before an audience,

A 0
y -
H i

The noise from the mmsic and vocals during a concert or

. sound checks and not affected by other local noise sources.

The L, of the, TRusic nojse measured at a particular location.

A person given responsibility by the organiser of the event

for momitoring noise levels in accordance with the prevailing
conditions, and,who-has the ability and authority to make
decisions and implement changes in noise level during the

event,

. The location of the microphone within the venue from which

the level of sound is monitared and controlled. For outdoor

venues, this location tends to be at the mixer.

Includes premises used for residential purposes haspitals or
similar institutons, .edncation establishments (when in use),
ar places of worship (during recognised times and days of
worship) or any premises used for any other purposes likely
to be affected by the Music Noise.

An urban park or similar area which is not normally used for

major organised events,



Rural Vepue:

** Sound

Engineer:

Urban Stadia

or Arenas:

Page 311

A park, open space or grounds of a country house in a rural
area not normally used for major organised events,

Person employed to control the sound quality

of the music for the audience.

A regular veme for major sporting or similar
events in an urban area.



3.0

3.1

Page 312

GUIDELINES ' o,

The Music Noise Levels (MNL) when assessed at the prediction stage or
measuied during sound.checks or concerts should not exceed the guidelines shown
in Table 1 at 1 metre from the:fagade of any neise sensitive premiises for events
held between the hours of 0900 and 2300,

! ' . i L

TABLE 1
Concert days per Yenue Guideline
cnleminr vear, Category
per venue
lw3i Urban Siadia or The MNL should not exceed 73dB({A)
Arenas over a 15 minute period
lio3 Other Urban and The MNL shouid not exceed 65dB{A)
Rural Venues over a 15 minute period
41012 All Venues The MNL should aot exceed the
background noise level' by more than
15dB(A) over a 15 minue period

Noles 1o Table 1

1. The vahiz used showld be the arithmeric avempe of the hourly L,,, mensured over the Iast {our hours
of the praposed music zvent or over the entire period af the proposed music event if schaduied to last
far Yess than four hours, .

1. ‘There are many other issues which affect the accepmbility of prnpﬁsuf concerts. This code §s designed

to address the envifonmenml noise issue alonz.

3 In locavions where jndividuals may be affected by more than gne venue, the impacr of nll the events
should be considered.
4, Far those venues where more than three events per calendar year are expected, the frequency and

scheduling of the events will affect the leve! of disurbance. 1n particular, additionnl distarbance can

arise If events occur on more than thrze coniszcutive dnys withont o reduction in the permined MNL.

5. For indoor venues used for up o about 30 evepts per calendar yenr an MNL pot exceeding the
_bnckgmund noise by more thon 5dB{A) over n fificen minule periad is recommendad for events finishing

na tater than 2300 hours,



3.2

3.3

3.4

Page 313

6. Account should be tiken of the noise impnct of oiker evens ar a venue. It may bt approprisie o reduce
the permitted noisc from a concen if the other BYENIS AT NOjsy.

7. For verues where just onz even has been held on nne day in Bny ane year, it has heen found possible
10 ndopr a highar limit vahie without ctausing un unaccaptable leve) of disrurbance.

For events continuing or held between the hours 2300 and 0900 the music
noise should not be audible within noise-sensitive p;-errfises with windows
Open in a typical manner for ventilation,

Notes fo Guideline 3.2

1. The use of inaudibility os o guidefine iz not unjversaily occepied as an sppropriste method of comrol.
References 6 & 7 (Appendix 1) sat oul the various jssues. This guideling is proposed as there Is
insufficient l;vidam:e Svailable to give more precise guidance,

(%]

Control can be exarcised in this sirsation by limiting the music noise 50 that it is just audibie ouside
the noise sensitive premises. When the is achieved it can be assumed that the music noise is not
oudible inside the noise sensitive premises,

The nature of music events means that these guidelines are best used in the
serting of limits prior to the event (see 4.0),

Assessment of noise in terrﬁs of dB(A) is very convenient but it can
underestimate the intrusiveness of low frequency noise. Furthermore, low
frequency noise can be very noticeable indoors. Thus, even ii’ the dB(A)
guideline is being met, unreasonable disturbance may be occurring because
of the low frequency noise. With certajn types of events, therefore, it may
be necessary to set an additional criterion in terms of low frequchéy noise,

or apply additional control conditions.

Notes in Guideline 3.4
I, - 3 has been found that 5t is the frequency imbalance which causes disnurbance, Consequently there is
less of u problem from the Jow frequency contamt of the music noise near 1o an open air venue than

further away.



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Page 314

1. ~Although no precise guidance is avaitahle the following may be found helpful (Ref B):
A level up 1o 7048 in either of the 63Hz or 125Hz actave frequency band is sotisfaccory: o level of

80dB or mom: in either of those pcaave frequency bands causes significant disuriance.

Complaints may occur simply because people some distance from the event
can hear it and that, consequently, they feel the music must be loud even
though the guidelines are being met. In fact topographical and climatic
conditions can be such ‘that the MNL is _lower.at locations nearer to the

VEMnue.

Althongh care has been taken to meke these guidelines compatible with what

occurs at existing venues, this may not be the case at every location. Where

‘amrangements are satisfactory with either higher or lower noise levels than

those contained in the. guidelines, these limits should continue.

1t has been found that if there has been good public relations at the planning
stage between the event organisers and those living nearby, annoyance can

be kept to a minimum.

The music noise level should be measured using an integrating-averaging

sound level meter complying with type 2 or better of BS6698, The

' background noise level should be measured usihg a sound level meter

complying with type 2 or betier of BS5569. Time weighting F (fast
response) should be used. .

When measuring L, in order to determine the music noise level, care must

be taken to avoid local noise sources influencing the result. When the local

. noise is intermittent, a series of short term L,., measurements should be

" made -of the -music noise while"thé local Source is absent or ‘has subsided to

typically low or mean minimum values. An averagé of these short term

8



3.10

3.11

3.12

Page 315

readings will give an.estimate of the music noise leyel: A further option
would be to measure the A-weighted sound pressure level on a sound leve]
meter complying with type 2 or betier of BS5969 with the time weighting set
10 S (slow response) when the music is loudest and not influenced by local
noise, If the local source is continuous, make a Mmeasurement of the L, of
the local source when the music is Dot occurring,. and make a carrection to
the measnred L,.q wWhen the music is occurring to obtain an estimate of the

music noise level,

The nature of many concerts requires the Sound volume leve] t be increased
during the event to enhance the performance. The Prevailing noise conirol
restrictions should be borne in mind so that the sound volume at the start of
the event is not too high, hence allowing scope for an increase during the

event.

Some concerts are accompanied by associated activities (e.g. f‘airgrounds)

which can be noisy. These should be taken into account when setting the
limit for the music noise level.

When monitoring the music noise level, the sound of the andience applause
tan be a significant contributor. It is not possible to address this issne
precisely; instead it is recommended that any such effect be noted.



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Page 316

RECOMMENDED-NOISE CONTROL PROCEDURE:

This procedure has been developed over several iyears and found to provide
an effective means of addressing the problem of environmental noise control
at events. The maid features of the procedure are set out below and
references are made to various technical papers which give more details.

El

Planning

Determine the sound propagation characteristics between the proposed venue
and those living nearby who inightbe affected by noise, and carry out an
appropriate backg%ound’nuise survey. - This should -be undertaken by a
competent person who i experienced in noise propagation .and control,

particularly from music events.

Check the viability of the event against the.relevant guideline levels. This
is achieved By determining from 4.2 above the sound level experiericed by
the audience which wéuld allow the gnidelines to be met. Research shows
that the music noise level in the andience by the mixer position at'pop
concerts is typically 100dB(A), and that levels below 95dB(A) will be "
unlikely to provide satisfactory entertainment for the audience.

Prospective licensees should give the local authority as much notice as

possible of the propased event especizlly if more than one event is planned

during a calendar year.

10



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

]feforé the Event

Page 317

The local authority should make -use of licensing conditions and statutory
powers to implement the procedures described in this Code of Practice.
Examples of possible conditions are given in Appendix IIT.

The Noise Consultant should be appointed.

te . 1] 2

' ' : ¥ ¥ ¥ : A
Install the loudspeaker system early enough to enable alignment and
5 1. ] - . . y b
orientation to be aptimised to minimise noise disturbance.

Car.ry out a sound test ﬁrior to each event to ésce_rtaiﬁ the maximum leve]
that can prevail at the ‘monitoring position to enable the gﬁidelinés 10 be met.
This éff;:ctivély calibmtés the system, taking into account as far as possible

Prevailing weather conditions, and, for indoor events, the sound insulation

of the venue,

Noles o Guideline 4.8

1. It should be remembered that the Intoddction of an mudience 10 a vénur increnses the acoustic
shsorption present. This hes the effect of reducing the sound Jevel in the venue for 2 given amplifier
setting compared with the soumd lest. ‘Thiz shauld be bome in mind when seniing the Jimix Jevels.

During the Event

Advertise and operate an attended complaint telephone number through
which noise complaints can be chanpelled. This will enable an immediate
response to the complaints to be given and the Noise Consultant to judge

whether .or not any adjustment to the music nojse level is needed,

Establish a communication network between all those invalved in noise

11



4.11

4.12

Page 318

. control. ‘This should include the local police authority.

Nole io Guideline 4.70 -

1 Ttis difficult 1o communicate effectively in noisy environments, especially in the vicinity of the mixer,
it has been found belpful for those involved in the communicarion netwotk to use head-sets with their
rwa way radio systems.

Carry out noise monitoring within the venue at the noise monitoring position

and at saraple locations ontside the venue throughout the event, If the event

_ is employing one or more dclay towers, additional noise monitoring may be

needed inside the venue to control the smmd output from them.

Although the limit value set at 4.8 above would be in terms of 15 minute
Loy, useful comtrol can be exercised hy monitoring the L,,, 0ver one mimte
periods. This enables an early warning o be obtained of possible breaches
in the 15 mnmtc limit. It is sometimes appropri;te to set an additional
control Jimnit in terms of the one mimute L., (typically some 2-3dB(A) above
the 15 minute value) and to use a leve] recorder display to as'ssist the sound
epgineer in checking compliance with the limit. The Noise Consultant

should advise the sound engineer of any breaches in the prescribed noise

' limit, to eneble a reduction in level as appropriate. The sound engineer

should also be advised of occasions when the limit has only just been met.

12



Page 319

APPENDIX 1

References
- l . : [ I
1. Noise Control Techniques and Guidelines for Open Air Concerts,
L.E.T. Griffiths (ProcIOA, Vol.7, Part 3, 1985).

2. A" Noise Control Procedure for Open Air Pop Concerts, J.E.T. Griffiths,
S.W. Turner and A.D. Wallis (ProcIOA, Vol 8, Part 4, 1986).

3. Noise Control in the Built. Environment, edited by John Roberts and
Diane Fairhall, Gower Technical, 1988 (Chapters 1, 2 and 3).

4. -~ Environmental Noise Guidelines proposed for the new Health & Safety
Execntive Guide for Pop Concerts,.].E.T. 'Griffiths and A. Dove (ProcIQA,
Vol 14, Part 5, 1992).

5. A Survey of Sound Levels at Pop Concerts, J.E.T. Griffiths (HSE Contract
Research Report No 35/1991). - X :

6. Inaudibility - an Established Criterion, A.W.M, Somerville (ProcIOA, Vol
13, Part 8, 1991). '

7 Noise Control at All-night Acid House Raves, K. Dibble (ProcIOA, Vol 13,

Part 8, 1991).
8. A study of Low Frequency Sound from Pop Concerts, J.E.T. Griffiths,

J. Staunton and S. Kamath (ProcIOA, Vol 15, Part 7, 1993)

13



Page 320

APPENDIX 1I

Noise Conncil Working Party Membership

" SW. Turner* Technical Director, TBV Science

A. Somerville* Departraent of Envilronmcntal Health, City of Edinburgh
District Council :

AD. Wallis* FZirrus Research Limited

J. Bickerdike Leeds Polytechnic

K. Dibble . Ken Dibble Acoustics

1E.T. Griffiths Director, Travers Morgan Environment

S.S. Kamath : Director, Pollution & Scientific, London Borough of
Brent. .

J. Sargent Building Research Establishment

J. Staunton Associate, Travers Morgan Environment

* Full members of the Noise Council

14




it Tl it

kel TR

R e

1.0

2.0

3.0

Page 321

APPENDIX I

Sample Conditions Concerning
Environmental Noise Control at Concerts

The licensee shall appoint a suitably qualified and experienced noise control
consultant*, to the approval of the Licensing Authority, no later
thaq.............ooeee.. . weeks prior to the evemt. The noise - control .
consultant* shall liaise between al) parties including the Licensee, Promoter,
sound system supplier, sonnd engineer and the licensing authority etc. on all
matters relating to noise control prior to and during the event.

If not already carried out, the noise control consultant* shall carry out a
survey to determine the background noise levels (as defined by the Code of
Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts) at......................
locations around the venue representative of the noise sensitive premises
likely to experience the largest increase in noise/highest noise level* as a
result of the concert. The information abtained from this survey shall be
made available to the licensing authority

to the eveni,

A noise propagation test shall be undertaken at least........,......... ..
hours prior to the start of the event in order to set appropriate control limits
at the sound mixer position. The sound system shall be configured and
operated in a similar manner as intended for the event. The sound source
used for the test shall be similar. in character to the music likely to be

produced during the event.

15



4.0

3.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

Page 322

The control limits set at the mixer position shall be adequate to ensure that
Music Noise Level (MNL) shall not at any noise sensitive premises
exceed............. dB(A) over a 15 minute period/the background noise level
by more than ............... dB(A) over & 15 minute period* throughout the

duration of the concert.

The control limits set at the mixer position shall be adeguate to ensure that
the MINL shall not at any noise sensitive premises exceed................ dB(A)
over a 15 minute period/the background noise level by more than

................ dB(A) over a 15 minute period* throughout any rehearsat or

" sound check for t]ie event.

- The Licensee shall ensure that the promoter, sonnd system supplier and all

individnal sound epgineers are informed of -the sound contro! limits and that
any instructions from the noise control consultant® regarding noise levels

shall be implementad.

The appointed noise control consultant* shall contimmally monitor noise

levels at the sound mixer position and advise the sound engineer accordingly

to ensure that the noise limits are not exceeded. The Licensing Authority

shall have access to the result of the noise monitoring at any time,

Rehearsals and ‘sound checks ‘are permitted only between the following

hours:

16



9.0

Note:

Page 323

Music from the event is permitted oniy between the following hours:

Suitable noise conditions should also be considered with respect to
minimising noise exposure to the audience and people working at the event
as advised in the HSE document "Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at
Pop Concerts and Similar Events".

*delete as appropriate. *1.e. the Noise Consultant

17



Page 324

THE NOISE COUNCIL

The Noise Council was established by a group of professiona] bodies concerned with

Problems relating to noise and vibration in the cormmunity and industrial eavironments. Its

aims and objectives are to promote and respond to issues relating to noise and vibration, and

to make independent technical and scientific expertise available to international and national -
agencies, central and local government, commerce and industry,

The Founding Bodies are:

° The Chartered Institute of Environmental Health

® The Institute of Acoustics

? The Royal Environmental Health Institute of Scotland
° The Institute of Occupational Safety & Health

© 1995
The Noise Council, Chadwick Court, 15 Hatfields, London SE} 8DJ
ISBN 0 900103 51 5 Tel: 0171 928 6006 Fax: 0171 928 6953



Page 325

APPENDIX E - BRIEFING NOTE ON RESEARCH INTO

ATTITUDES TO ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE FROM
CONCERTS.



Page 326

In September 2011 a report “Research into Attitudes to Environmental Noise from
Concerts was published which had been sponsored by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs [DEFRA].

It was a social study of attitudes to music noise of those residing in the vicinity and
those attending such events.,

The report references the UK Noise Council Code of Practice on Environmental
Noise at Concerts {1995) which they note has been widely adopted and utilised by
local authorities and concert promoters and has provided a framework to achieve a
workable balance between the local authorities’ obligation to protect noise sensitive
premises, and the local authorities’ obligation to facilitate and licence public
entertainment events

The report referred to events as outlined in the table below which had sound limits

of between 65dB and 75dB i.e. which did not have a 15dB above background level
guideline Music Noise Level [MNL]

Table 1: Code of Practice. Event Classification

Guideline
Event Venue Category MNL
Laeqt

12/5/2010 Green Day. LCCC. Manchester Urban Stadia 75dB
26/6/2010 Pink. Hampden Park. Glasgo Urban Stadia 75dB
24/6/2010 Pink. Ricoh Arena, Coventry Urban Stadia 75dB
7/8/2010 Pride. Preston Park, Brighton Other Urban 65 dB
12/9/2010 He!p for Heroes. Twickenham. London Urban Stadia 75 dB
11/9/2010 Proms, Singleton Park. Swansea ther Urban 65 dB
30&31/5/2010 Evolution, Baltic Sq. Necastle Other Urban 65 dB
19/6/2010 Green Day. Wembley Stadium. London Urban Stadia 75 dB
31/7/2010 Mowtown, Kenwood House. London Other Urban 65dB
1252010 KISS, Wembley Arena. London Indoor venue NA

The report (see table below) highlights that between 25% and 69% of respondents
could not hear the music and that between 31% and 70% of those who could hear
the music expressed an opinion on subjective annoyance.



Page 327

Table 2: Q17 Music Audibility Response Rate

% of respondents who % of respondents Total
Event could hear music and stating music number of
expressed an opinion on inaudibte / not respondents
subjective annoyance heard
Green Day. Manchester 75 25 174
Pink. Glasgow 80 40 181
Pink. Coventry 47 53 220
Pnde. Brighton 70 30 125
Help for Heroes. ’ 2
Twickenham 5 52 s
Proms. Swansea 43 57 170
Evolution. Ne. castle 36 64 275
Green Day. Wemkley
Stadium 32 68 168
Metown, Ken..ood 31 &9 123
House
KISS, Wembley Arena 14 86 144

it might be expected that were the Premises Licence for outdoor events at
Alexandra Palace to depart from the Code of Practice and to permit a greater
number of events at either 75dB or 65dB then the % of those who hear the music
and express an opinion on subjective annoyance is likely to increase.

We have no history of large outdoor events at Alexandra Paiace where music is the
prime source of entertainment and so it is difficult to predict the exposure of
residents to the music and the likely % of respondents who are able to hear music
and express subjective annoyance were a similar survey to be completed foliowing
an Alexandra Palace event.

We do know that different road experience different noise levels which is in part due
to proximity and in part to topography. it is therefore the case that residents in
some roads rmay experience significantiy lower noise levels than the maximum
permitted leveis. At Finsbury Park noise levels can be measured at up to 78dB
(Seven Sisters Road) whilst other roads can be as low as 62dB.

At 4.15 the report states

There are a large number of potentiai variables which affect an individual's
perception to music noise from an event, as listed below.

O Prior knowledge of event

0 Windows open / closed during the event

1 Children in household

O Music taste

(J Shift-work



Page 328

0 Age/hearing ability
[ Previous experience of noise from venue
[J Background noise level

Factors such as “Prior knowledge of the event” can be affected by good community
working among residents in the run up to an event. There are events which have
music with a heavy bass line which may be more likely to lead to complaints. If
events are handied well then “Previous experience of noise from venue” will come
into play with residents being more amenable to any noise disturbance.

At 4.20 in the report Table 14a show the percentage of all respondents giving a
subjective response within each of the 5 dB estimated noise exposure bands.

Table 14a: Subjective response to noise levels (5dB categories)
all events, ail respondents

Estimated Subjective response

no::g::)vel Could not Not at all Not very Fairty or very r:lst:;nc;::re:tfs
hear music annoyed annoyed annoyed

Overall 55% 25% 1 9 1725

<40 78 162 3 3% 460
40 - 45 59 27° 10% 4 283
45 - 50 51% 27% 10 12 222
50 - 55 52¢ 31% 9% &% 252
55 .60 39 3 179 13% 262
60 - 65 32 30 22% 16% 137
65-70 279 38" 4% 217 56

=70 8 230 8 33° 40

At estimated levels of 60dB to 70 dB it may be expected that between 16% and
21% of residents will be fairly or very annoyed. Approximately 35% may be
annoyed to some extent.



	Agenda
	5 Summary of procedure
	6 KAJAL NEWS, 8 COMMERCE ROAD, N22 8ED
	REPORT DOCUMENTATION SHEET - KAJAL NEWS

	7 ALEXANDRA PALACE EXTERNAL AREAS - PARK AND HARD STANDING AREAS, ALEXANDRA PALACE WAY, N22 7AY
	REPORT DOCUMENT (1) - ALEXANDRA PALACE EXTERNAL AREAS
	REPORT DOCUMENT (2) - ALEXANDRA PALACE EXTERNAL AREAS
	REPORT DOCUMENT (3) - ALEXANDRA PALACE EXTERNAL AREAS
	REPORT DOCUMENT (4) - ALEXANDRA PALACE EXTERNAL AREAS


